
Meeting of the TPO Board 
Wednesday, May 10, 2023 @ 9:00am 
Hillsborough County Center, 601 E. Kennedy Blvd., 26th Floor 

All voting members are asked to attend in person, in compliance with Florida’s 
Government in the Sunshine Law.  Please RSVP for this meeting. Presenters, 
audience, and members in exceptional circumstances may participate remotely. 

This meeting may be viewed on Hillsborough Television (HTV) by visiting Spectrum: 
637, Frontier: 22 or live stream from Hillsborough County's Live YouTube Channel or 
the County website's Live Meetings link, also found in the County Newsroom.  The 
agenda packet, presentations, and any supplemental materials are posted on the 
TPO’s online calendar. 

Public comment opportunities: 
To speak during the meeting - No later than 30 minutes before the meeting, please 
sign up here or phone 813-756-0371 for assistance. Provide the phone number you 
will call in from, so that we can recognize your call in the queue. You will receive an 
auto-reply confirming we received your request, along with instructions. 
Comments may also be given up to 3pm the day before the meeting: 

• by leaving a voice message at (813) 756-0371
• by e-mail to tpo@plancom.org
• by visiting the event posted on the Facebook page.

Advance comments will be provided in full to the board members and verbally 
summarized during the meeting by TPO staff. 

Rules of engagement: Professional courtesy and respect for others at this meeting are 
expected, and failure may result in dismissal from the meeting. For more information 
on expectations for participation, please see the TPO’s Social Networking & Media 
Policy. 

Agenda 

I. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance

II. Roll Call & Declaration of Quorum (Gail Reese, TPO Staff)

A. Vote of Consent for Remote Member Participation – if applicable

III. Recognition of Outgoing TPO Board Member (Beth Alden, TPO Director)

IV. Approval of Minutes – April 12, 2023

Commissioner Gwen Myers 
Hillsborough County 

TPO Chair 

Mayor Andrew Ross 
City of Temple Terrace 

TPO Vice Chair 

Paul Anderson 
Port Tampa Bay 

Commissioner Harry Cohen 
Hillsborough County 

Councilmember Lynn Hurtak 
City of Tampa 

Commissioner Pat Kemp 
Hillsborough County 

Mayor Nate Kilton
City of Plant City 

Angela Paye, Esquire 
HART 

Joe Lopano 
Hillsborough County 

Aviation Authority

Councilman Guido Maniscalco 
City of Tampa 

Commissioner 
Michael Owen 

Hillsborough County 

Hemant Saria 
Planning Commission 

Greg Slater 
Expressway Authority 

Commissioner 
Joshua Wostal 

Hillsborough County 

Jessica Vaughn 
Hillsborough County 

School Board 

Beth Alden, AICP 
Executive Director 

Plan Hillsborough 

planhillsborough.org 
planner@plancom.org 

813 - 272 - 5940 
601 E Kennedy Blvd 

18th Floor 
Tampa, FL, 33602 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fyoutube.com%2Fc%2Fhillsboroughcountymeetings%2Flive&data=04%7C01%7CBrewerJ%40hillsboroughcounty.org%7C43688ddff02d4b15539208d87779f4ce%7C81fe4c9d9bb849bd90ed89b8063f4c8a%7C1%7C0%7C637390712981295169%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=nM2MCfkP9u3hdwo9mMPwAcz1nOFY0r3pi4Z%2B9G4amXA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhillsboroughcounty.granicus.com%2Fplayer%2Fcamera%2F2%3Fpublish_id%3D3&data=04%7C01%7CBrewerJ%40hillsboroughcounty.org%7C43688ddff02d4b15539208d87779f4ce%7C81fe4c9d9bb849bd90ed89b8063f4c8a%7C1%7C0%7C637390712981295169%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Ga4okbrQ1qu3Qrep5BFVeb%2BrObVlZVW0HqyT2WL8VRw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hillsboroughcounty.org%2Fen%2Fnewsroom&data=04%7C01%7CBrewerJ%40hillsboroughcounty.org%7C43688ddff02d4b15539208d87779f4ce%7C81fe4c9d9bb849bd90ed89b8063f4c8a%7C1%7C0%7C637390712981305125%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tSNG9oSK%2F1tp6NoWX6TrhqhtkK1O%2BzErSvEQ%2BnjF%2FcI%3D&reserved=0
https://planhillsborough.org/event/metropolitan-planning-organization-board-meeting-43-2-2-2-2-2-3-2-2-2-2-3-2-2-2-3-2-2-5-3/?instance_id=9533
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=91ScfXoFoEmFSNx8h65V163DmaLMf-JDjZZWf2O7lgNUNzRCTUVOUUwxOTAxTldZSktOUEZSUVdBWi4u
mailto:tpo@plancom.org
https://www.facebook.com/HillsboroughMPO
http://www.planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/MPO_PPP_DRAFT_Appendix-H-PPP-ADDED-FB-Rules-of-Engagement-2020-1.pdf
http://www.planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/MPO_PPP_DRAFT_Appendix-H-PPP-ADDED-FB-Rules-of-Engagement-2020-1.pdf
https://www.hillsboroughcounty.org/library/hillsborough/media-center/images/covid19/american-flag.jpg
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


V. Public Comment on Agenda Items – 30 minutes total, with up to 3 minutes per
speaker. Staff will unmute you when the Chair recognizes you. As needed, the
Chair may allow for additional time later in the agenda.

VI. Committee Reports and Advance Comments (Rick Fernandez, CAC Chair,
and Gena Torres, TPO Staff)

VII. Consent Agenda

A. Committee Appointments

VIII. Action Items

A. TIP Amendment:  N Tampa St & N Florida Ave Corridor Improvements (Roger
Mathie, TPO Staff) – Roll-call vote required

B. Unified Planning Work Program Update and Amendment (Amber Simmons, TPO
Staff)

C. Community Air Monitoring Project: USF College of Public Health MOU (Amber
Simmons, TPO Staff)

D. Annual Certification of Metropolitan Transportation Planning Process (Johnny
Wong, TPO Staff)

E. Memorandum of Understanding on Creating a Tampa Bay MPO (Elizabeth
Watkins, TPO Staff)

VIII. Status Reports

A. US 41 and CSX Grade Separation PD&E Study (FDOT Representative)

IX. Executive Director’s Report
• Reminder: upcoming survey of Board members regarding Executive

Director applicants: please respond during May 22–June 9

X. Old Business & New Business

XI. Adjournment

XII. Addendum

A. Announcements

• Fowler Ave, Bruce B. Downs to Riverhills, Virtual Public Hearing

• AMPO announcement: FHWA grant programs

• Logo design contest for Florida Gulf Coast Trail



 

B.   Project Summaries, Fact Sheets & Other Status Reports 

• FL MPO Advisory Council Legislative Update 

• Plan Hillsborough Newsletter 

C.   Correspondence  

• Letter to USDOT Sec. Buttigieg: Port Tampa Bay grant application 

• Letter to FDOT: Performance Targets for Pavement & Bridge Condition and 
System Performance Measures 

• Letter to American Planning Association award selection committee: Safe 
Access to Parks application 

• Letter of Support for Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council Notice of Intent to  
Participate in EPA Climate Pollution Reduction Program 

B. Articles Related to TPO Work 

• Healthier Communities: A People-First Approach | ITE Journal pages 22-25 | April 2023 
• Plan Hillsborough Creating 20-Year Development Plan and They Want to Hear From You! | 

WFTS Tampa Bay's Morning Blend | 04.18.23 
• Florida House panel advances plan for $569 million collected from short-lived Hillsborough 

County surtax | WTSP 10 Tampa Bay | 04.16.23 
• Plan Hillsborough solicits input for land use plan | Tampa Bay Business Journal | 04.14.23 
• House tax plan would cut Hillsborough County sales tax to resolve nixed surtax funds | 

Florida Politics | 04.14.23 
• Cross Bay Ferry ridership reaches milestone as season nears its end | Tampa Bay Business 

Journal | 04.12.23 
• Should there be a regional MPO in Tampa Bay? | The Laker/Lutz News | 04.11.23 
• County growth inspires Planning Commission to look ahead | Hillsborough County Newsroom | 

04.06.23 
• Hillsborough County wants your help crafting a 20-year development plan | CBS News CW44 

Tampa Bay Now | 04.04.23 
• Hillsborough County looks to create 20-year plan for development | WFTS ABC Action News | 

04.03.23 
• Community Invited to Share Their Vision for the Future of Unincorporated Hillsborough 

County | Osprey Observer | 03.31.23 
• Regional transportation proposal sparks familiar disagreements among Tampa Bay elected 

officials | Tampa Bay Business Journal | 03.28.23 
• Beer Can Island owners say proposed land designation use would threaten recreation spot | 

Spectrum Bay News 9 | 03.27.23 
• Community invited to share their vision for the future of Unincorporated Hillsborough County 

| Tampa Bay Newswire | 03.25.23 
• New research sheds light on Uptown’s challenges, opportunities | Tampa Bay Business Journal 

| 03.22.23 

https://planhillsborough.org/connections-to-tomorrow-april-2023/
https://planhillsborough.org/connections-to-tomorrow-april-2023/
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://ite.ygsclicbook.com/pubs/itejournal/2023/april-2023/live/index.html#p=22
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.abcactionnews.com/morning-blend/plan-hillsborough-creating-20-year-development-plan-and-they-want-to-hear-from-you
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.wtsp.com/article/news/local/hillsboroughcounty/hillsborough-county-surtax/67-f15285e4-dbbe-4027-897a-fd4f2b1ffa8f
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.wtsp.com/article/news/local/hillsboroughcounty/hillsborough-county-surtax/67-f15285e4-dbbe-4027-897a-fd4f2b1ffa8f
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.bizjournals.com/tampabay/news/2023/04/14/plan-hillsborough-solicits-input-for-land-use-plan.html
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://floridapolitics.com/archives/603514-house-tax-plan-would-cut-hillsborough-county-sales-tax-to-resolve-nixed-surtax-funds/
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.bizjournals.com/tampabay/news/2023/04/12/cross-bay-ferry-ridership-2022-23.html
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://lakerlutznews.com/2023/04/113512/
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.hillsboroughcounty.org/en/newsroom/2023/04/06/county-growth-inspires-planning-commission-to-look-ahead
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.cbsnews.com/tampa/video/hillsborough-county-wants-your-help-crafting-a-20-year-development-plan/
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.abcactionnews.com/news/region-hillsborough/hillsborough-county-looks-to-create-20-year-plan-for-development
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.ospreyobserver.com/2023/03/community-invited-to-share-their-vision-for-the-future-of-unincorporated-hillsborough-county/
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.ospreyobserver.com/2023/03/community-invited-to-share-their-vision-for-the-future-of-unincorporated-hillsborough-county/
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.bizjournals.com/tampabay/news/2023/03/28/tampa-bay-tpos-proposal.html
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.bizjournals.com/tampabay/news/2023/03/28/tampa-bay-tpos-proposal.html
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.baynews9.com/fl/tampa/news/2023/03/27/beer-can-island-owners-say-proposed-land-use-would-threaten-recreation-spot
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.tampabaynewswire.com/2023/03/25/community-invited-to-share-their-vision-for-the-future-of-unincorporated-hillsborough-county-117454
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.bizjournals.com/tampabay/news/2023/03/22/uptown-university-area-south-florida-florida-blue.html


• Wimauma's Action Plan calls for development with diversity in mind - Planning for balanced 
growth is at the heart of community plan | Hillsborough County Newsroom | 03.22.23 

 

The full agenda packet is available on the TPO’s website, www.planhillsborough.org, or 
by calling (813) 272-5940. 

The TPO does not discriminate in any of its programs or services. Public participation is 
solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or 
family status.  Learn more about our commitment to non-discrimination. 

Persons needing interpreter services or accommodations for a disability in order to 
participate in this meeting, free of charge, are encouraged to contact Connor MacDonald, 
(813) 582-7351 or macdonaldc@plancom.org, three business days in advance of the 
meeting. If you are only able to speak Spanish, please call the Spanish helpline at (813) 
272-5940 or (813) 273-3774 and dial 1. 

Se recomienda a las personas que necesiten servicios de interpretación o adaptaciones 
por una discapacidad para participar en esta reunión, o ayuda para leer o interpretar los 
temas de esta agenda, sin costo alguno, que se pongan en contacto con Connor 
MacDonald, (813) 582-7351 o macdonaldc@plancom.org, tres días hábiles antes de la 
reunión. Si sólo habla español, por favor llame a la línea de ayuda en español al (813) 
272-5940 o (813) 273-3774 ext. 1. 
 
In accordance with Title 17 U.S.C. Section 107, materials attached are for research and 
educational purposes, and are distributed without profit to TPO Board members, TPO 
staff, or related committees or subcommittees the TPO supports. The TPO has no 
affiliation whatsoever with the originator of attached articles nor is the TPO endorsed or 
sponsored by the originator. Persons wishing to use copyrighted material for purposes 
of their own that go beyond ‘fair use’ must first obtain permission from the copyright 
owner. The TPO cannot ensure 508 accessibility for items produced by other agencies 
or organizations.  

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, he or she will need a 
record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence 
upon which the appeal is to be based. 

 

 

mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.hillsboroughcounty.org/en/newsroom/2023/03/22/wimaumas-action-plan-calls-for-development-with-diversity-in-mind
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://www.hillsboroughcounty.org/en/newsroom/2023/03/22/wimaumas-action-plan-calls-for-development-with-diversity-in-mind
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
http://www.planhillsborough.org/title-vi-and-accessibility/
mailto:macdonaldc@plancom.org
mailto:macdonaldc@plancom.org


 pg. 1 TPO Board Meeting, April 12, 2023 

HILLSBOROUGH TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION BOARD 
HYBRID MEETING APRIL 12, 2023 

DRAFT MINUTES 

I. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance (Timestamp 0:05:00)

Mayor Ross, called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM and led the pledge of allegiance. The
meeting was held in person and virtually via WebEx.

II. Roll Call  (Gail Reese, TPO Staff) (Timestamp 0:00:00)

The following members were present in person: Mayor Andew Ross, Commissioner Michael
Owen, Commissioner Joshua Wostal, Commissioner Harry Cohen, Commissioner Pat Kemp,
Councilmember Joseph Citro, Councilmember Lynn Hurtak, Councilmember Guido Maniscalco,
Charles Klug, Greg Slater, Angela Paye

The following members were present virtually: Board Member Jessica Vaughn, Gina Dew, Planning
Commissioner Hemant Saria

The following members were absent/excused: Mayor Nate Kilton, Commissioner Gwen Myers

A quorum was met in person.

A. Vote of Consent for Remote Member Participation.

Councilmember Maniscalco moved to allow remote participation, seconded by Commissioner
Cohen; the voice vote passed unanimously.

Vice Chair Ross read Chair Myers’s memo of absence.

III. Approval of Minutes  (Timestamp 0:07:09) – March 8, 2023.

Vice Chair Ross sought a motion to approve the March 8, 2023 minutes. Councilmember Citro so
moved, seconded by Commissioner Cohen; the voice vote passed unanimously.

IV. Public Comment on Agenda Items (Timestamp 0:00:00) (30 minutes total, with up to 3 minutes
per speaker) Additional comments made via Social Media and Email can be found at the end of
these minutes.

• Michael Maurino – Executive Director of the West Shore Alliance. The Alliance provides a letter in
support of the TIP Amendment for the safety improvements on Boy Scout Blvd. Received a note
from International Plaza also provided support. This was started by citizens of the area as the
intersection is very dangerous.

• Chris Vela – Commented on regionalizing the MPOs; there is already the SCTPA Board with the
regional TPO/MPOs represented in existence. The MOU is not a “check box” item, and Mr. Vela is
opposed to the combining of the MPOs/TPOs. The combined MPO would allow people from
Pinellas and Pasco Counties to fund projects using Hillsborough tax dollars.



 

 pg. 2 TPO Board Meeting, April 12, 2023 

 
V. Committee Reports & Advance Comments (Rick Fernandez, CAC Chair; Gena Torres, TPO Staff; 

and Beth Alden, TPO Executive Director) (Timestamp 0:12:19) 
 

A. CAC – April 5, 2023 (Rick Fernandez, CAC Chair) 
• Action Items 

o TIP Amendments on the TPO Board agenda today, West Boy Scout Blvd and US 301. There 
was a lack of design features of the intersections provided. 

o Performance Targets for Pavement and Bridge Condition Travel Time Reliability – was 
approved. Asked TPO Staff to explore the reliability of benefits of ramp metering on 
limited access facilities; to consider supplementary metrics to communicate a more 
holistic explanation of the factors impacting congestion and reliability; and to explore the 
health effects of congestion for those sitting in traffic jams. 

• Put forth a resolution intended to publish the sense of the committee related to agency 
participation in support of requested committee action. Expect to have some action on this 
within a couple of months. 

• Status Reports 
o Bike Boulevard Presentation from Chris Vela. Well received and expressed appreciation of 

the mapping concept. Approved recommending publication of the report to the Board. 
o THEA – connected vehicle pilot results 
o City of Tampa – Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant Implementation. 

Other Committee Reports  

Regarding the Board’s two action items today, you’ve heard from the Citizens Advisory 
Committee, in addition, both the Technical Advisory and Intelligent Transportation Systems 
Committees received presentations on those two items. 

The ITS Committee approved the TIP Amendment for W. Boy Scout Blvd & US 301 Traffic 
Signalization and Intersection Improvements with a discussion on whether signal preemption for 
emergency vehicles and the option of roundabouts were considered in the study. 

The ITS Committee also approved the Performance Targets for Pavement and Bridge Condition 
and for Travel Time Reliability, commenting on how traffic flow has changed after the pandemic 
and the target should change in the coming years. 

The TAC did not attain a quorum to take action; the committee did not pose any questions or 
concerns on either of the action items. 
 
Many other great presentations were heard 
• FDOTs Safety Outreach on High Injury Network 
• Connected Vehicles Pilot Results 
• City of Tampa Quick Build Program & Safe Streets and Roads for all grant application 
• Bicycle Boulevard Special Presentation 
• Regional Resiliency Action Plan (RRAP)  
• TPO’s Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Plan (EVIP) 
• 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan Initial Steps (this one is on your agenda today) 



 

 pg. 3 TPO Board Meeting, April 12, 2023 

 

B. Public Comments Received Through Email & Social Media (Gena Torres, TPO Staff). 

No Facebook comments were received. 
 
On Twitter, in response to a post on bus accessibility, Kevin O’Hare complimented the cover photo 
of “Tampa legend” Arizona Jenkins. 
 
In response to a post about the Tampa Streetcar, Daniel Brightls asked what HARTs ridership is for 
the entire transit network for the same 3 months. 
And in a post about Tampa ranking in the top 15th for riskiest drivers, Sarah H asked about the 
safety ranking for pedestrians. 
 
Emails were exchanged with Mr. George Niemann who requested that the full correspondence is 
shared with the TPO Board, and indeed it is included in your folder. The subject centers around 
better defining what is appropriate or inappropriate to include in meeting minutes, specifically 
social media posts. TPO staff will be sure to exclude extraneous commentary. 

Mauricio Rosas submitted 3 emails: 
1. He shared a letter to Federal Highway from the National Association of City Transportation 

Officials regarding Improving Safety for All Users on Federal Aid Projects. Mr. Rosas calls 
specific attention to the letter highlighting: 

• In the United States, “highways” are commonly thought of as high-speed, limited access 
roads designed for motor vehicle travel only. However, 70% of the National Highway and 
Federal-aid Highway Systems is not limited-access, and millions of people live, walk or roll, 
ride bikes, take transit, push strollers, go to work and school on these roadways. In many 
places, these streets are the main streets of a community–and Federal regulation and 
practice contributes to making them unsafe. By overhauling regulations the U.S. can 
remove impediments to rapidly saving lives on some of the most dangerous streets in the 
country. 

2. Mauricio also emailed his opposition to forming a regional MPO. He included into the record a 
1989 report commissioned by Governor Bob Martinez highlighting: 

• MPOs should be the lead agency for public transit investment.  
• FDOT should be funding capital transit projects. 
• The local jurisdiction should have taxing authority. 

3. Mr. Rosas’ last email was regarding I-275 north of downtown, Mr. Rosas emphasized the 
damage the highway has had on Tampa’s historic neighborhoods causing illness, death, and 
displacing thousands. A video link was included from the Los Angeles DOT on the inequitable, 
long-lasting damage to their urban core neighborhoods due to highway building. 

A letter of support was received from the City of Tampa for the action item regarding the TIP 
amendment for intersection and pedestrian improvements at Boy Scout Blvd and Manhattan Ave. 
The letter speaks to the number of serious injury crashes and praises the collaboration between 



 

 pg. 4 TPO Board Meeting, April 12, 2023 

the City, TPO, FDOT and the business groups and residents who have all supported this much-
needed project. 

• Please note: The email Cheryl Wilkening sent to board members on April 11, 2023 is available 
on request. 
 

C. TPO Policy Committee (Beth Alden, TPO Executive Director) 
• The focus was on this year’s update of the Transportation Improvement Program. There was 

an overview of the process; heard from the jurisdictions on the projects they would like 
prioritized. 
 

VI. Consent Agenda (Timestamp 0:22:36) 
 

A. Committee Appointments 
• LRC – Larry Josephson and Anna Grundmann as alternate (Hillsborough County Public Works); 

Rebecca Hessinger (Hillsborough County Development Services) 
• BPAC – Abigail Flores and John Merine as alternate (Hillsborough County Public Works); Daniel 

Rodriguez (HART) 
• ITS – Bryan Zayas (Hillsborough County) 
• TAC – Omar Alvarado as alternate (HART) 
• CAC – Steven Hollenkamp (Plant City Commission); Christina Bosworth (resident of the 

Wimauma area, at-large seat); Sarah Thomas (resident of the Brandon area, at-large seat); Kit 
Werremeyer (resident of the Valrico area, at-large seat); Chris Vela (American Indian resident, 
at-large seat); Chris Gonzalez (Hispanic resident, at-large seat) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda made by Commissioner Cohen, seconded by 
Councilmember Maniscalco; the voice vote passed unanimously.  
 

VII. Action Items  
A. TIP Amendment: West Boy Scout Blvd & US 301 Traffic Signalization and Intersection 

Improvements (Johnny Wong, TPO Staff) (Timestamp 0:22:55) 
• Reviewed project summaries. 

o Secure federal authorization from FHWA.  
o Went over project improvements. W Boy Scout Blvd. is the top priority in the TIP priority 

list. Initially put on the TIP as a signal project, was reevaluated as a major safety project. 
o The improvements on US 301 were reviewed and safety implications were noted. Will 

align trails as well.  
o Looked at financial breakdowns. All construction will be completed in FY24. 

• Went over Public Outreach of this amendment. 
• TAC did not have a quorum to approve but had positive comments. CAC did not approve 

due to a lack of design documents. ITS did approve. 

Recommended Action: Approve the FY 22/23 TIP Amendment: W Boy Scout Blvd & US 301 
Traffic Signalization and Intersection Improvements. 



 

 pg. 5 TPO Board Meeting, April 12, 2023 

Comparative Report  
Presentation: TIP Amendments April 2023 

Discussion: 

It was asked if the lack of information being provided to the CAC is a one-off and if that will be 
prevented in the future. TPO Staff is working very diligently on receiving as much documentation 
as possible prior to the meetings. It was asked that a presentation in the future be made on how 
to get signals and the warrants required. There is a manual on Uniform Traffic Devices that are 
required for traffic signals. Warrants can be overruled based on engineering judgment. It all comes 
down to the engineer’s recommendation. Signals increase crashes but can mitigate severe or 
incapacitating crashes. It was asked if the same rules apply to two county or city roads. FDOT does 
not approve those, it would be the jurisdictions. FDOT would be the enforcement of the rules. It 
was asked if there is a list where everything is rated by where crashes occur. The TPO website has 
a lot of that information and can be provided. It was requested that that information be presented 
to the TPO Board on an annual basis.  
 

Commissioner Cohen moved to approve the TIP Amendments; seconded by Commissioner Kemp. 
Roll call vote passed 14 – 0. 
 
B. Performance Targets for Pavement & Bridge Condition and Travel Time Reliability (Connor 

MacDonald, TPO Staff) (Timestamp 0:43:40) 
• Went over the background and due date of June 14, 2023. 
• Review of pavement and bridge condition evaluations 

o Pavement and bridge performance measures 
o Data used to calculate pavement and bridge conditions. 
o Previous Board action was in 2018 – supported FDOT’s targets and submitted a letter 

asking D7 to continue to invest in pavement & bridge conditions in order to exceed the 
statewide target. 

o Looked at the proportion of lane miles by maintaining agency: 59% Hillsborough County, 
20% City of Tampa, 3% Plant City, 1% Temple Terrace, 17% FDOT // Proportion of 
bridges by maintaining agency: 50% FDOT, 33% Hillsborough County, THEA 9%, City of 
Tampa 4%, Turnpike Authority 2%, Other 2%. 

o Went over Pavement and Bridge Condition Measures – meeting and/or exceeding in all 
areas. 

o TIP Projects to Improve Pavement and Bridge Condition – went over the projects. 
• Travel Time Reliability system performance – went over what it means and how it is 

measured. 
o The TPO elected to establish its own targets in 2018 as reliability is trending downward 

across Hillsborough County and is projected to continue in the future. 
o Went over projects to improve reliability. 

 
Recommended Action: Approve supporting the statewide Pavement & Bridge Condition Targets; 
transmit letter to FDOT requesting that NHS pavements & bridges continue to be maintained in 

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/Combined_comparative_Report_16_17.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/TIP-Amendment-Boy-Scout-Blvd-US-301-Traffic-Signalization-and-Intersection-Improvements_BOARD_REV.pdf


 

 pg. 6 TPO Board Meeting, April 12, 2023 

a condition exceeding the statewide target; approve establishing the Hillsborough-specific 
Travel Time Reliability Targets. 
 
Presentation Slides: Performance Targets for Pavement & Bridge Condition and Travel Time 
Reliability  
 

Discussion: 
It was pointed out that the presentation noted FDOT roads but the FAST Act had provisions for all 
roads and conditions. It was asked if the performance targets were for FDOT federal aid roads only 
or all federal aid roads; they are for the FDOT roads only. Clarification was asked about how Travel 
Time Reliability is measured. It would be collected at the same time over several weeks. It was 
noted that the number one impact on travel time reliability are crashes. It was brought up that the 
data is being collected differently by different providers. It could be from Blue Tooth-enabled 
devices registering on the network. Peak travel times are compared against non-peak travel times 
excluding holidays and weekends. It was asked if that information is available on a real-time basis. 
FDOT maintains the contracts with the vendors. Based on the TPO partnership, it is a lot of data 
and staff is using partners to assist in analyzing it. Smart cameras and lights are monitoring traffic 
along with the overhead notification boards. FDOT is currently in the process of redoing the 
signals, they have the ability to be programmed for emergency and transit prioritization both in 
the programming and manually. These are starting to come online now.  
 

Commissioner Kemp moved to approve supporting the statewide Pavement & Bridge Condition 
Targets; transmit letter to FDOT requesting NHS pavements & bridges continue to be maintained 
in a condition exceeding the statewide target; approve establishing the Hillsborough-specific 
Travel Time Reliability Targets; seconded by Councilmember Maniscalco. The voice vote passes 
unanimously. 
 

VIII. STATUS REPORTS 
A. 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan Initial Steps (Vishaka Shiva Raman and Elizabeth Watkins, 

TPO Staff) (Timestamp 1:03:38) 
• Section 1 – Initial Steps  

o Provided background on what the LRTP is – updated every five years and it is a twenty-
five-year plan. 

o Looked at the 2020 map with the population and employment. 
o Went over the population and employment growth and projections to 2050 by 

jurisdictions. 
o Showed the map showing the projections of where traffic volume will be in 2050 and 

went over the timeline of the update. 
o The three major pieces of the update are Public Engagement, cost Feasible Scenarios 

(local and regional), and Forecasting System Performance in 2050 
o Reviewed the major areas, what is needed, and how much it costs. Also look at freight 

needs and equity needs. 
• Section 2 – Revenue Forecast 

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/Performance-Targets-for-Pavement-Bridge-Condition-and-Travel-Time-Reliability_REV.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/Performance-Targets-for-Pavement-Bridge-Condition-and-Travel-Time-Reliability_REV.pdf


 

 pg. 7 TPO Board Meeting, April 12, 2023 

o Went over how it is estimated what the community can afford – federal, state, and 
local. 

o Looked at an example of possible project funding based on specific revenues. 
o Showed existing funding sources. 
o Went over possible unlevied sources for future consideration. 

• Showed overview of Next Steps 

Presentation: 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan Initial Steps and Revenue Forecast  

Discussion: 

There was a discussion around adding a $0.01 sales tax. It was asked if there is consideration 
given to EV charging and the impact of EVs on the gas tax. It was suggested that TPO Staff reach 
out to Tampa Bay Water so that they see the growth projections being used for the LRTP. At this 
time, there is no consensus on the BOCC for future funding. There are going to be discussions on 
the reauthorization of the CIT. The gas tax is dwindling due to EV and vehicle efficiency. There 
was a discussion about the regional travel demand model; that information will be part of the 
LRTP. 
 

B. Transportation Disadvantaged Program Update (Joshua Barber, TPO Staff and Jerry Stickney, 
Interim Director Hillsborough County Sunshine Line) (Timestamp 0:00:00) 
• Provided a review of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
• Went over the Sunshine Line and the services provided 
• Looked at the role of the TPO Staff 
• Review of the System Evaluation, 5-Year Trip Trend, and TD Tampa Bay 
• Went over current challenges and opportunities 

 
C. Role of the Policy Committee (Beth Alden, TPO Executive Director)(Timestamp 1:36:30) 

• Went over the summary of Peer MPO’s Policy Committees. 
• Review of upcoming topics at the TPO Board and Policy Committee for the remainder of the 

year. Noted that there will be careful consideration for duplication of presentations. 
• The committee would limit public comment because the item will come back to the Board 

for action and public comment would be heard then. 

Discussion: 

There was discussion on the number of candidates being presented as semi-finalists for the 
Executive Director position. It was noted that it was helpful to take deeper dives on the Policy 
Committee for things that are of particular interest to specific members and that other Board 
members are welcome to attend. 

 
IX. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (Timestamp 0:00:00) 

A. May 10: cancel Policy Committee and convene Board at 9 AM. 
B. TMA Leadership Group meeting of March 24 highlights: draft MOU “Creating a Tampa MPO” to be 

discussed at the May 10th TPO meeting. 

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/2050-Long-Range-Transportation-Plan-Initial-Steps-and-Revenue-Forecast.pdf


 

 pg. 8 TPO Board Meeting, April 12, 2023 

C. Options to accelerate executive director hiring schedule. Options are limited due to calendars. 
Could be accelerated by two weeks if there is a special meeting of the TPO Board in August. 
Decided to keep the schedule as is. 
 

X. OLD & NEW BUSINESS (Timestamp 1:47:37) 
A. Next meeting is on May 10, 2023. 
B. It was noted that this is Councilmember Citro’s last meeting. Appreciation of service was 

expressed.  
 
Councilmember Citro expressed his pleasure in serving on the Board and working with TPO Staff. 
 
Commissioner Kemp expressed gratitude for serving with Councilmember Citro on the regional 
TMA 
 
Commissioner Cohen expressed thanks for serving with Councilmember Citro on the Tampa Bay 
Regional Council. 
 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT – The meeting adjourned at 12:00 PM  

The recording of this meeting may be viewed on YouTube: Meeting Recording  

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLZwNyAnHaDIv63Lu79P_lialZv-KmFvV3


 
 

Committee Reports 
 

Livable Roadways Committee (LRC) Meeting on April 19 

The LRC heard status reports on: 

• US41/CSX Grade Separation Project Development & Environmental Study 

• Hillsborough TPO Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Plan 

• 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan Initial Steps 

• 2050 Plan Needs Assessment for Congestion Management and Crash Mitigation 
 
Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) Meeting on April 26 

The BPAC considered and approved a proposal by Tim Horst to draft a “Top Ten Dangerous 
Locations” list for advocacy and referral to various agencies in Hillsborough County.  

Members asked Ben Gordon to solicit three location suggestions from each BPAC member by 
May 15th for discussion at the next BPAC meeting in May. 

The BPAC approved action item: 

 Proposed US Bicycle Route 15 

o Members asked how much local users would use this route and how much it 
would be promoted. 

o They were informed that the route is for experienced riders and will not be 
promoted to local users. This may change in the future if facilities are improved. 

The BPAC heard status reports on: 

• US41/CSX Grade Separation Project Development & Environmental Study 

• 2050 Plan Needs Assessment for Congestion Management and Crash Mitigation 

• City of Tampa Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant Implementation 

 



Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board (TDCB) Meeting on April 28 
The TDCB approved action item: 

 Election of Member At-Large 

 Community Transportation Coordinator Service Rates 

 2023 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Update 

The TDCB heard status reports on: 

• Sunshine Line Update 

• HART Update 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting of May 1 
 
The TAC approved action items: 

 TIP Amendment: N Tampa Street & N Florida Ave Corridor Improvements 

o Members inquired regarding lane widths, users allowed in the Bus only lane, and 
the timing between the interim condition and final condition. 
 

 Annual Certification of Metropolitan Transportation Planning Process 

 Unified Planning Work Program Update and Amendment 

The TAC heard status reports on: 

• US41/CSX Grade Separation Project Development & Environmental Study 

o Members asked about funding (construction currently unfunded), and access to 
the frontage road for nonmotorized users (crossing opportunities at underpasses 
and intersections).   
 

• Hillsborough County Truck Route Plan Update and 2050 Freight and Goods  

Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) Meeting of May 3 

A verbal report will be provided at the meeting. 



Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item 
Committee Appointments 

Presenter 
None – Consent Agenda 
Summary 
The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) shall be responsible for considering safe     
access to schools in the review of transportation project priorities, long-range 
transportation plans and transportation improvement programs and shall advise the 
MPO on such matters.  In addition, the TAC shall be responsible for assisting in the 
development of transportation planning work programs; coordinating transportation 
planning and programming; review of all transportation studies, reports, plans and/or 
programs, and making recommendations to the TPO that are pertinent to the subject 
documents based upon the technical sufficiency, accuracy, and completeness of and 
the needs as determined by the studies, plans and/or programs.  The following have 
been nominated to serve on the TAC: 

• Ana Garzon, as alternate by Department of Health

Recommended Action 

That the TPO Board confirm the above nominations 

Prepared By 

Cheryl Wilkening 

Attachments  

None 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


 
 

Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 
TIP Amendment: N Tampa St & N Florida Ave Urban Corridor Improvements 

Presenter: 
Roger Mathie, TPO Staff 
Summary: 
This TIP amendment will impact the following project, noted below:  
 
440511-2, N Tampa St & N Florida Ave from Floribraska Ave & from Palm Ave to 
MLK Blvd. 
 
The purpose of this project is to add design phase funding in FY24 to upgrade the 
existing drainage system to reduce the regular street flooding and to make complete 
street improvements to the roadway. 
 
The complete street improvements include relocating the curb line to generally 
narrow the lane widths to 11’ and widen the sidewalks to 7’ on both sides of Florida 
Avenue. 
 
Creation of a 12’ shared use path on the west side of Tampa Street and widening the 
sidewalk to 8’ on the east side of Tampa Street. Bulb-outs will be constructed in 
areas with on-street parking at Columbus Drive and Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. 
Boulevard on Florida Avenue. 
 
New pedestrian crossings will be installed at 26th Avenue on Florida Avenue, and at 
Woodlawn Avenue and Indiana Avenue on Tampa Street.  
 
This project also supports planned projects by HART, including a proposed Bus 
Rapid Transit system and a Light Rail extension. 
 
Recommended Action: 
Approve the TIP Amendment to add new federal funds for the design phase of N 
Tampa St & N Florida Ave from Floribraska Ave & from Palm Ave to Martin Luther 
King, Jr. Boulevard. 
 
Prepared By: 
Roger Mathie, TPO Staff 
Attachments: 
1.  Comparative Report 
2.  Presentation slides 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Combined_Comparative_Report_18.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Combined_Comparative_Report_18.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/TIP-Amendment-N-Tampa-St-N-Florida-Ave-Urban-Corridor-Improvements_REV-1.pdf
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


 
 

Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 
Unified Planning Work Program Update and Amendment 

Presenter: 
Amber Simmons, TPO Staff 
Summary: 
The TPO annually reviews and periodically amends its Unified Planning Work Program 
(UPWP) to reflect grant funding and budget changes. A few changes in the current 2-
year UPWP are proposed now. Following approval by the Board of this amendment, 
grant funding amounts shown in the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) will 
also be updated to reflect the same changes. The changes include: 

• Shifts in the allocation of Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) grant funds 
from Tasks 1 and 2 to Tasks 5 and 6 to reflect greater staff effort in public 
engagement and regional coordination.  

• Addition of $388,375 awarded by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
for the Distributed Air Quality Monitoring Network Grant. 

• Addition of $46,033 of Planning funds (PL) and Surface Transportation Block 
Grant (SU) funds of $59,172 that remained at the close-out of our FY22 grants, 
and an increase in the FY24 allocation of PL funds of $13,655. 

As background, the TPO’s transportation planning functions are supported primarily by 
federal and state grants. These functions must be identified in advance for two fiscal 
years. The UPWP also documents the use of federal funds for metropolitan 
transportation planning conducted by other agencies, including FDOT and HART. 
 
Recommended Action: 
Approve the UPWP Amendment 

Prepared By: 
Amber Simmons, TPO Staff 

Attachments: 
1.  UPWP Task Pages and Proposed Budget Tables 
2.  Presentation Slides 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Unified-Planning-Work-Program-Update-and-Amendment-Tasks-and-Proposed-Budget-Tables-for-website.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/UPWP-FY-24-Presentation_-TAC-CAC-Board-May.pdf
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


 
 

Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 
Community Air Monitoring Project: USF College of Public Health MOU  
Presenter: 
Amber Simmons, TPO staff 
Summary: 
Dr. Amy Stuart and her research team with the University of South Florida (USF) 
College of Public Health have been working with the TPO on the Low-cost Air Quality 
Monitoring Pilot Study. USF helped establish seven pilot Community Air Monitoring 
Sites along I-4 and I-275. Through this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), the 
College of Public Health will continue to provide scientific and technical expertise to 
expand community air monitoring and public engagement in disadvantaged 
communities and among vulnerable populations along interstate corridors. The US 
EPA Enhanced Air Monitoring for Communities Grant will fund the work. 

Recommended Action: 
Approve Memorandum of Understanding 
 
Prepared By: 
Lizzie Ehrreich, TPO staff 

Attachments: 
Community Air Monitoring Project: USF College of Public Health MOU 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


1 

RESEARCH AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION, 

dba HILLSBOROUGH TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
AND 

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA 

THIS RESEARCH AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the date of last signature by Hillsborough 
Transportation Planning Organization, (“Sponsor”), and The University of South Florida Board of Trustees, a 
public body corporate, for the University of South Florida, ("University"), in support of the project entitled 
“Distributed Air Quality Monitoring for Disadvantaged Communities Along I-275/I-4 Corridor.” In 
consideration of their mutual promises and obligations, the parties agree as follows: 

I.  PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE:  The period of performance under this Agreement begins June 1, 2023 and 
ends February 28, 2026. This period may be modified by mutual written agreement of the parties. 

II. WORK PLAN / PROJECT ADMINISTRATION:  The University will perform the project activities described in
the appended Attachment 1, Scope of Work, in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, and 
University policies. Amy Stuart, PhD (“University Project Director”) will direct the project for the University. 

The representatives of the parties are: 

For University: 
University Project Director: 
Amy Stuart, PhD 
Professor 
University of South Florida 
College of Public Health 
13201 Bruce B. Downs Blvd, MDC 056 
Tampa, FL 33612-3805 
813-974-6632 
als@usf.edu 

Administrative contact: Allee Spencer
Sponsored Research Administrator 
University of South Florida,  
Division of Sponsored Research 
3702 Spectrum Blvd., Ste. 165
Tampa, FL 33612 
813-974-5570
Rsch-awards@usf.edu or allees@usf.edu 

For Sponsor: 
Elizabeth Alden 
TPO Executive Director 
Transportation Planning Organization 

 



2 

601 E. Kennedy Blvd, 18th Floor 
Tampa, FL 33602 
813-272-5940 
aldenb@plancom.org 

Administrative contact: 
Cheryl Wilkening 
Transportation Planning Organization 
601 E. Kennedy Blvd, 18th Floor 
Tampa, FL 33602 
813-272-5940 
wilkeningc@plancom.org 

III. COMPENSATION:  Sponsor will compensate the University on a Fixed Price basis in an amount not to
exceed $100,000 for its conduct of the project. The budget is appended as Attachment 2. To receive 
payment, University will submit invoices signed by an authorized official of the University to Sponsor’s 
Project Director, quarterly, in the amount of $10,000 per quarter in Years 1 and 2, and $6,667 per quarter 
for the three quarters comprising Year 3. Sponsor will remit payment to “University of South Florida” within 
30 days after receipt of each invoice to: 

University of South Florida 
Attention: USF Business Payments 
P.O. Box 947568
Atlanta, GA 30394-7568 

University may retain any unobligated balances remaining at the end of the period of performance. 

IV. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR/LIABILITY:  The relationship of the parties is that of mutually independent
contractors.  Neither party nor any of its officers, agents, and employees becomes by virtue of this 
Agreement an officer, agent, or employee of the other party.  Each party assumes the risk of all liability 
arising from its respective activities under this Agreement and from the acts or omissions of its own officers, 
agents, and employees. University’s liability is as described in section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

V. TERMINATION: The parties may mutually terminate this Agreement at any time by written agreement. 
Either party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause upon no less than 30 days’ prior written 
notice to the other party’s administrative contact. Notice must be sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or delivered in person with proof of delivery. In the event of termination, only the percent of 
satisfactory progress actually achieved to the date of termination plus any non-cancellable obligations will 
be due and payable to the University. 

If the University Project Director becomes unable or unwilling to continue project activities under this 
Agreement and a mutually acceptable substitute is not available, SPONSOR has the option to terminate this 
Agreement. 

VI. PUBLICITY:  Neither party may use the name of the other party or its employees in any publicity,
advertising, or news release without the prior written approval of an authorized representative of that 
party. Under the provisions of Florida Statute 1004.22, the University is required to make available upon 



  

 
 
 3 

request the title and description of a research project, the name of the researcher, and the amount and 
source of funding provided for the project. 
 
VII. CONFIDENTIALITY:  In the course of performing work under this Agreement, it may be necessary for 
either party to disclose to the other certain confidential/proprietary information or data. All such 
confidential information will be clearly marked or identified as confidential at the time of disclosure; if given 
orally, it will be reduced to writing, marked as confidential, and provided within 30 days.  
 
Each party agrees to hold the other’s confidential information in confidence from date of disclosure until 
three years from the date it is either returned to the disclosing party or destroyed, at the option and 
request of the disclosing party. The parties will take reasonable precautions to avoid disclosure, publication, 
or dissemination of confidential information and will use confidential information only in connection with 
the project. 
 
No obligation of confidentiality applies to any information that was already in the receiving party’s 
possession prior to its receipt from the disclosing party; is or becomes publicly known or available through 
no breach of this Agreement by the receiving party; is acquired by the receiving party from a third party 
without notice or restrictions of confidentiality; is independently developed by or for the receiving party’s 
personnel to whom the providing party’s confidential information had not been disclosed; or is required to 
be disclosed by law or governmental regulation, in which case both parties will work together in order to 
comply with such requirement. 

 
VIII. PUBLICATION:  Sponsor recognizes that under University policy the results of the project must be 
publishable and agrees that the University Project Director or University employees engaged in the 
project are permitted to present at symposia and professional meetings and to publish in journals, 
theses or dissertations, or otherwise of their own choosing, the data, methods, and results of the 
project.  
 
IX.  INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  The University Project Director will promptly disclose all intellectual 
property (“IP”) generated during the course of this Agreement to University’s Technology Transfer Office 
(“TTO”) in accordance with USF Policy 0-300 on Inventions and Works, and the TTO will promptly 
disclose the IP to Sponsor. 
 
University owns all IP conceived or made by the University Project Director or any other University 
employee. Sponsor owns all IP conceived or made by employees of Sponsor. University and Sponsor 
jointly own IP conceived or made by employees of University and Sponsor. 
 
Any background IP and technologies of Sponsor, the University, the University Project Director, or any 
other University employee existing prior to the execution of this Agreement are their own separate 
property, respectively, and are not affected by this Agreement. Neither party acquires any claims to or 
rights in any background IP or technologies of the other by virtue of this Agreement. 
 
X. GOVERNING LAW:  Florida law, without reference to choice of law rules, governs the enforcement, 
interpretation, and construction of this Agreement. 
 



  

 
 
 4 

XI.  DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY:  This Agreement is valid and enforceable only upon signature by persons 
authorized to bind Sponsor and by all persons required by Florida law or University policy in order to bind 
the University. 
 
XII. PROTECTION OF HUMAN SUBJECTS:  The University bears full responsibility for the proper and safe 
performance of research involving the use of human subjects under this Agreement. If human subjects 
are used, their rights and welfare will be protected under 45 CFR Part 46, "Protection of Human 
Subjects," and the University will send a copy of current IRB approval to Sponsor.  
  
 
 
 

Signature page follows 



  

 
 
 5 

The parties indicate their acceptance of the terms of this Research Agreement, which includes Attachments 
1 and 2, by the signatures below of their authorized officials. 
 
  

The University of South Florida Board of Trustees 
 
 
Reviewed by:      SIGNED BY: 
 
 
                                                                                                    
Amy L Stuart, PhD     Eric M. Kern, MBA  
University Project Director     Director, Sponsored Research  
       University of South Florida 
 
       Date:       

 
 
 

Transportation Planning Organization 
Tampa, FL 33602 

 
By: ____________________________ 

Signature of authorized official 
Elizabeth Alden 

Executive Director 
Date: ____________________________ 

 

AnyL Stuart

4/28/23



  

 
 
 6 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

 
BUDGET NARRATIVE 

 



Scope of Work 

A.L. Stuart  April 2023 1 

Title: Distributed Air Quality Monitoring for Disadvantaged Communities Along I-275/I-4 Corridor 

Overview: 
Traffic-related air pollution is an important community health problem, leading to excess mortality, 
increased health costs, and loss of work productivity. Furthermore, evidence from around the U.S. 
indicates that historically marginalized populations are disproportionately affected by traffic-related air 
pollution.  Studies of Hillsborough County show that African Americans and households living in poverty 
bear the burden of high exposures.  Specifically, neighborhoods near the I-275/I-4 corridor, many of 
which are primarily comprised of people of color and lower-income residents, likely experience some of 
the highest levels of traffic pollution.  

Transportation planning provides opportunities to reduce traffic-related air pollution and resulting 
inequities.  To enable planning approaches that improve air quality in communities near roadways, 
better ongoing data are needed on exposures in these communities.  Although the current network of 
regulatory air quality monitoring sites provides high-quality ambient pollution data, it is too sparse (with 
only one near-road monitoring site) to provide the local-scale neighborhood exposure levels that are 
needed to improve the equity outcomes of transportation decision making.  Furthermore, populations in 
marginalized communities are often distrustful of government data and feel disempowered to 
contribute to planning decisions. Hence, it is important for people in communities of concern to both 
understand the impacts of air quality and to be empowered to influence sustainable solutions to 
community air pollution. 

The project described here is a continuation of pilot work to investigate the use of next-generation 
lower-cost sensors for characterizing affected community air quality in Hillsborough County.  As a part of 
this pilot work, a collaboration between the Transportation Planning Organization (TPO), University of 
South Florida (USF), Environmental Protection Commission (EPC), and several community organizations 
was formed. Based on this work, the partnership developed a proposal submitted by the TPO to the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to expand and continue the work on distributed community air 
quality monitoring.  This document (including the scope and budget for the subcontract to USF from the 
TPO) describes USF's planned contributions to that funded EPA project. 

Scope and methods: 
Through this project, USF will collaborate with the TPO on the EPA-funded project titled "Distributed Air 
Quality Monitoring for Disadvantaged Communities Along I-275/I-4 Corridor".  The objectives of the 
project are to: 

1. Establish a network of air pollution monitors in underserved neighborhoods near the I-275/I-4 
corridor, 

2. Characterize concentrations of the target traffic-related air pollutants in these communities, and 
3. Develop community capacity for civic engagement and empowerment on issues of air pollution 

and built environmental design. 

USF's role in the project will be to provide technical expertise and student workforce capacity through 
dedicated time on the project as detailed in the Budget Narrative.   

The USF team's primary activities will include:  

• Developing quality assurance plans.  Environmental data collected for the purposes of decision 
making requires the development (and regular review) of a Quality Assurance Project Plan 
(QAPP).  The QAPP details the quality assurance processes involved in measurement and 
ensures that the quality of the data collected is appropriate for planned uses.  (A QAPP is also a 
required component of the EPA grant.)  The USF team will collaborate with the TPO and other 



Scope of Work 

A.L. Stuart  April 2023 2 

project partners in a systematic planning process for the development (and review) of a QAPP 
that is appropriate to the purpose and nature of the distributed community network using low-
cost devices.  This will include developing protocols and plans for routine monitor maintenance, 
network calibration, and quality control. 

• Selecting monitoring equipment. Based on USF's pilot project work, two monitors (the Purple Air 
II and Clarity Node-S) were selected for community deployment to measure particulate matter 
(PM) and nitrogen dioxide.  Several of these monitors will be deployed at community sites for 
the EPA grant.  For installation of the Purple Air II at many community sites, systems that supply 
power and internet will be required.  The USF team will collaborate with the TPO to select 
appropriate equipment.  Additionally, benzene is a third target pollutant for the EPA grant.  The 
USF team will collaborate with the TPO and EPC to select and install benzene monitor(s) at 
community site(s), if required. 

• Deploying and maintaining monitors. As a part of the EPA grant, monitors must be installed at 
numerous community sites. Further, to ensure quality measurements over time, the installation 
will need to be maintained through remote surveillance of data and physical visits to the sites. 
The USF team will assist the TPO and site hosts with these deployments and site maintenance. 

• Compiling and analyzing data from the community monitors. The community monitors collect 
and store near-real-time data on levels of the select air pollutants at each monitoring site. 
However, for quality assurance and interpretation, the data must be compiled, aggregated, 
statistically analyzed, compared with data from regulatory reference monitors and from other 
community monitors, and described in graphical and written forms.  The USF team will perform 
these activities for the distributed network monitors (including those already installed through 
the pilot project) to support reporting to the EPA, TPO, community partners, and the public on 
site air quality, data quality, and network needs. 

• Developing a guidebook and training on community monitoring skills. To establish a sustainable 
distributed community network, site hosts and other involved community members must 
become largely self-sufficient in monitor operation and maintenance, as well as data collection 
and analysis. The USF team will help the TPO with technical education and outreach to develop 
a guidebook and other training materials to facilitate this capacity in the community. Work will 
also include leading training and train-the-trainer workshops coordinated by the TPO and 
project partners for site hosts and other interested community members on air pollution 
concepts and science; monitor deployment, operation, and maintenance; and data analysis and 
interpretation.  

• Providing educational and outreach opportunities for the community. To empower marginalized 
communities in environmental decision-making, multi-way educational interactions between 
government, university, and community partners on the topics of air quality, urban planning, 
and equity related to transportation are needed. The USF team will help the TPO provide 
education and outreach to develop events and activities with community and school groups 
aimed at such interaction and outreach. This will include working with schoolteachers and the 
Community Consultant (coordinated by the TPO) to compile and develop educational materials 
(such as lesson plans) that provide students an opportunity to learn about air quality, 
transportation planning, the STEM fields, conducting research, and civic engagement. The USF 
team will also lead (speak and/or facilitate) at some community educational events.  This 
includes providing a speaker (or speakers) for an annual summit/workshop for the involved 
communities and the interested public.  

• Preparing dissemination products. The USF team will document the data analyses and other USF 
subcontract activities in an annual report (each year) for the TPO, and will support the TPO with 



Scope of Work 

A.L. Stuart  April 2023 3 

the quarterly EPA reports.  We will also develop and provide a presentation annually on the data 
analyses and other USF subcontract activities for the community summit. Finally, we will 
prepare at least one academic conference abstract, presentation, or journal paper each year for 
dissemination of project activities and findings to a broad national and international audience of 
practitioners and researchers involved in urban planning and air quality work. 

 
Outputs and Outcomes: 
Outputs of this project will include: 

• Deployment of equipment to conduct air quality monitoring in or near communities of concern 
near the I-275 / I-4 intersection and nearby corridors, 

• Near real-time air quality data available on-line for communities and other stakeholders, 
• Compiled data products (data visualizations, presentations, and reports) on levels of traffic-

related air pollution in the target communities.  This will include community-specific 
assessments of air pollution data useful for influencing future transportation and planning 
projects, 

• Compiled information and products (data visualizations, presentations, and reports) on the 
community network's data quality, necessary for appropriate decision-making and planning, 

• Processes and materials (a site-host guidebook, educational/training materials, and a QAPP) for 
sustainability of the distributed community air quality monitoring network, including quality 
assurance protocols (for calibration, maintenance, and quality control). 

• Academic conference abstracts, presentations, and a journal paper for broad dissemination of 
project activities to practitioners and scholars. 

• Promotion of local partnerships and community involvement through various activities and 
information exchanges. 

Outcomes will include improved awareness and understanding by people in communities of concern in 
Hillsborough County on the impacts of vehicle emissions and urban planning on air quality and health in 
their communities.  Members of the involved communities will also have increased knowledge and skills 
on air pollution concepts, how to deploy and maintain air pollutant monitors, and how to interpret air 
quality data. Further, the TPO will have increased knowledge and understanding of neighborhood air 
quality affected by traffic; both the TPO and EPC will also have increased understanding of the 
perspectives and needs of marginalized communities concerning traffic-related air pollution.  Finally, 
there will be better data available on neighborhood air quality for use by community members and 
government partners (TPO and EPC) for future planning and management decisions that can mitigate air 
pollution caused by traffic in these communities.  In the longer term, both the data from the distributed 
monitoring network and the collaboration established through the project (between the involved 
communities, the TPO, the EPC, the USF team, and other stakeholders) will enable communities of 
concern to be more empowered to influence future development plans and processes that affect 
pollution in their communities.    

Project management: 
The above activities will be performed by a USF team led by Professor Amy Stuart in collaboration with 
the TPO EPA grant Project Manager.  The USF team will include Dr. Stuart, her doctoral graduate student 
(Yonghong Luo) and an undergraduate student assistant (with effort on the project as detailed the 
Budget Narrative).  Members of the USF team will meet regularly (at least monthly) with the TPO EPA 
grant Project Manager and other project collaborators to facilitate project activities.  



Scope of Work 

A.L. Stuart  April 2023 4 

Deliverables: 
Deliverables are listed and described below: 

1) Regular presentation for the TPO project management team on activities, data, and findings.  This 
will occur during months that another type of presentation is not scheduled, as part of regular 
project meetings. 

2) Presentations for community engagement events, training workshops, and meetings of TPO 
committees.  This will include a presentation for the annual summit/workshop for the involved 
communities and the public.  One to two presentations will occur quarterly in Years one and two. 
In Year three of the project, one presentation is planned each quarter. 

3) Materials for community education and training, including writings, visualizations (graphs, 
pictures, and other images), and (participation in) recordings for the training guidebook, school 
lesson plans, and community engagement event materials. 

4) An annual written report on the progress and findings of the USF team's activities, including maps, 
graphs, and tables of data derived from the community air quality monitors.  A draft written 
report will be provided to the TPO at least 30 days prior to the end of each annual project period; 
each final annual report will be completed and submitted within 30 days of receiving feedback 
from the TPO on the draft. In year 3, the draft written report will be submitted to the TPO 60 days 
prior to the project completion date, and the TPO will provide comments within 30 days of 
receipt. 

Timeline: 
This project is anticipated to begin June 1, 2023, and end February 28, 2026. The timeline of primary 
activities occurring during each quarter of the project period is provided in the table below. The time 
schedule of the project deliverables is listed above. 

 
Activities and milestones: Year 1  Year 2  Year 3 

June-
Aug 

Sept-
Nov 

Dec-
Feb 

Mar-
May 

June
-Aug 

Sept
-Nov 

Dec-
Feb 

Mar-
May 

June
-Aug 

Sept
-Nov 

Dec-
Feb 

Develop/revise QA plans              
Select monitoring equipment              
Deploy community monitors            
Maintain community monitorsa            
Compile, analyze monitor dataa            
Develop guidebook, training, 
and educational materials 

             

Team meetings/ presentations              
Community presentations for 
education/outreach and  
training workshopsb 

             

Assist with quarterly reporting              
Academic product dissemination              
Annual project reports              

aAlso includes existing monitors from the pilot project. 
bIncludes presentation at the Annual Community Summit in the last quarter of each reporting period. 



 

 

Budget Narrative 

Personnel: 

Prof. Amy Stuart, PhD (University Project Director): Dr. Stuart will dedicate 5% effort (2 hours per week) 
to this project during year one, 3.8% effort (1.5 hr/wk) during year two, and 4% effort (1.6 hr/wk) in year 
three (which comprises 9 months only).  She will direct and oversee USF's activities on the project and 
will be the responsible point of contact with the TPO and EPC. Finally, she will contribute to data 
collection, analysis, writing, and revising for dissemination products (presentations, reports, 
manuscripts), and will be a speaker for some of the community outreach presentation deliverables.  
Costs include prorated salary, fringe benefits (including health insurance) and life insurance. 

A graduate-level research associate (Yonghong Luo) will dedicate 25% effort or 10 hours per week (half 
of a full GA appointment) to support this project for 10 months in year one and 12 months in year two.  
This is only a 10-month period (Aug. - May) in year one because Ms. Luo is currently funded through 
Aug. 3, 2023, on a TPO internship. Ms. Luo will be the primary worker on project tasks for USF and will 
coordinate USF's involvement and collaboration with the TPO, EPC, and community partners, under the 
supervision of Dr. Stuart.  Funds budgeted are based on the current salary rate for a doctoral-level 
student assistant with prorated fringe benefits (including health insurance), life insurance, and tuition. 

An undergraduate research assistant (TBN) will support the project for 10 hours per week in year three 
(which comprises 9 months only). S/he will assist in the final year activities, including the community 
engagement events, dissemination, and report writing. Funds budgeted are based on the current salary 
rate for an undergraduate assistant with prorated fringe benefits (including health insurance) and life 
insurance.  

Other Direct Costs: 

Funds are budgeted each year to contribute to USF's direct costs for materials and supplies, journal 
publication fees, and academic conference travel to disseminate project progress and results. We note 
that the funds budgeted here will not fully support these necessary activities but will help to defray a 
portion of these costs for the university researchers. Further, costs for the monitoring equipment, most 
ancillary supplies for monitoring, dissemination materials (such as outreach signage), and other 
community engagement costs will be incurred directly by the TPO for those components (using EPA 
grant funds or other funds). 

Allocation: 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Project Total 
Direct Costs     
Personnel  $29,302   $30,701   $15,458   $75,461  
     Project Director  $13,256   $10,242   $8,426   $31,924  
     Students  $16,046   $20,459   $7,032   $43,537  
Other Direct Costs  $2,698   $1,299   $542   $4,539  
     
Total Direct Costs  $32,000   $32,000   $16,000   $80,000  
Indirect Costs (25%)  $8,000   $8,000   $4,000   $20,000  
Total Budget   $40,000   $40,000   $20,000   $100,000  



 
 

Board & Committee Agenda Item 
Agenda Item 
Annual Certification of Metropolitan Transportation Planning Process 
Presenter 
Johnny Wong, TPO Staff 
Summary 
Metropolitan Planning Organizations are established and funded by federal and state 
laws and rules.  Therefore, many federal and state requirements apply. The federal 
government evaluates our compliance every four years, and a public meeting is held 
at that time. The last such meeting was held in January 2021. 

In between these major review events, the TPO’s planning process must be certified 
annually following federal and state rules through a cooperative review conducted by 
the FDOT District 7 office and the TPO staff and Board. This concludes with a Joint 
TPO/FDOT Certification statement and summary of notable achievements, 
recommendations, and corrective actions. 

Attached is a summary of the certification results and the draft statement to be signed 
upon authorization from the Board. TPO staff will briefly review the notable 
achievements and recommendations. 
Recommended Action 
Support recertification of the TPO and authorize the TPO Chair to sign the Joint 
Certification Statement  
Prepared By 
Johnny Wong, PhD, TPO Staff 
Attachments 
1. Joint Certification Summary 
2. Joint Certification Statement (to be signed by TPO Chair) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


 

Florida Department of Transportation 
RON DESANTIS 

GOVERNOR 
605 Suwannee Street 

Tallahassee, FL  32399-0450 

JARED W. PERDUE, P.E. 
SECRETARY 

 

Improve Safety, Enhance Mobility, Inspire Innovation 
www.fdot.gov 

JOINT MPO/FDOT CERTIFICATION SUMMARY 

Hillsborough County Transportation Planning Organization 

  
The Annual Joint FDOT/MPO Certification for January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022, review was 
conducted on February 17, 2023, as required by federal guidelines to assess the MPO’s compliance with 
the federal transportation planning process and applicable state laws.  The Hillsborough County TPO 
was found to be in compliance with federal and state guidelines for metropolitan transportation 
planning. 
The following is a summary of the Department’s findings: 
 
Notable Achievements 

The Hillsborough TPO is proud to showcase its recently completed work products, many of which we 
believe can be regarded as noteworthy. 
 

 APA Florida Chapter, 2022 Award of Excellence: Future Leaders in Planning (FLiP) Junior Program 

 US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 2022 Community Air Pollution Monitoring Grant 

 APA 2022 State of Transportation Planning Report: Hillsborough TPO Non-Discrimination & Equity 
Plan of 2021 

 Hillsborough TPO/Hillsborough Planning Commission awarded League of American Bicyclists’ 
“Bicycle Friendly Business” Award 

 Pilot Program to increase public involvement in TIP Amendments 

 TIP Prioritization Methodology for Environmental Justice Communities  

 Tampa School Transportation Safety Study 

 Safe Access to Park Study 

 Implementation of Long-Range Transportation Plan’s Complete Streets projects 

 Storm Evacuation & Shelter-In-Place Scenarios Study 

 Initial Supply Chain Resilience Study 
 

Recommended Actions 

 

 The TPO shall continue to coordinate with the District Liaisons during the procurement of their 

General Planning Consultant contracts to ensure compliance with all terms and conditions of the 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Agreement (Section 15, 16, 17), and all federal, state, and local 

laws and regulations applicable to the TPO’s agreement.   

 The TPO should continue to educate the TPO Board and Committees on the TPO’s roles and 

responsibilities as they relate to transportation planning and project prioritization processes. 

 

Corrective Actions 

 None 



 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

MPO JOINT CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
525-010-05c 

POLICY PLANNING 
02/18 

 

 
 

 Office of Policy Planning  1 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of 23 U.S.C. 134(k)(5) and 23 CFR 450.334(a), the Department 
and the MPO have performed a review of the certification status of the metropolitan 
transportation planning process for the Hillsborough County MPO with respect to the 
requirements of: 

 
1.  23 U.S.C. 134 and 49 U.S.C. 5303; 

2. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d-1) and 49 C.F.R. Part 21 

3. 49 U.S.C. 5332 prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, 
or age in employment or business opportunity; 

4. Section 1101(b) of the FAST Act and 49 C.F.R. Part 26 regarding the involvement of 
disadvantaged business enterprises in USDOT funded projects; 

5. 23 C.F.R. Part 230 regarding the implementation of an equal employment opportunity program 
on Federal and Federal-aid highway construction contracts; 

6. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) and the 
regulations found in 49 C.F.R. Parts 27, 37, and 38; 

7. The Older Americans Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101) prohibiting discrimination on the basis 
of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance; 

8. Section 324 of 23 U.S.C. regarding the prohibition of discrimination on the basis of gender; and 

9. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and 49 C.F.R. Part 27 regarding 
discrimination against individuals with disabilities. 

 
Included in this certification package is a summary of noteworthy achievements by the MPO, 
attachments associated with these achievements, and (if applicable) a list of any 
recommendations and/or corrective actions. The contents of this Joint Certification Package 
have been reviewed by the MPO and accurately reflect the results of the joint certification review 
meeting held on March 27, 2023. 

 
Based on a joint review and evaluation, the Florida Department of Transportation and the 
Hillsborough County MPO recommend that the Metropolitan Planning Process for the 
Hillsborough County MPO be certified. 

 
 
         
Name:  David Gwynn, P.E. Date 

Title: District Secretary (or designee)   
 
         
Name:  Gwen Myers Date 

Title: MPO Chairman (or designee) 



 
 

Board & Committee Agenda Item 
Agenda Item: 
Memorandum of Understanding on Creating a Tampa Bay MPO 

Presenter: 
Elizabeth Watkins, TPO Staff 
Summary: 
For about 30 years there has been a periodic discussion about forming a regional 
metropolitan planning organization (MPO) to serve the Tampa-St. Petersburg 
urbanized area that comprises most of Pinellas, Pasco and Hillsborough Counties. 
Whether stemming from the Governor of Florida, the business community, or local 
elected officials, the impetus for creating a single regional transportation planning body 
for the Tampa Bay area is to better harness the collective strength of the region to 
garner more funding from federal, state, and local sources and advance significant 
transportation projects to better support the region’s growth and sustain its quality of 
life. That notion is often countered by the different needs for transportation based on 
geography, land use patterns and trends, and distinct socioeconomic considerations 
among the three counties. 

With the dissolution of the Tampa Bay Area Regional Transit Authority and a sense 
that the Tampa Bay area is not competing effectively for funding with other regions in 
Florida and elsewhere, there continues to be a push to form a regional planning and 
decision-making body for transportation. To address these calls and draft bills filed by 
the Florida legislature, the staff directors of the three MPOs have worked in partnership 
to draft a Memorandum of Understanding that sets forth a framework and necessary 
steps for the creation of a regional MPO. The draft MOU puts key provisions and 
considerations in writing to advance the conversation toward achieving this objective 
in a reasonable time frame. 

The Tampa Bay Transportation Management Area (TMA) Leadership Group 
discussed the draft MOU at its meeting on March 24th.  The majority of members spoke 
in support of advancing the MOU, with a few revisions, to the respective MPOs and 
local governments for their consideration. 

Recommended Action: 
Support the working draft MOU for comment from local governments and the public. 
 
Prepared By: 
Elizabeth Watkins, AICP, TPO Staff 
Attachments: 
1. Creating a Tampa Bay MPO - MOU 
2. Presentation Slides 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/MOU-on-Creating-a-Tampa-Bay-MPO.pdf
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


1 
Draft Memorandum of Understanding Concerning the Formation of a Regional MPO for the Tampa Bay Area  

 

Creating a Tampa Bay Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Among 

The Hillsborough Transportation Planning Organization, The Pasco Transportation Planning 
Organization and Forward Pinellas 

 

Updated Working Draft 

March 27, 2023 

 

Whereas, the Hillsborough Transportation Planning Organization (TPO), the Pasco County TPO and 
Forward Pinellas (the “Parties”) collectively desire to create a Tampa Bay Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) to improve regional transportation planning and define regional transportation 
priorities by entering into the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU);  

Whereas, the Tampa Bay metropolitan area of Pasco, Pinellas and Hillsborough County has a combined 
population of 3.5 million and is projected to grow by more than one million people over the next 20 
years;  

Whereas, the Pasco, Pinellas and Hillsborough County MPOs or TPOs all function within the single 
Tampa-St. Petersburg Urban Area that covers much of the population within all three counties;  

Whereas, since 1990 the State of Florida has requested that the three MPOs in the urban area 
consolidate into a single MPO unless they can sufficiently justify why they need to remain separate due 
to their complexity, unique conditions, and diversity within the region while also fostering a strong 
cooperative regional transportation planning process that addresses shared data, identifying regional 
needs, coordinated project development, and establishment of regional transportation priorities;  

Whereas, the West Central Florida Chairs Coordinating Committee is established in state statutes (now 
Sun Coast Transportation Planning Alliance or SCTPA) and has interlocal agreements among the six 
MPOs serving the broader West Central Florida region and a subcommittee known as the Tampa Bay 
Transportation Management Area Leadership Group (TMA LG) serving the Pasco, Pinellas and 
Hillsborough MPOs that establish such a regional coordination and prioritization process;  

Whereas, the pending sunset of the Tampa Bay Area Regional Transit Authority (TBARTA) will leave a 
void in regional transportation planning and project development, without dedicated staff and a 
governing board assigned to advance regional transportation activities and priorities;  

Whereas, the process for forming a new regional MPO involved a number of steps to create required 
establishing planning documents as well as changing the hosting arrangements and MPO boundaries. As 
there is little precedent in Florida to rely on for guidance regarding de-designating an MPO, it will be 
important from a federal transportation funding cashflow to have a new MPO fully up and running at 
such time as existing MPOs are de-designated;  



2 
Draft Memorandum of Understanding Concerning the Formation of a Regional MPO for the Tampa Bay Area  

 

Whereas, MPOs receive federal planning funds through quarterly reimbursement that come with 
federal and state restrictions on how those funds may be used, there will need to be a substantial and 
long-term local commitment to provide sustainable and flexible funding for a regional MPO to be 
effective;  

Whereas, the Florida Department of Transportation has committed through its approved Planning 
Funds (PL) distribution formula in 2014 that any MPOs in Florida that merge will continue to receive the 
base amount of PL due to each MPO prior to the merger. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN RECOGNITION OF THE FOREGOING, the involved MPOs hereby jointly 
understand, agree and commit as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this MOU is to document the mutual understanding between the Parties and to set forth 
the terms for their cooperation.  

ARTICLE 2. AGREEMENTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES  

A. The Pasco, Pinellas and Hillsborough County MPOs agree to investigate the formation, 
organizational and governance structure of a new regional MPO to serve the urban area of 
Pasco, Pinellas and Hillsborough Counties as reflected by the 2020 Census, with the goal of 
certifying the MPO by July 1, 2027. Other key steps toward formation may occur sooner 
than that date. 
 

B. A regional MPO serving these counties will augment and enhance the current functions of 
the existing MPOs in the urban area as currently represented by the Pasco MPO, Forward 
Pinellas and the Hillsborough TPO. It is important that while a regional MPO may provide a 
stronger and more collaborative regional focus and planning process that at the same time 
the existing long range transportation planning responsibilities be maintained at the county 
level for sub-regional, jurisdiction focused projects to avoid creating a local void in planning 
and technical assistance activities. 

 
C. A regional MPO must reflect proportional representation on its governing board based on 

the population of local governments within the MPO planning boundary, consistent with 
Florida Statutes that place requirements on the total number of voting members and the 
percentage that must represent the respective Boards of County Commissioners. 

 
D. The governance structure of a regional MPO may include representatives of transportation 

agencies as voting members, but their inclusion will reduce the number of local government 
elected officials as voting members on the governing board. 

 
E. Outreach to all local governments in the Metropolitan Planning Area is an important step in 

the regional MPO formation process and individual MPOs will develop a coordinated 
presentation and engagement strategy to fully inform and seek input from all affected local 
governments.  

 



3 
Draft Memorandum of Understanding Concerning the Formation of a Regional MPO for the Tampa Bay Area  

 

F. The formation and certification of a new regional MPO will require the creation and 
adoption of multiple planning, development and policy documents for the region that are 
consistent with federal and state laws and regulations, including: 
a. Apportionment Plan that describes to voting representation of the MPO’s regional 

planning boundary and member local governments 
b. Unified Planning Work Program (a two-year budget of planning activities) 
c. Long Range Transportation Plan (20-25 year financially feasible plan for transportation) 
d. Public Participation Plan (how it will involve the public in decision-making) 
e. Transportation Improvement Program (a five-year work plan for transportation projects 

with funding by phase) 
f. Congestion Management Process (a strategic means of evaluating the causes and 

strategies for improving traffic congestion) 
g. Title VI process and Continuity of Operations Plan (addressing ADA complaints and 

emergency operations) 
h. Interlocal agreements and/or staff services agreements with one or more host agencies 

(if the MPO is not fully independent), and interlocal agreements to receive funding and 
provide planning services to any number of local governments in the region. 
 

G. Those planning products shall reflect the work of the individual MPOs currently in place but 
will need to be substantially revised and restructured to reflect the new planning 
boundaries of the MPO as a truly regional entity covering the tri-county urban area. 
 

H. The MPOs in their current formation have demonstrated competent leadership and 
effectiveness in planning for countywide and local transportation needs and priorities in 
their respective planning areas, building trust and collaborative partnerships with local 
community stakeholders and land use planning agencies that will need to be sustained with 
the formation of a regional MPO. Therefore, the regional MPO will consider staff services 
agreements with the planning agency in each county to support outreach and engagement 
as well as coordination on land use, transportation operations and safety. 

 
I. As each existing MPO is currently hosted by another agency, the impacts to those agencies 

and their staffs should be considered; the interlocal agreements with those organizations 
will need to be updated.  Those existing host agencies may present an opportunity for 
continuing long range transportation planning at a county or jurisdictional level.  

 
J. There will be substantial start-up costs to form a regional MPO based on case study 

examples elsewhere in the United States requiring funding to hire staff, secure office space, 
purchase equipment and produce necessary planning products and administrative 
documents. 

 
K. A regional MPO will need a recurring local funding source from member agencies or the 

host local government to develop a budget pay for staff salaries, planning activities, facilities 
and other related administration costs to augment federal and state funds that are paid on a 
quarterly reimbursement.  



4 
Draft Memorandum of Understanding Concerning the Formation of a Regional MPO for the Tampa Bay Area  

 

 
L. To retain and continue to attract quality staff for transportation planning through what may 

be a multi-year transition period, existing staff at the time of formation of a regional MPO 
will be offered positions with the new MPO and with their county governments/planning 
agencies. 

ARTICLE 3. TERM 

The term of this MOU shall commence on the date the last signature is obtained (“Effective Date”) and 
shall continue in effect until one or more parties terminates the MOU or a new MPO interlocal 
agreement is in place.  

 

 ARTICLE 4. TERMINATION 

This MOU may be terminated upon written agreement by the Parties with a 30-day notice. 

 

 ARTICLE 5. AMENDMENTS 

This MOU may be amended, in writing, at any time if the Parties agree.  

 

ARTICLE 6. NOTICES 

If to Hillsborough TPO:                             If to Pasco TPO: If to Forward Pinellas: 
Beth Alden             Carl Mikyska          Whit Blanton 
601 E Kennedy Blvd, 18th Floor           8731 Citizens Drive, Suite 360       310 Court Street, 2nd Floor 
Tampa, FL 33602            New Port Richey, FL 34654                  Clearwater, FL 33756 
 
ARTICLE 7. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

This MOU shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any action filed regarding this MOU 
shall be filed in the county of one of the Parties, or if in Federal Court, the Middle District of Florida, 
Tampa Division.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF AND AS APPROVED BY EACH MPO on the date shown below: 

 

 

 

 

 



5 
Draft Memorandum of Understanding Concerning the Formation of a Regional MPO for the Tampa Bay Area  

 

HILLSBOROUGH TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

 

BY:__________________________________________________ 

        Commissioner Gwen Myers, Chair 

 

Date:_________________________________________________ 

 

 

PASCO TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

 

BY:__________________________________________________ 

        Councilmember Matthew Murphy, Chair 

 

Date:_________________________________________________ 

 

 

FORWARD PINELLAS 

 

BY:__________________________________________________ 

        Commissioner Janet Long, Chair 

 

Date:_________________________________________________ 

  

 

 

 



Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item 
US 41/CSX Grade Separation Project Development & Environment Study (440746-1) 
Presenter 
FDOT Representative 
Summary 
In 2019, the TPO supported an amendment to the 2019-2023 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) adding $1.45 million in funds for a Project Development 
& Environment (PD&E) Study for a grade-separation project (also known as a rail 
overpass) on US 41/50th St at the CSX tracks near Causeway Blvd.  
This project is listed in the current 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) as a 
major capacity project for economic growth and is a priority of the TPO.  According to 
the Freight Investment Program Technical Memorandum for the LRTP, this crossing 
has 31 trains per day, with an average delay of 8–10 minutes per crossing.  This project 
is considered a major investment to relieve congestion for highway and freight traffic, 
is located within the fastest growing portion of Hillsborough County and is of regional 
significance. 
The project is also a statewide priority of the Florida MPO Advisory Committee 
(MPOAC) Freight and Rail Program, nominated by the Hillsborough TPO.   
Recommended Action 
None. For information only. 
Prepared By 
Wade Reynolds, TPO Staff 
Attachments 
Project Webpage 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602

https://active.fdotd7studies.com/us41/csx-to-sr676/
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


1

Beth Alden

Subject: Fowler Ave from Bruce B Downs to Riverhills - Virtual Public Hearing 

From: Carson, Kristen <Kristen.Carson@dot.state.fl.us>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 3:06 PM 
Subject: SR 582/E. Fowler Avenue from west of Bruce B Downs Blvd. to west of Riverhills Drive ‐ Virtual Public Hearing  
 

  Dear Elected Officials and Staff: 
 

The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), District Seven, invites you to attend and participate in a Virtual 
Public Meeting covering upcoming access changes to SR 582/ East Fowler Avenue in Tampa, Hillsborough County, 
Florida. The public meeting will be held on May 4, 2023 at 5 p.m.  
 
FDOT is proposing improvements to SR 582/E. Fowler Avenue from west of Bruce B Downs Blvd. to west of 
Riverhills Drive as part of a resurfacing project.  To enhance safety, the project proposes the closure of the westbound 
left-turn movement at N. 53rd Street to be included with signalization and pedestrian crossing at the existing directional 
median opening at the SR 582/E. Fowler Avenue and N. 52nd Street intersection.    
 
To allow for maximum participation, the public meeting will be held in three formats including live online, at an in-
person location, and by phone (in listen-only mode). The information presented will be identical at all options. 
 
Live Online: Register at http://bitly.ws/CFVf to attend virtually at 5 p.m. and view the project presentation, followed 
by an opportunity for comments and questions with the project team. The presentation will then for those who may 
have joined at a later time, followed by a second opportunity for comments and questions.  
 
Phone:  Call in to join in listen-only mode: +1 (914) 614-3221 and provide the Access Code: 180-888-380 to join.  

In-person: Attend the drive-thru in person anytime from 5 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. at: 
Temple Terrace Family Recreation Complex, 6610 Whiteway Dr, Temple Terrace, FL 33617 
Drive-thru attendees will be directed into a clearly identified parking lot, receive project information, and view the 
project presentation on a tablet. You will have the opportunity for comments and questions for the project team. 
 
Written or emailed comments may also be submitted following the meeting to Eyra.Cash@dot.state.fl.us  or mailed to 
Eyra Cash, Project Contact, Florida Department of Transportation, 11201 North McKinley Drive, Tampa, FL 33612 or 
by phone at (813) 975-6164. Comments received or postmarked by May 14, 2023 will be included in the official 
meeting record. 

 
This meeting is held pursuant to Chapters 120, 335.18 and 335.199, Florida Statutes. Public participation is solicited 
without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status. Persons requiring special 
accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act to participate in this meeting, or persons who require 
translation services (free of charge) are asked to advise the agency at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting by 
contacting: Roger Roscoe, FDOT Title VI Coordinator, at (813) 975-6411 or 1+(800) 226-7220 (ex. 6411), or 
Roger.Roscoe@dot.state.fl.us. 
 
El Departamento de Transporte de la Florida (FDOT), Distrito Siete, lo invita a asistir y participar en una reunión 
pública virtual que cubre los próximos cambios de acceso a las mejoras de la intersección de la SR 582/E. Fowler 
Avenue, en Tampa, Condado de Hillsborough, Florida. Esta reunión pública se llevará a cabo el 4 de mayo de 2023 a 
las 5 p.m. Si usted tiene preguntas o commentarios o si simplemente desea más información sobre este proyecto, favor 



2

de ponerse en contacto con nuestro representante el señor Manuel Flores al teléfono (813) 975-4248 o correo 
electrónico manuel.flores@dot.state.fl.us. 

 
 

Sincerely, 
Donald Marco, P.E. 
Access Management Engineer, District 7 
(813) 975-6054 
Donald.Marco@dot.state.fl.us 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



1

Beth Alden

From: Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations <communications+ampo.org@ccsend.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 27, 2023 3:30 PM
To: Beth Alden
Subject: FHWA Grant Program NOFO & Ferry Boat Program Update

FHWA Grant Program NOFO & 
Ferry Boat Program Update 

April 27, 2023 

Good afternoon, 

The FHWA announced and posted the Reduction of Truck Emissions at Port Facilities Grant 
Program Notice of Funding Opportunity. 

The NOFO will award up to $160 million in grants, which represents the combined amounts 
authorized for this program for fiscal years 2022 and 2023. Please keep in mind that this 
funding total is subject to administrative takedowns and on the trust fund side a limitation on 
obligations, so the actual total amount available to make grants is likely to be lower than the 
$160M. 

The FHWA will host an informational session regarding this funding opportunity. This session 
will be conducted as a virtual forum and will focus on specific topics to help potential 
applicants gather additional information and ask specific questions. FHWA encourages 
potential applicants to take advantage of this opportunity to gather information regarding this 
specific funding opportunity. 
DATE: TBD 
TIME: 1:00 pm Eastern Time 
INFORMATION AND REGISTRATION: To Be Determined. 

Highlights: 
Applications Due by 6/26/2023. 

Obligation and expenditure - The $30M in FY 2022 Highway Infrastructure Program general 
funds (advanced appropriations) from the U.S. Treasury must be expended by September 
30, 2030. The $30M in FY 2023 Highway Infrastructure Programs general funds from the 
U.S. Treasury must be expended by September 30, 2031. Funds authorized out of the HTF 
do not have an expenditure deadline. 

No minimum or maximum award amount for FY 2022 and FY 2023 RTEPF Grant Program 
award. 



2

  
Eligible applicants - Eligible applicants are entities that 1) have authority over, operate, or 
utilize port facilities and/or intermodal port transfer facilities, 2) have authority over areas 
within or adjacent to ports and intermodal port transfer facilities, or 3) will test and/or evaluate 
technologies that reduce truck emissions at port facilities and/or intermodal port transfer 
facilities. 
  
20% non-federal match is required. 
  
Eligible project locations include - for deployment projects include areas within or adjacent to 
ports and intermodal port transfer facilities. Testing and evaluation projects can be conducted 
anywhere but must be focused on reducing truck emissions within or adjacent to ports and/or 
intermodal port transfer facilities. Intermodal port transfer facilities are facilities that handle 
the transfer of freight shipments between two or more modes of transportation. The goods 
are transported via shipping containers, truck trailers, or as bulk cargo, and are transferred 
between marine vessels and trucks, marine vessels and rail cars, or rail cars and trucks. 
 
Additional FAQs that you may find helpful can be found here.  

Implementation of the FHWA Ferry Boat Program (Formula) 
 
On April 21, the FHWA introduced the Implementation Guidance for the Ferry Boat 
Program (FBP). 
  
The purpose of the FBP is to provide Federal assistance for the construction of ferry boats 
and ferry terminal facilities (including ferry maintenance facilities), whether toll or free, and the 
procurement of transit vehicles used exclusively as an integral part of an intermodal ferry trip. 
  
The FBP funds authorized by the IIJA/BIL will be distributed according to a formula 
established in law. 

 35% shall be allocated among eligible entities in the proportion that (A) the 
number of ferry passengers, including passengers in vehicles, carried by each 
ferry system in the most recent calendar year for which data is available; bears 
to (B) the number of ferry passengers, including passengers in vehicles, 
carried by all ferry systems in the most recent calendar year for which data is 
available; 

 35% shall be allocated among eligible entities in the proportion that (A) the 
number of vehicles carried by each ferry system in the most recent calendar 
year for which data is available; bears to (B) the number of vehicles carried by 
all ferry systems in the most recent calendar year for which data is available; 
and 

 30% shall be allocated among eligible entities in the proportion that (A) the 
total route nautical miles serviced by each ferry system in the most recent 
calendar year for which data is available; bears to (B) the total route nautical 
miles serviced by all ferry systems in the most recent calendar year for which 
data is available. 

  
FBP Factsheet can be found by clicking the 'related documents' tab here. 
  
Please contact AMPO staff if you have any questions. 

Thank you, 
 



1

Logo Design Contest: Florida Gulf Coast Trail

We Need Your Help!

Florida DEP and Trust for Public Land will launch a 
design contest and public vote to create a logo for 
the Florida Gulf Coast Trail. The winning design will 
become the iconic visual symbol for the trail and 
appear up and down the trail’s length. The winning 
artist will receive a $5,000 prize!

The Florida Gulf Coast Trail will be a 336-mile long 
destination trail crossing seven southwest Florida 
coastal counties. And we want to give the people of 
Florida a voice in the future of this trail. That’s why 
we’ll launch a design contest on National Trails Day 
(June 3, 2023) and then a public vote on the top 
designs in October 2023 during Florida Greenways 
and Trails month.

Here’s Where You Come In

We’re asking our trusted partners to get involved in 
promoting this competition to your networks across 
social media, email, and at your events.

Key dates

• June 1 (or sooner) We’ll send you a digital toolkit
to begin promoting the call for artists to submit
their logo designs.

• October 1: We’ll send you another digital toolkit
to help promote the public vote on the top
designs.

Questions? Contact Charles.Hines@tpl.org. 
Program Director, Florida Gulf Coast Trail.

https://www.tpl.org/our-work/florida-gulf-coast-trail
mailto:Charles.Hines@tpl.org


1

Cheryl Wilkening

Subject: FL MPO Advisory Council Legislative Update
Attachments: Policy_Planning_Tracking_2023-04-28.xlsx

 
 

From: Reichert, Mark <Mark.Reichert@dot.state.fl.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2023 10:07:10 AM 
Subject: Legislative Update  
  
Good morning, Governing Board members and Staff Directors.  This is a little later than usual, but attached is the 2023 
Legislative Session Bill Tracker spreadsheet.  After Session ends, I’ll send out a much more detailed summary, here is 
where we stand today on the primary transportation bills.   
  
SB 1250/HB 1305, the Department’s Transport Bills were brought into alignment.  In a nutshell, they will accomplish the 
following:  

 Provides that automated license plate recognition systems may not be used to issue a notice of 
violation for a traffic infraction or a uniform traffic citation.  

 Makes the provision currently in the bill regarding airport siting effective upon the bill becoming a law.  
 Authorizes DOT to enter into phased design‐build contracts.  
 This bill also includes provisions on temporary airports.  
 Language that reinstates the Greater Miami Expressway Authority and alters the qualifications of the 

board.  
 Includes a requirement that fixed‐guideway transportation systems structural safety inspections must 

be done by the Department.   
The Senate took up the House version, amended, then passed it.  It is now in returning messages to the House. 
  
SB 64/HB 425, the industry’s transportation bills.  The bills accomplish many things, but in summary they:   

 Expand Florida’s existing Move Over Law to include disabled motor vehicles.  
 Require the Department of Transportation (DOT) to establish standards by which the State Highway 

System will be graded according to their compatibility with the operation of autonomous vehicles.  
 Revise provisions regarding airport land use compatibility zoning regulations and noise studies at 

airports.  
 Require DOT contracts for bridge work over navigable waters to require a marine general liability 

insurance provision in an amount determined by DOT.  
 Require DOT to implement strategies to reduce project costs while still meeting applicable federal and 

state standards.  
 Authorize DOT to share up to 10 percent of construction cost savings with design and engineering 

consultants whose input was involved in realizing the cost savings.  
 Provide that stipends paid by DOT to nonselected design‐build firms that have submitted responsive 

proposals for construction contracts, which stipends are contained in DOT’s legislatively approved 
work program, are not subject to specified documentation and notification requirements.  

 Repeal a public records exemption for documents that reveal the identity of a person who has 
requested or obtained a bid package, plan, or specifications pertaining to any project to be let by DOT. 

 Authorize specific information panels to be placed on rights‐of‐way if specified conditions are met.  



2

 Authorize DOT to request legislative approval of a proposed turnpike project regardless of how 
complete the project’s design phase is.  

 Encourage the consolidation of and cooperation between Metropolitan Planning Organizations 
(MPOs).  

 Require a report regarding the consolidation of the MPOs serving Hillsborough, Pasco, and Pinellas 
Counties.  

 Revise provisions regarding the Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory Council (but keeps the 
MPOAC independent).  

 Authorize DOT to use $5 million from the State Transportation Trust Fund for workforce development.  
 Require DOT to make $20 million available each year to provide for the movement and storage of 

aggregate. 
The House version of this bill was passed and sent to the Senate on the 26th.  The Senate version has been 
placed on the Senate Special Order Calendar.   
  
The Department is fully funded in the Appropriations bill at $14.8 billion.  This includes $400.7 million in 
General Revenue funds allocated for local transportation projects.   
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
  

  
Mark E. Reichert, Executive Director 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory Council 
Office: 850‐414‐4062 
Work Cell:  850‐545‐1890 
Personal Cell:  850‐556‐5751 
  



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

Bill Title Sponsor Summary Committee of Reference Actions Related Bills Notes FDOT Planning 
Commented

HB 1611 City of Bartow, Polk County Bell
City of Bartow, Polk County: Creates Clear Springs Stewardship District; 
provides charter. Effective Date: October 1, 2023

4/27/2023 HOUSE - Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote 116 Yeas / 0 Nays); In messages 

Added to spreadsheet; 
mention of FDOT 

SB 0102 Housing Calatayud

Housing; Citing this act as the "Live Local Act"; deleting the authority of local 
governments to adopt or maintain laws, ordinances, rules, or other measures 
that would have the effect of imposing controls on rents; providing an 
exemption from ad valorem taxation for land that meets certain criteria; 
authorizing local governments to adopt ordinances to provide an ad valorem 
tax exemption for portions of property used to provide affordable housing 
meeting certain requirements; suspending, for a specified period, the 
General Revenue Fund service charge on documentary stamp tax 
collections; authorizing the Governor, under the Florida Job Growth Grant 
Fund, to approve state or local public infrastructure projects to facilitate the 
development or construction of affordable housing, etc. APPROPRIATION: 
$711,000,000 Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
act and except for this section, which shall take effect upon becoming a law, 
this act shall take effect July 1, 2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Appropriations

Compare
SB 0220 (Rodriguez) - 01/18/2023 SENATE 
Withdrawn prior to introduction
HB 0229 (Cross) - 01/25/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Ways & Means Committee 
HB 0771 (Nixon) - 03/01/2023 HOUSE 
Withdrawn prior to introduction
SB 0772 (Davis) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Appropriations
HB 1407 (Eskamani) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in State Affairs Committee 
SB 1658 (Torres, Jr.) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Governmental 
Oversight and Accountability; Fiscal Policy
Identical
HB 0627 (Busatta Cabrera) - 03/23/2023 
HOUSE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 0102; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 0102

Chapter No. 2023-17

SB 0106 Florida Shared-Use 
Nonmotorized Trail Network Brodeur

Florida Shared-Use Nonmotorized Trail Network; Authorizing the Department 
of Environmental Protection to establish a program to recognize specified 
local communities as trail towns; revising the composition of the board of 
directors of the Florida Tourism Industry Marketing Corporation; extending 
the Florida Shared-Use Nonmotorized Trail Network to lands of the Florida 
wildlife corridor; increasing the amount the Department of Transportation is 
required to allocate for purposes of funding and maintaining projects within 
the Florida Shared-Use Nonmotorized Trail Network, etc. APPROPRIATION: 
$200,000,000 Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations

Identical
HB 0915 (Botana) - 03/10/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Appropriations Committee

Chapter No. 2023-20 Yes

HB 1489
Designation of Brevard Barrier 
Island Area as Area of Critical 
State Concern

Altman

Designation of Brevard Barrier Island Area as Area of Critical State Concern: 
Designates Brevard Barrier Island Area as area of critical state concern; 
provides guiding principles for development within area; provides for removal 
of designation; providing construction. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(859015); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 115 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/27/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules
04/27/2023 SENATE  Withdrawn from Rules; Placed on 
Calendar, on 2nd reading; Substituted for SB 1686; Read 
Second Time; Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 38 Yeas / 0 
Nays)
04/27/2023 HOUSE Ordered enrolled
04/28/2023 HOUSE Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

Similar
SB 1686 (Wright) - 04/27/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 1489; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 1489

Enrolled Text

HB 0125 Utility System Rate Base 
Values McClain

Utility System Rate Base Values: Establishes alternative procedure by which 
PSC may establish rate base value for certain acquired utility systems; 
requires that approved rate base value be reflected in acquiring utility's next 
general rate case for ratemaking purposes; establishes procedure for 
appraisal of acquired utility system; provides contents required for petition to 
PSC for approval of rate base value of acquired utility system; provides 
duties of PSC regarding petitions; authorizes PSC to set rates for & classify 
certain acquired utility systems; requires PSC to take certain factors into 
consideration for certain rate base value petitions; requires PSC to adopt 
rules. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 112 Yeas / 2 Nays)
04/27/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
04/27/2023 SENATE Withdrawn from Fiscal Policy; Placed on 
Calendar, on 2nd reading; Substituted for SB 0194; Read 
Second Time; Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 37 Yeas / 0 
Nays); Reconsidered; Passed (Vote: 38 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 HOUSE Ordered enrolled
04/28/2023 HOUSE Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

Identical
SB 0194 (Hooper) - 04/27/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0125; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0125

Enrolled Text



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 1068 Drone Delivery Services Collins

Drone Delivery Services; Prohibiting a political subdivision from taking certain 
actions against a drone delivery service based on the location of its drone 
port; authorizing a political subdivision to enforce certain regulations relating 
to setback and landscaping; exempting drone ports from the Florida Building 
Code; exempting drone ports from certain provisions of the Florida Fire 
Prevention Code, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Community Affairs
Senate Rules

04/24/2023 HOUSE Received; Referred to House Calendar
04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Substituted for HB 1071; Read Second 
Time; Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 110 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 SENATE Ordered enrolled
04/27/2023 SENATE Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

Identical
HB 1071 (Duggan) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 1068; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 1068

Enrolled Text

HB 0341
911 Public Safety 
Telecommunicator 
Certifications

Amesty

911 Public Safety Telecommunicator Certifications: Increases timeframe 
within which inactive 911 public safety telecommunicator certificate may be 
reactivated before it permanently expires; removes process by which 
certificateholder may voluntarily place his or her certificate in inactive status; 
prohibits DOH from requiring certificateholders to pay fee or to make election 
to place their certificates in inactive status, beginning on specified date; 
requires that certain fees paid by certificateholder before specified date be 
credited toward any future renewal fees required to be paid by 
certificateholder. Effective Date: upon becoming a law 

House Healthcare Regulation 
Subcommittee
House Health & Human Services 
Committee

04/26/2023 SENATE  Withdrawn from Rules; Placed on 
Calendar, on 2nd reading; Substituted for SB 0980; Read 
Second Time; Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 39 Yeas / 0 
Nays)
04/26/2023 HOUSE Ordered enrolled
04/26/2023 HOUSE Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

Identical
SB 0980 (Brodeur) - 04/26/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0341; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0341

Enrolled Text

HB 1221 Broadband Internet Service 
Providers Tomkow

Broadband Internet Service Providers: Specifies that poles of rural electric 
cooperatives that are engaged in provision of broadband are subject to 
regulation by PSC; authorizes PSC to access books & records of such 
cooperatives for specified purposes; provides that such information that 
contains proprietary confidential business information retains its confidential 
or exempt status when held by PSC; authorizes rural electric cooperatives to 
engage in provision of broadband. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee
House State Administration & Technology 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

04/26/2023 SENATE  Withdrawn from Rules; Placed on 
Calendar, on 2nd reading; Substituted for SB 0626; Read 
Second Time; Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 39 Yeas / 0 
Nays)
04/26/2023 HOUSE Ordered enrolled
04/26/2023 HOUSE Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

Identical
SB 0626 (DiCeglie) - 04/26/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 1221; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 1221

Enrolled Text

SB 948 Records Electronically Filed 
with the Department of State Grall

Records Electronically Filed with the Department of State; Authorizing the 
department to implement certain systems relating to electronically filed 
records; providing requirements and authorizations for the department 
relating to such systems, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

4/25/23 Substituted for HB 0909; Read Second Time; Placed 
on Third Reading, 04/26/23 Read Third Time; Passed (116 
Yeas / 0 Nays) 4/27/2023 Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

Enrolled Text

HB 0155 Tampa Bay Area Regional 
Transit Authority Holcomb

Tampa Bay Area Regional Transit Authority: Dissolves TBARTA; provides for 
discharge of liabilities & assumption of outstanding liabilities; requires 
TBARTA to settle & close its affairs & transfer pending activities; requires 
closure & dispensing of federal & state funds; provides for distribution of 
TBARTA's remaining assets; requires notification of final dissolution; requires 
forwarding of TBARTA records. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Similar
SB 0198 (DiCeglie) - 04/19/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0155; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0155

Enrolled Text

SB 7006 OGSR/Nationwide Public 
Safety Broadband Network

Governmental 
Oversight and 
Accountability

OGSR/Nationwide Public Safety Broadband Network; Amending a provision 
which provides an exemption from public records requirements for certain 
information held by an agency relating to the Nationwide Public Safety 
Broadband Network; removing the scheduled repeal of the exemption, etc. 
Effective Date: 10/1/2023

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Rules

Identical
HB 7001 (Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee) - 03/23/2023 
HOUSE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 7006; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 7006

Enrolled Text

HB 0003 Government and Corporate 
Activism Rommel

Government and Corporate Activism: Revises provisions relating to deposits 
& investments of state money, retirement system & trust fund assets, & 
public funds; defined contribution plans; bonds; government contracts; 
financial institutions; consumer finance; money services businesses; & unfair 
& deceptive trade practices. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Commerce Committee
House State Affairs Committee

Identical
SB 0302 (Grall) - 04/18/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0003; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0003

Enrollled Text

SB 1418 Emergency Communications Bradley

Emergency Communications; Renaming the E911 Board as the Emergency 
Communications Board; authorizing the board to establish schedules for 
implementing certain NG911 systems and improvements; revising the 
composition of a committee that reviews requests for proposals from the 
board regarding independent accounting firm selections; extending the date 
by which the Division of Telecommunications within the Department of 
Management Services must develop a plan to upgrade 911 public safety 
answering points, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Regulated Industries
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 19 
Yeas, 0 Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C3) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23
04/28/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Amendment 
Adopted (273744); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 37 Yeas 
/ 0 Nays)
04/28/2023 SENATE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed

Similar
HB 0745 (McFarland) - 04/14/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 1070 License Taxes Hooper

License Taxes; Imposing specified additional annual license taxes on electric 
vehicles; imposing specified additional annual license tax on plug-in hybrid 
electric vehicles; authorizing persons and entities to biennially renew vehicle 
registrations for electric vehicles and plug-in hybrid electric vehicles; 
specifying requirements for the use of the proceeds by local governments; 
providing for future expiration, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Appropriations

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable by Appropriations; 19 Yeas, 0 
Nays
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23
04/28/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Amendment 
Failed (751370); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 39 Yeas / 
0 Nays)
04/28/2023 HOUSE In Messages



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 0838 Proceeds Funding Motorcycle 
Safety Education Collins

Proceeds Funding Motorcycle Safety Education; Requiring that the 
motorcycle safety education fee be used for a safety and education program 
administered by Florida not-for-profit corporations; specifying requirements 
for the administrators of such program; requiring the Department of Highway 
Safety and Motor Vehicles to enter into certain contracts for a specified 
purpose; specifying the requirements of the safety awareness and education 
programs; requiring the department to select program administrators and 
enter into specified contracts by a specified date, etc. Effective Date: 
7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Appropriations

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Appropriations; 19 
Yeas, 0 Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23
04/28/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 39 Yeas / 0 Nays)

Compare
HB 0709 (Yarkosky) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

SB 1648
Public Records/Investigations 
by the Department of Legal 
Affairs

Bradley

Public Records/Investigations by the Department of Legal Affairs; Providing 
an exemption from public records requirements for information relating to 
investigations by the Department of Legal Affairs and law enforcement 
agencies of certain data privacy violations; providing for future legislative 
review and repeal of the exemption; providing a statement of public 
necessity, etc. Effective Date: On the same date that SB 262 or similar 
legislation takes effect, if such legislation is adopted in the same legislative 
session or an extension thereof and becomes a law

Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Rules

04/24/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Rules; 19 Yeas, 0 
Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23 
04/28/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 38 Yeas / 0 Nays)

Compare
HB 1547 (McFarland) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Similar
HB 1549 (McFarland) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Linked
SB 0262 (Bradley) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Amendments Adopted 
(705396, 218598); Read Third Time; Passed 
(Vote: 38 Yeas / 0 Nays)

SB 0262 Technology Transparency Bradley

Technology Transparency; Prohibiting officers or salaried employees of 
governmental entities from using their positions or state resources to make 
certain requests of social media platforms; designating the "Florida Digital Bill 
of Rights"; providing that a consumer may submit requests to controllers to 
exercise specified rights; requiring controllers to limit the collection of 
personal data according to certain parameters; authorizing controllers and 
processors to collect, use, or retain data for specified purposes; preempting 
the collection, processing, sharing, and sale of consumer personal data to 
the state, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Rules

04/24/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Rules; 19 Yeas, 0 
Nays
04/25/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23
04/28/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Amendments 
Adopted (705396, 218598); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 
38 Yeas / 0 Nays)

Compare
HB 1547 (McFarland) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
HB 1549 (McFarland) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Linked
SB 1648 (Bradley) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 38 Yeas / 0 Nays)

SB 1672 Temporary Airports DiCeglie

Temporary Airports; Requiring that certain documentation be submitted to 
the Department of Transportation for a public temporary airport or private 
temporary airport site approval order; requiring a public temporary airport to 
obtain a license and a private temporary airport to obtain registration before 
operation of aircraft to or from the airport; deeming public temporary airport 
licensure or private temporary airport registration complete if the department 
grants site approval; revising an exemption from certain provisions for an 
airport used for aerial application or spraying of crops, etc. Effective Date: 
7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/24/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23
04/28/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Amendment 
Adopted (391390); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 39 Yeas 
/ 0 Nays)

Compare
HB 1305 (Abbott) - 04/28/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
SB 1554 (DiCeglie) - 03/03/2023 SENATE 
Withdrawn prior to introduction
Similar
HB 0937 (Trabulsy) - 03/14/2023 HOUSE  
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee 

SB 0304
United States-produced Iron 
and Steel in Public Works 
Projects

Boyd

United States-produced Iron and Steel in Public Works Projects; Requiring 
governmental entities to include a requirement in certain contracts that 
certain iron or steel products be produced in the United States; authorizing 
the use of foreign steel and iron materials in certain circumstances; requiring 
the Department of Management Services to adopt rules for specified 
purposes, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable by Fiscal Policy; 19 Yeas, 0 
Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23 
04/27/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Amendment 
Adopted (627284); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 37 Yeas 
/ 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 SENATE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/27/2023 HOUSE In Messages

Similar
HB 1239 (Griffitts Jr.) - 03/22/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0021 Transportation Facility 
Designations Sirois

Transportation Facility Designations: Provides honorary designations of 
certain transportation facilities in specified counties; directs DOT to erect 
suitable markers. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendments 
Adopted (129863, 375075, 831149); Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 111 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/27/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
04/27/2023 SENATE  Withdrawn from Fiscal Policy; Placed on 
Calendar, on 2nd reading; Substituted for SB 0096; Read 
Second Time; Amendment Adopted (331332); Read Third 
Time; Passed (Vote: 36 Yeas / 2 Nays)
04/27/2023 HOUSE In returning messages

Compare
HB 0063 (Chaney) - 02/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee
SB 0072 (Hooper) - 01/04/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy
HB 0145 (Daniels) - 02/24/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee
HB 0285 (Anderson) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee
SB 0606 (Yarborough) - 02/16/2023 
SENATE Referred to Transportation; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Fiscal Policy
SB 0608 (Yarborough) - 02/16/2023 
SENATE Referred to Transportation; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Fiscal Policy
SB 0720 (Wright) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy
HB 0893 (Brannan III) - 03/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee
SB 0982 (Ingoglia) - 02/28/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy
SB 1178 (Simon) 03/02/2023 SENATE

SB 0734 Saltwater Intrusion 
Vulnerability Assessments Polsky

Saltwater Intrusion Vulnerability Assessments; Authorizing the Department of 
Environmental Protection to provide grants to coastal counties for saltwater 
intrusion vulnerability assessments; requiring the department to update the 
comprehensive statewide flood vulnerability and sea level rise data set and 
make certain information received from the saltwater intrusion vulnerability 
assessments available on its website; requiring the department to provide 
cost-share funding up to a specified amount for awarded grants, etc. 
Effective Date: Upon becoming a law

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Appropriations

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable by Appropriations; 19 Yeas, 0 
Nays
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 36 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 HOUSE In Messages

Identical
HB 1079 (Cross) - 02/28/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Agriculture, Conservation & Resiliency 
Subcommittee

SB 0346 Public Construction DiCeglie

Public Construction; Requiring that certain contracts provide the estimated 
cost to complete each item on a specified list; revising the timeframe within 
which proceedings must commence to resolve disputes between vendors 
and local governmental entities; requiring that undisputed portions of 
payment requests be paid within a specified timeframe; revising the 
conditions that require a public entity to pay or release amounts subject to 
certain disputes or claims, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Rules

04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 36 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 HOUSE In Messages

Similar
HB 0383 (Griffitts Jr.) - 04/21/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

HB 1085 Department of Highway Safety 
and Motor Vehicles Maney

Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles: Revises provisions 
relating to powers & duties of DHSMV; licenses & fuel tax decals; crash 
reports; motor vehicle air pollution control equipment; owners & drivers of 
commercial motor vehicles; certificates of title; transfer of ownership of motor 
vehicles or mobile homes; damaged or dismantled vessels; registration of 
rental trucks; license plates; enforcement of federal provisions; driver 
licenses and ID cards of sexual offenders and sexual predators; Commercial 
Driver's License Drug & Alcohol Clearinghouse; & noncancelable motor 
vehicle insurance. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendments 
Adopted (232693, 5593, 482655, 870397); Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 99 Yeas / 15 Nays)
04/27/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/27/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

Compare
SB 0370 (Brodeur) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy
SB 1224 (Burgess) - 03/06/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Agriculture, Environment, and 
General Government; Fiscal Policy
SB 1388 (Wright) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages
Similar
SB 1252 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Retained on Special Order Calendar

HB 0407 Apalachicola Bay Area of 
Critical State Concern Shoaf

Apalachicola Bay Area of Critical State Concern: Authorizes DEP to expend 
certain funds for purpose of entering into financial assistance agreements 
with City of Apalachicola for specified surface water & groundwater quality 
improvement projects within Apalachicola Bay Area of Critical State Concern; 
provides for expiration of expenditure. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 110 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

Identical
SB 0702 (Simon) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/01/23



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0197 Refusal to Submit to Breath, 
Urine, or Blood Test Koster

Refusal to Submit to Breath, Urine, or Blood Test: Requires person arrested 
for DUI who refuses to submit to lawful test of his or her breath to be subject 
to mandatory placement of ignition interlock device at his or her own expense 
for specified period; requires certain information to be contained in notice of 
suspension; decreases period during which person whose driver license is 
suspended for failure to submit to breath, urine, or blood test is not eligible to 
receive license for business or employment purposes only; waives 
requirement for ignition interlock device under certain circumstances; directs 
DHSMV to require placement of ignition interlock device before issuing 
permanent or restricted driver license to person who refused to submit to 
lawful test of his or her breath. Effective Date: October 1, 2023 

House Criminal Justice Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 99 Yeas / 15 Nays)
04/27/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

Similar
SB 0296 (DiCeglie) - 04/05/2023 SENATE 
Now in Rules

HB 1225 Sanford Airport Authority, 
Seminole County Smith

Sanford Airport Authority, Seminole County: Revises authorized term for 
which authority may enter into exclusive or nonexclusive contracts, leases, 
franchises, or other arrangements with any person. Effective Date: upon 
becoming a law 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 115 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

HB 1049 Boca Raton Airport Authority, 
Palm Beach County

Gossett-
Seidman

Boca Raton Airport Authority, Palm Beach County: Provides boundaries; 
provides authority is independent special district; provides for title of land to 
be vested in authority; provides additional powers & duties; provides 
attendance fee for members; requires Board of Trustees of Internal 
Improvement Trust Fund to transfer title of land to authority; revises 
employment of airport manager; provides authority is political subdivision of 
state for sovereign immunity purposes. Effective Date: upon becoming a law 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 114 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/27/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

SB 1718 Immigration Ingoglia

 Immigration; Prohibiting counties and municipalities, respectively, from 
providing funds to any person, entity, or organization to issue identification 
documents to an individual who does not provide proof of lawful presence in 
the United States; specifying that certain driver licenses and permits issued 
by other states exclusively to unauthorized immigrants are not valid in this 
state; requiring certain hospitals to collect patient immigration status data 
information on admission or registration forms; requiring the Department of 
Economic Opportunity to enter a certain order and require repayment of 
certain economic development incentives if the department finds or is notified 
that an employer has knowingly employed an unauthorized alien without 
verifying the employment eligibility of such person, etc. APPROPRIATION: 
$12,000,000 Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
act and except for this section, which shall take effect upon this act becoming 
a law, this act shall take effect July 1, 2023

Senate Rules
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 14 
Yeas, 6 Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Amendments Failed 
(383054, 361888, 613072); Placed on Third Reading, 04/28/23

Similar
HB 1617 (Michael) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 1664 Economic Programs Hooper

Economic Programs; Providing for a type two transfer of the duties and 
functions of Enterprise Florida, Inc., to the Department of Commerce; 
requiring the department and Enterprise Florida, Inc., to coordinate the 
development and implementation of a transition plan; renaming the 
Department of Economic Opportunity as the Department of Commerce; 
designating the head of the department as the Secretary of Commerce; 
requiring the secretary to serve as the Governor’s chief negotiator for certain 
purposes, etc. APPROPRIATION: $12,000,000 Effective Date: Except as 
otherwise expressly provided in this act, this act shall take effect July 1, 2023

Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 20 
Yeas, 0 Nays
04/27/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C3) Filed
04/27/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

Compare
HB 1209 (Shoaf) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
HB 5303 (Health Care Appropriations 
Subcommittee) - 04/27/2023 SENATE Bill 
placed in Conference (Conference 
Committee on Appropriations); Conference 
Committee appointed
HB 7041 (Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Rules
SB 7048 (Military and Veterans Affairs, 
Space, and Domestic Security) - 04/20/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
HB 7073 (Appropriations Committee) - 
04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 
2nd reading
Similar
HB 0005 (Esposito) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

SB 0702 Apalachicola Bay Area of 
Critical State Concern Simon

Apalachicola Bay Area of Critical State Concern; Authorizing the Department 
of Environmental Protection to expend certain funds for the purpose of 
entering into financial assistance agreements with the City of Apalachicola for 
specified surface water and groundwater quality improvement projects within 
the Apalachicola Bay Area of Critical State Concern; providing for expiration 
of the authorization, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable by Fiscal Policy; 19 Yeas, 0 
Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/01/23

Identical
HB 0407 (Shoaf) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 1604 Land Use and Development 
Regulations Ingoglia

Land Use and Development Regulations; Revising the planning periods that 
must be included in a comprehensive plan; requiring local governments to 
determine if plan amendments are necessary to reflect a certain minimum 
planning period; requiring, rather than encouraging, a local government to 
comprehensively evaluate and update its comprehensive plan to reflect 
changes in local conditions; requiring the state land planning agency to 
provide population projections if a local government fails to update its 
comprehensive plan, etc. Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly 
provided in this act and except for this section, which shall take effect upon 
becoming a law, this act shall take effect July 1, 2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Rules

04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/26/23
04/26/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Amendment 
Adopted (810840); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 27 Yeas 
/ 13 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/26/2023 HOUSE In Messages

Compare
HB 0439 (McClain) - 04/21/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 0002
Relief of the Estate of Molly 
Parker/Department of 
Transportation

Hooper

Relief of the Estate of Molly Parker/Department of Transportation; Providing 
for the relief of the Estate of Molly Parker; providing an appropriation to 
compensate the estate for Ms. Parker’s death as a result of the negligence of 
the Department of Transportation; providing a limitation on compensation 
and the payment of attorney fees; providing legislative intent regarding the 
waiver of certain liens, etc. CLAIM WITH APPROPRIATION: $5,950,000 
Effective Date: Upon becoming a law

Senate Special Master on Claim Bills
Senate Judiciary
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Appropriations

04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/26/23
04/26/2023 SENATE Read Second Time; Amendment 
Adopted (600820); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 38 Yeas 
/ 1 Nay)
04/26/2023 SENATE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/26/2023 HOUSE In Messages
04/26/2023 HOUSE Received; Referred to House Calendar
04/26/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
4/28/2023

Identical
HB 6007 (Abbott) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

HB 0553 State Recognition of Indian 
Tribes and Bands Salzman

 State Recognition of Indian Tribes and Bands: Provides for state recognition 
of specified Indian tribes & bands. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Placed on Third 
Reading, 04/26/23
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 111 
Yeas / 1 Nay)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

Similar
SB 0954 (Osgood) - 02/28/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability; Regulated Industries; Rules

SB 0724
Seagrass Restoration 
Technology Development 
Initiative

Boyd

Seagrass Restoration Technology Development Initiative; Establishing the 
Seagrass Restoration Technology Development Initiative within the 
Department of Environmental Protection; specifying allowable uses of the 
funding; requiring the creation of a 10-year Florida Seagrass Restoration 
Plan; requiring the initiative to submit an annual report by a specified date to 
the Governor, the Legislature, the Secretary of Environmental Protection, 
and the executive director of the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission; 
establishing the Initiative Technology Advisory Council as part of the 
initiative, etc. APPROPRIATION: Indeterminate Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Appropriations

04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/26/23
04/26/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 40 Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/26/2023 HOUSE In Messages

Similar
HB 1181 (Robinson (W) Jr.) - 04/25/2023 
HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

HB 0199
Ethics Requirements for 
Officers and Employees of 
Special Tax Districts

Hunschofsky

Ethics Requirements for Officers and Employees of Special Tax Districts: 
Specifies that conduct by certain public officers & employees is deemed 
conflict of interest; requires ethics training for elected local officers of 
independent special districts; specifies requirements for such training. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Placed on Third 
Reading, 04/26/23
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 116 
Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

Compare
HB 0241 (Daley) - 02/27/2023 HOUSE  
Withdrawn prior to introduction 
Similar
SB 0620 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23

HB 0209 Recall of County 
Commissioners Rudman

Recall of County Commissioners: Provides that members of governing body 
of noncharter county may be removed from office by electors of county. 
Effective Date: on the effective date of the amendment to the State 
Constitution proposed by HJR 131 or a joint resolution having substantially 
the same specific intent and purpose 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Placed on Third 
Reading, 04/26/23
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 112 
Yeas / 2 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

Compare
SB 1066 (Collins) - 04/05/2023 SENATE  
Now in Rules
Linked
HB 0131 (Rudman) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Rules

HB 0131 Recall of County Officers and 
Commissioners Rudman

Recall of County Officers and Commissioners: Proposes amendment to 
State Constitution to authorize Legislature to provide by general law for recall 
of county officers & commissioners.

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Placed on Third 
Reading, 04/26/23
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 113 
Yeas / 1 Nay)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

Identical
SB 1066 (Collins) - 04/05/2023 SENATE  
Now in Rules
Linked
HB 0209 (Rudman) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Rules

HB 1397 Regional Transportation 
Planning McClure

Regional Transportation Planning: Provides legislative findings & intent; 
requires DOT to conduct study of the organizational structure and operation 
of the Hillsborough Area Regional Transit Authority; specifies requirements of 
study; requires DOT to submit specified report to Governor & Legislature. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(450543); Placed on Third Reading, 04/26/23
04/25/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 114 
Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

Similar
SB 1532 (Burgess) - 04/21/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 1379 Environmental Protection Steele

Environmental Protection: Revises, creates, & repeals various provisions 
relating to procedures & requirements for acquisition, retention, & disposal of 
state lands & prioritization of projects relating to such lands. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023 

House Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Placed on Third 
Reading, 04/26/23
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 115 
Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

Compare
SB 0928 (Stewart) - 02/28/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Environment and Natural 
Resources; Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government; Appropriations
SB 1476 (Simon) - 04/19/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy
HB 7047 (Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
Similar
SB 1632 (Brodeur) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23

HB 0331 Liens and Bonds Overdorf

Liens and Bonds: Revises liens & bonds laws, including provisions relating to 
when notices must be served; notarizing forms; alternative forms of security; 
direct contracts; computation of time; extent of certain liens; requirements for 
notice of commencement, notice of termination, & notice of contest of lien; 
transferring lien to security; service of documents; immunity to issuing 
authority; & release of liens; & authorizes attorney fees in certain actions. 
Effective Date: October 1, 2023 

House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendments 
Adopted (200001, 751111); Placed on Third Reading, 04/26/23
04/25/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 115 
Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

Similar
SB 0624 (Grall) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23

HB 1191 Use of Phosphogypsum McClure

 Use of Phosphogypsum: Authorizes DOT to undertake demonstration 
projects using phosphogypsum in road construction aggregate material; 
requires DOT to conduct study on phosphogypsum as construction 
aggregate material; provides that phosphogypsum used under specified 
circumstances is not solid waste & is allowed use in state; authorizes 
placement of phosphogypsum in specified stack systems. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendments Failed 
(794783, 374351); Placed on Third Reading, 04/26/23
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 81 
Yeas / 25 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

Identical
SB 1258 (Trumbull) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/01/23

HB 0425 Transportation Esposito

Transportation: Revises & provides requirements relating to disabled motor 
vehicles, autonomous vehicle grading standards, airport zoning regulations, 
Implementing Solutions from Transportation Research & Evaluating 
Emerging Technologies Living Lab, certification of aggregate shipments, 
acceptance of electronic proof of delivery, liability insurance, sharing of cost 
savings, contractor's certificate of qualification to bid, exemption from public 
records requirements, request for legislative approval of proposed turnpike 
projects, M.P.O.'s, allocation of funds to workforce development program. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendments 
Adopted (911303, 017767, 122593); Placed on Third Reading, 
04/26/23
04/25/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 113 
Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

Compare
SB 1250 (DiCeglie) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23
HB 1305 (Abbott) - 04/28/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
Similar
SB 0064 (Hooper) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

Yes

HB 1209 Economic Development Shoaf

Economic Development: Requires certain agency agreements to include 
provision authorizing agency to provide for payment of specified invoices; 
removes requirement that grants received by regional economic 
development organization under Regional Rural Development Grants 
Program must be matched in certain manner; revises percentage of certain 
project costs for which DEO may award certain grants; provides date after 
which Florida Development Finance Corporation may not enter into specified 
agreements; removes scheduled repeal of corporation; revises purposes for 
which certain awards may be provided; revises areas in which DEO may 
provide grants through Everglades Restoration Agricultural Community 
Employment Training Program; requires DEO to prioritize awarding employer-
based grants to certain training programs; authorizes use of certain grant 
funds for certain purposes; requires DEO to set aside certain percentage of 
funds for certain purpose; prohibits DEO from awarding employer-based 
grants in excess of certain amount. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House Ways & Means Committee
House Commerce Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(157847); Placed on Third Reading, 04/26/23
04/25/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 115 
Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 0413 (Abbott) - 03/31/2023 HOUSE Now 
in State Affairs Committee
SB 1482 (Simon) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23
SB 1628 (Simon) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Commerce and Tourism; Rules
SB 1664 (Hooper) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Linked
HB 0005 (Esposito) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

HB 7041 Space Florida

Regulatory 
Reform & 
Economic 
Development 
Subcommittee

Space Florida: Requires Secretary of Economic Opportunity to serve as 
manager for state with respect to contracts with Space Florida; revises 
powers, duties, & membership of board of directors of Space Florida; 
prohibits Space Florida from endorsing candidate or contributing moneys to 
campaign; prohibits Space Florida from expending funds on certain 
expenses; requires Space Florida to consult with agencies & jurisdictions. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Commerce Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(808141); Placed on Third Reading, 04/26/23
04/25/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 114 
Yeas / 0 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

Compare
HB 0005 (Esposito) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23
SB 1664 (Hooper) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Similar
SB 7048 (Military and Veterans Affairs, 
Space, and Domestic Security) - 04/20/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0057 Motor Vehicle Liability 
Policies Truenow

Motor Vehicle Liability Policies: Revises definition of term "motor vehicle 
liability policy" & defines term "risk retention group" for purposes of motor 
vehicle financial responsibility. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Insurance & Banking Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(445341); Placed on Third Reading, 04/26/23
04/25/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 84 
Yeas / 30 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/26/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

Identical
SB 0516 (DiCeglie) - 04/25/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 0250 Natural Emergencies Martin

Natural Emergencies; Prohibiting counties and municipalities, respectively, 
from prohibiting temporary shelters on residential property for a specified 
timeframe under certain circumstances; authorizing independent special fire 
control districts to file a specified report on an alternative schedule under 
certain circumstances; providing for retroactive application; requiring the 
Division of Emergency Management to post a model contract for debris 
removal on its website by a specified date; requiring the division to 
administer a revolving loan fund for certain local government projects; 
increasing the timeframe to exercise rights under a permit or other 
authorization, etc. APPROPRIATION: $62,008,787 Effective Date: Except as 
otherwise expressly provided in this act and except for this section, which 
shall take effect upon becoming a law, this act shall take effect July 1, 2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Substituted for HB 7057; Read Second 
Time; Amendment Failed (852423); Amendment Adopted 
(791633); Placed on Third Reading, 04/26/23
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 109 
Yeas / 4 Nays)
04/26/2023 SENATE In returning messages

Similar
HB 7057 (Commerce Committee) - 
04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; 
Substituted for SB 0250; Laid on Table, 
Refer to SB 0250

HB 0669 Improvements to Real 
Property Fine

Improvements to Real Property: Authorizes residential or commercial 
property owner to apply to qualifying improvement program for funding to 
finance improvement & to enter into financing agreement with local 
government or program administrator; specifies requirements of financing 
agreement for government commercial property; revises requirements for 
local governments & program administrators when determining eligibility for 
assessment financing; revises requirements for qualifying improvements; 
revises calculation of non-ad valorem assessment limits; specifies 
underwriting, financing estimate, disclosure, & confirmation requirements for 
local governments & program administrators; restricts what improvements 
may be covered in certain agreements between local governments or 
program administrators & commercial property owners; specifies 
requirements for, & certain prohibited acts by, program administrators 
relating to financing agreements & contractors for qualifying improvements to 
residential property. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Ways & Means Committee
House Commerce Committee

04/23/2023 HOUSE On Committee agenda - Commerce 
Committee, 04/24/23, 12:00 pm, 212 K - PCS
04/24/2023 HOUSE Favorable with CS by Commerce 
Committee; 15 Yeas, 1 Nay
04/25/2023 HOUSE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

Similar
SB 0950 (Rodriguez) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Temporarily Postponed on Second Reading

HB 1617 Immigration Michael

Immigration: Prohibits counties & municipalities from providing funds to any 
person, entity, or organization to issue identification documents to individual 
who does not provide proof of lawful presence in US; requires hospitals to 
collect patient immigration status data information on admission; requires 
certain private employers to use E-Verify system to verify employment 
eligibility of persons who accept employment offers authorizes DEO to 
enforce requirements to use E-Verify & to conduct random audits of 
employers; removes provision authorizing unauthorized immigrant to obtain 
license to practice law; provides criminal penalties for persons who knowingly 
& willfully violate, or who reasonably should know & violate, certain provisions 
relating to transporting into this state of individuals who entered US 
unlawfully & without inspection by Federal Government; provides for 
coordination of certain activities with Federal Government. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023 

House Commerce Committee

04/23/2023 HOUSE On Committee agenda - Commerce 
Committee, 04/24/23, 12:00 pm, 212 K - PCS
04/24/2023 HOUSE Favorable with CS by Commerce 
Committee; 13 Yeas, 5 Nays
04/25/2023 HOUSE Committee Substitute Text (C1) Filed
04/25/2023 HOUSE References to Appropriations Committee; 
Judiciary Committee removed
04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

Similar
SB 1718 (Ingoglia) - 04/27/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Amendments Failed 
(383054, 361888, 613072); Placed on Third 
Reading, 04/28/23

HB 1549
Pub. Rec./Investigations by 
the Department of Legal 
Affairs

McFarland

Pub. Rec./Investigations by the Department of Legal Affairs: Provides 
exemption from public records requirements for information relating to 
investigations by DLA & law enforcement agencies of certain data privacy 
violations; provides for future legislative review & repeal of exemption; 
provides statement of public necessity. Effective Date: on the same date that 
HB 1547 or similar legislation takes effect 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee
House Commerce Committee

04/23/2023 HOUSE On Committee agenda - Commerce 
Committee, 04/24/23, 12:00 pm, 212 K
04/24/2023 HOUSE Favorable by Commerce Committee; 18 
Yeas, 0 Nays
04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

Compare
SB 0262 (Bradley) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Amendments Adopted 
(705396, 218598); Read Third Time; Passed 
(Vote: 38 Yeas / 0 Nays)
Similar
SB 1648 (Bradley) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 38 Yeas / 0 Nays)
Linked
HB 1547 (McFarland) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 1547 Technology Transparency McFarland

Technology Transparency: Prohibits officers or salaried employees of 
governmental entities from using their positions or state resources to make 
certain requests of social media platforms; prohibits governmental entities 
from initiating or maintaining certain agreements or working relationships with 
social media platforms; providing exceptions; prohibits controller from 
collecting certain consumer information; requires collectors to provide notice 
to consumers about data collection, sharing, & selling practices; provides 
consumers right to request data be disclosed, deleted, or corrected & to opt-
in or opt-out of sale or sharing of data; provides social media protections for 
children; provides nondiscrimination measures, methods for requesting data 
& opting-in or opting-out of sale or sharing of data, private cause of action, & 
enforcement; preempts regulation of consumer date collection, sharing, & 
selling to the state; requires certain moneys to be deposited in Legal Affairs 
Revolving Trust Fund. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

04/23/2023 HOUSE On Committee agenda - Commerce 
Committee, 04/24/23, 12:00 pm, 212 K
04/24/2023 HOUSE Favorable by Commerce Committee; 16 
Yeas, 3 Nays
04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

Compare
SB 0262 (Bradley) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Amendments Adopted 
(705396, 218598); Read Third Time; Passed 
(Vote: 38 Yeas / 0 Nays)
SB 1648 (Bradley) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 38 Yeas / 0 Nays)
Linked
HB 1549 (McFarland) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

HB 1305 Department of Transportation Abbott

Department of Transportation: Increasing the maximum amount of debt 
service coverage that must be transferred from the State Transportation 
Trust Fund to the Right-of-Way Acquisition and Bridge Construction Trust 
Fund; authorizing the department to provide up to 100 percent of project 
costs for certain eligible projects in rural areas of opportunity; authorizing 
installation of an automated license plate recognition system within the right-
of-way of any road on the State Highway System for a specified purpose; 
prohibiting use of such system for certain purposes, etc. Effective Date: July 
1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendments 
Adopted (598081, 55995, 95925, 120653); Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 87 Yeas / 28 Nays)
04/27/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/28/2023 SENATE In Messages
04/28/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

Compare
SB 0064 (Hooper) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23
HB 0425 (Esposito) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
HB 0937 (Trabulsy) - 03/14/2023 HOUSE  
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee 
SB 1250 (DiCeglie) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23
SB 1672 (DiCeglie) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(391390); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 
39 Yeas / 0 Nays)

SB 0714 Vacation Rentals DiCeglie

Vacation Rentals; Requiring advertising platforms to collect and remit 
specified taxes for certain vacation rental transactions; defining the term 
“advertising platform”; revising the regulated activities of public lodging 
establishments and public food service establishments preempted to the 
state to include licensing; requiring advertising platforms to require that 
persons placing advertisements for vacation rentals include certain 
information in the advertisements and attest to certain information; 
authorizing the division to revoke, refuse to issue or renew, or suspend 
vacation rental licenses under certain circumstances, etc. APPROPRIATION: 
$540,417 Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this act, 
this act shall take effect upon becoming a law

Senate Regulated Industries
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 17 
Yeas, 3 Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C3) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Amendments 
Adopted (132688, 482566); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 
28 Yeas / 10 Nays)
04/27/2023 SENATE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/27/2023 HOUSE In Messages

Compare
SB 0092 (Garcia) - 01/04/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Regulated Industries; 
Community Affairs; Rules
HB 0105 (Basabe) - 01/10/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
Similar
HB 0833 (Duggan) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 1318 Spaceflight Entity Liability Wright

Spaceflight Entity Liability; Defining the term “crew”; exempting a spaceflight 
entity from liability for injury to or death of a crew resulting from spaceflight 
activities under certain circumstances; requiring a spaceflight entity to have a 
crew sign a specified warning statement, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Military and Veterans Affairs, 
Space, and Domestic Security
Senate Rules

04/24/2023 SENATE Favorable by Rules; 19 Yeas, 0 Nays
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23
04/28/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Amendment 
Adopted (188692); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 39 Yeas / 0 
Nays)

Identical
HB 0839 (Sirois) - 04/13/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 1632 Environmental Protection Brodeur

Environmental Protection; Requiring the Department of Environmental 
Protection and water management districts to conduct a holistic review of 
certain permitting processes and programs; revising the required 
components of a local government comprehensive plan capital 
improvements element and general sanitary sewer, solid waste, drainage, 
potable water, and natural groundwater aquifer recharge element; requiring 
the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services to submit an updated 
priority list for the acquisition of certain agricultural lands to the Acquisition 
and Restoration Council by a specified date; revising requirements for onsite 
sewage treatment and disposal system remediation plans for springs; 
prohibiting the installation of new onsite sewage treatment and disposal 
systems within specified areas under certain circumstances; increasing the 
estimated value threshold for the appraisal of specified conservation 
easement acquisitions, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 19 
Yeas, 0 Nays
04/27/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/27/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/27/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/02/23

Compare
HB 0559 (Roth) - 02/07/2023 HOUSE Now in 
Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
SB 0742 (Grall) - 03/28/2023 SENATE Now 
in Fiscal Policy
SB 0928 (Stewart) - 02/28/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Environment and Natural 
Resources; Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government; Appropriations
SB 1164 (Collins) - 04/26/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 1279; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 1279
HB 1271 (Canady) - 03/06/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
HB 1279 (Alvarez) - 04/26/2023 HOUSE 
Enrolled Text (ER) Filed
SB 1476 (Simon) - 04/19/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy
HB 7047 (Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
Similar
HB 1379 (Steele) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

SB 0620
Ethics Requirements for 
Officers and Employees of 
Special Tax Districts

DiCeglie

Ethics Requirements for Officers and Employees of Special Tax Districts; 
Specifying that certain conduct by certain public officers and employees is 
deemed a conflict of interest; requiring certain ethics training for elected local 
officers of independent special districts, beginning on a specified date, etc. 
Effective Date: On July 1, 2023

Senate Ethics and Elections
Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Rules

04/27/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/02/23

Compare
HB 0241 (Daley) - 02/27/2023 HOUSE  
Withdrawn prior to introduction 
Similar
HB 0199 (Hunschofsky) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

SB 0624 Liens and Bonds Grall

 Liens and Bonds; Requiring the clerk of the court to serve a copy of a notice 
of contest of claim on certain persons after it has been recorded; requiring 
service of documents to be made in a specified manner; revising the process 
for notarizing a notice of commencement; requiring the clerk to serve a copy 
of a notice of contest of lien on certain persons after it has been recorded; 
revising the amount required in addition to the deposit or bond which applies 
toward attorney fees and court costs, etc. Effective Date: 10/1/2023

Senate Banking and Insurance
Senate Judiciary
Senate Rules

04/27/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/02/23

Similar
HB 0331 (Overdorf) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Rules

SB 1482 Rural Development Simon

Rural Development; Requiring certain agency agreements to include a 
provision authorizing the agency to provide for the payment of specified 
invoices to certain counties or municipalities for certain verified and eligible 
performance; revising the percentages of total infrastructure project cost 
which the Department of Economic Opportunity may award through grants 
from the Rural Infrastructure Fund; deleting provisions allowing eligible funds 
to be used for broadband Internet service and access; authorizing the 
department to award grants up to a specified amount for specified planning 
and preparation activities, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 19 
Yeas, 0 Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/27/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/02/23

Compare
HB 0413 (Abbott) - 03/31/2023 HOUSE Now 
in State Affairs Committee
HB 1209 (Shoaf) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
SB 1628 (Simon) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Commerce and Tourism; Rules

SB 1646
Commercial Service Airport 
Transparency and 
Accountability

Davis

Commercial Service Airport Transparency and Accountability; Revising 
information required to be posted on the website of a governing body; 
requiring a commercial service airport to use specified competitive 
solicitation processes for certain purchases of commodities or contractual 
services; requiring a governing body to approve, award, or ratify certain 
contracts by separate line item on the agenda if such contracts exceed 
specified amounts; prohibiting such contracts from being approved, awarded, 
or ratified as part of a consent agenda, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Rules

04/27/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/02/23

Similar
HB 1123 (Gossett-Seidman) - 04/21/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

SB 0766 Enforcement of School Bus 
Passing Infractions Burgess

Enforcement of School Bus Passing Infractions; Defining the term “school 
bus infraction detection system”; authorizing school districts to install and 
operate school bus infraction detection systems for a specified purpose; 
requiring school districts that install a school bus infraction detection system 
to ensure that each such system meets certain requirements; requiring such 
school districts to enter into interlocal agreements with law enforcement 
agencies to enforce violations; providing that certain recorded video and 
images are admissible in certain proceedings, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 19 
Yeas, 1 Nay
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/27/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/01/23

Similar
HB 0741 (Michael) - 04/28/2023 HOUSE  
Temporarily Postponed on Third Reading



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 0908 Unmanned Aircraft Systems 
Act Rodriguez

Unmanned Aircraft Systems Act; Revising the definition of the term “critical 
infrastructure facility”; deleting a requirement that a person or governmental 
entity apply to the Federal Aviation Administration to restrict or limit the 
operation of drones in specified areas; deleting a provision allowing a drone 
operating in transit for commercial purposes to operate over a critical 
infrastructure facility under certain circumstances, etc. Effective Date: Except 
as otherwise expressly provided in this act, this act shall take effect July 1, 
2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Military and Veterans Affairs, 
Space, and Domestic Security
Senate Rules

04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/01/23

Compare
SB 0264 (Collins) - 04/12/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages
HB 1355 (Borrero) - 04/20/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Similar
HB 0645 (Brackett) - 04/21/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Rules

SB 1170 Flooding and Sea Level Rise 
Vulnerability Studies Calatayud

Flooding and Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Studies; Revising the purposes for 
which the Department of Environmental Protection may provide grants under 
the Resilient Florida Grant Program to counties or municipalities; authorizing 
the department to provide such grants to water management districts for a 
specified purpose; requiring state-financed constructors to take specified 
actions before commencing construction of potentially at-risk structures or 
infrastructure beginning on a specified date; authorizing the department to 
bring civil actions, seek injunctive relief, recover certain funds, and enforce 
specified requirements, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/24/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C1) Filed
04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/01/23

Identical
HB 0111 (Hunschofsky) - 04/19/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

SB 1258 Use of Phosphogypsum Trumbull

Use of Phosphogypsum; Authorizing the Department of Transportation to 
undertake demonstration projects using phosphogypsum in road construction 
aggregate material to determine its feasibility as a paving material; requiring 
the department to conduct a study on the suitability of using phosphogypsum 
as a construction aggregate material; prohibiting phosphogypsum from being 
regulated as solid waste if used in accordance with an allowed use under 
specified federal regulations and approvals, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/01/23

Identical
HB 1191 (McClure) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

SB 0588 Enforcement of School Zone 
Speed Limits Rodriguez

 Enforcement of School Zone Speed Limits; Authorizing a county or 
municipality to enforce the speed limit in a school zone at specified periods 
through the use of a speed detection system; authorizing a county or 
municipality to place or install, or contract with a vendor to place or install, a 
speed detection system in a school zone; specifying conditions for the 
placement or installation of speed detection systems; requiring a county or 
municipality that installs a speed detection system to provide certain notice to 
the public; requiring a law enforcement agency with jurisdiction over a county 
or municipality conducting a school zone speed detection system program to 
use certain funds to administer the School Crossing Guard Recruitment and 
Retention Program, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23 ‐ If Received
04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 19 
Yeas, 0 Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C3) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Similar
HB 0657 (Koster) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

SB 0064 Transportation Hooper

Transportation; Requiring the driver of a vehicle to perform certain actions in 
the presence of a disabled motor vehicle under certain circumstances; 
requiring the Department of Transportation to coordinate with certain entities 
to establish certain standards relating to grading certain roads’ compatibility 
with the operation of autonomous vehicles; requiring political subdivisions to 
consider certain factors in airport land use compatibility zoning regulations; 
establishing the Implementing Solutions from Transportation Research and 
Evaluating Emerging Technologies Living Lab (I-STREET) within the 
University of Florida, etc. Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly 
provided in this act, this act shall take effect July 1, 2023

Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Transportation
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 20 
Yeas, 0 Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C3) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Compare
SB 1250 (DiCeglie) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23
HB 1305 (Abbott) - 04/28/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
Similar
HB 0425 (Esposito) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

Yes

SB 1250 Department of Transportation DiCeglie

Department of Transportation; Increasing the maximum amount of debt 
service coverage that must be transferred from the State Transportation 
Trust Fund to the Right-of-Way Acquisition and Bridge Construction Trust 
Fund; authorizing the department to provide up to 100 percent of project 
costs for certain eligible projects in rural areas of opportunity; authorizing 
installation of an automated license plate recognition system within the right-
of-way of any road on the State Highway System for a specified purpose; 
prohibiting use of an automated license plate recognition system to issue a 
notice of violation or a traffic citation, etc. Effective Date: Except as otherwise 
expressly provided in this act and except for this section, which shall take 
effect upon this act becoming a law, this act shall take effect July 1, 2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 14 
Yeas, 6 Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C3) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Compare
SB 0064 (Hooper) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23
HB 0425 (Esposito) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
HB 1305 (Abbott) - 04/28/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

SB 1156 Florida Retirement System Burton

Florida Retirement System; Authorizing employers to establish post-
employment volunteer programs to allow retirees to provide certain services 
during a specified timeframe; requiring such programs to meet specified 
criteria, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Appropriations

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable by Appropriations; 19 Yeas, 0 
Nays
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Similar
HB 1121 (Bartleman) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0005 Economic Programs Esposito

Economic Programs: Renames DEO as Department of Commerce; revises 
purposes of department; provides head of department is Secretary of 
Commerce; repeals provisions relating to economic development programs; 
transfers all duties, records, pending issues, rules, & unexpended balances 
of appropriations, allocations, & other public funds relating to programs in 
Enterprise Florida, Inc., to department by type two transfer; authorizes 
Florida Sports Foundation to enter into an agreement with department for 
certain purposes & use certain funds; requires department to establish direct-
support organization designated Florida International Trade, Inc., for certain 
purposes; provides appropriations & authorizes positions. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023 

House Commerce Committee
House Ways & Means Committee
House Appropriations Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Compare
HB 5303 (Health Care Appropriations 
Subcommittee) - 04/27/2023 SENATE Bill 
placed in Conference (Conference 
Committee on Appropriations); Conference 
Committee appointed
HB 7041 (Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Rules
SB 7048 (Military and Veterans Affairs, 
Space, and Domestic Security) - 04/20/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
Similar
SB 1664 (Hooper) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Linked
HB 1209 (Shoaf) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
HB 7073 (Appropriations Committee) - 
04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 
2nd reading

HB 0657 Enforcement of School Zone 
Speed Limits Koster

Enforcement of School Zone Speed Limits: Authorizes county or municipality 
to enforce speed limit in school zone through speed detection system; 
requires DOT to establish specifications; requires notice to public; requires 
law enforcement agency to administer School Crossing Guard Recruitment & 
Retention Program; provides for issuance of traffic citations by traffic 
infraction enforcement officer; provides notification requirements & 
procedures; provides photographs or video & evidence of speed are 
admissible in proceedings; requires reports; requires law enforcement 
agency to maintain log & perform tests of speed detection systems; provides 
penalty for speed limit violation in school zone; prohibits points from being 
imposed against driver license; prohibits infractions from being used to set 
insurance rates. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Justice Appropriations 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Similar
SB 0588 (Rodriguez) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

HB 0709 Proceeds Funding Motorcycle 
Safety Education Yarkosky

Proceeds Funding Motorcycle Safety Education: Removes authorization for 
motorcycle safety education fee proceeds to fund general operations of 
DHSMV; requires annual report to Legislature. Effective Date: October 1, 
2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee
House Appropriations Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Compare
SB 0838 (Collins) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Read Third Time; 
Passed (Vote: 39 Yeas / 0 Nays)

HB 0949 Operation of a Golf Cart Stevenson

Operation of a Golf Cart: Authorizes water control district, with county 
approval, to designate certain roads for use by golf carts; prohibits person 
from operating golf cart on certain roadways unless he or she possesses 
valid learner's driver license or valid driver license; removes authority of local 
governmental entity to enact specified ordinance; provides penalty. Effective 
Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Compare
SB 1290 (Grall) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Retained on Special Order Calendar

HB 1121 Florida Retirement System Bartleman
Florida Retirement System: Authorizes employers to establish volunteer 
programs; establishes criteria for such programs. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Constitutional Rights, Rule of Law & 
Government Operations Subcommittee
House Appropriations Committee
House State Affairs Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Similar
SB 1156 (Burton) - 04/25/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

HB 1211 Child Restraint Requirements Beltran
Child Restraint Requirements: Revises requirements for use of crash-tested, 
federally approved child restraint device while transporting child in motor 
vehicle. Effective Date: October 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Identical
SB 1374 (Perry) - 04/05/2023 SENATE Now 
in Rules

HB 1343 Agricultural Lands Tuck

Agricultural Lands: Prohibits counties from levying specified special 
assessments on lands classified as agricultural; provides exception; 
authorizes construction or installation of housing for agricultural employees 
on certain lands; provides requirements for such housing; exempts such 
housing from certain local government approval; prohibits county or 
municipality from requiring removal or relinquishment of agricultural land 
classification for certain lands; requires landowners to provide county or 
municipality with certain written notice regarding such lands. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023 

House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
House Ways & Means Committee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Temporarily Postponed on Second 
Reading
04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23

Compare
SB 7062 (Finance and Tax) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
Similar
SB 1184 (Collins) - 04/13/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 1686
Designation of Brevard Barrier 
Island Area as an Area of 
Critical State Concern

Wright

 Designation of Brevard Barrier Island Area as an Area of Critical State 
Concern; Creating the "Brevard Barrier Island Area Protection Act"; 
designating the Brevard Barrier Island Area as an area of critical state 
concern; providing guiding principles for development within the area; 
requiring the state land planning agency to submit an annual report to the 
commission, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Rules

04/24/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Rules; 19 Yeas, 0 
Nays
04/25/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 1489; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 1489

Similar
HB 1489 (Altman) - 04/28/2023 HOUSE 
Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

SB 0096 Transportation-related Facility 
Designations DiCeglie

Transportation-related Facility Designations; Providing honorary designations 
of certain transportation facilities in specified counties; directing the 
Department of Transportation to erect suitable markers, etc. Effective Date: 
7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 18 
Yeas, 2 Nays
04/25/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C3) Filed
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/25/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/26/23
04/26/2023 SENATE  Temporarily Postponed on Second 
Reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Retained on Special Order Calendar
04/27/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0021; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0021

Compare
HB 0063 (Chaney) - 02/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee
SB 0072 (Hooper) - 01/04/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy
HB 0145 (Daniels) - 02/24/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee
HB 0285 (Anderson) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee
SB 0606 (Yarborough) - 02/16/2023 
SENATE Referred to Transportation; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Fiscal Policy
SB 0608 (Yarborough) - 02/16/2023 
SENATE Referred to Transportation; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Fiscal Policy
SB 0720 (Wright) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy
HB 0893 (Brannan III) - 03/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee
SB 0982 (Ingoglia) - 02/28/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy
SB 1178 (Simon) 03/02/2023 SENATE

HB 1071 Drone Delivery Services Duggan

 Drone Delivery Services: Prohibits political subdivision from taking certain 
actions against drone delivery service based on location of its drone port; 
authorizes political subdivision to enforce certain regulations relating to 
setback & landscaping; exempts drone ports from Florida Building Code & 
certain provisions of Florida Fire Prevention Code. Effective Date: July 1, 
2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 1068; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 1068

Identical
SB 1068 (Collins) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

SB 0626 Broadband Internet Service 
Providers DiCeglie

Broadband Internet Service Providers; Specifying that the poles of rural 
electric cooperatives that are engaged in the provision of broadband are 
subject to regulation by the Public Service Commission; authorizing the 
commission to access the books and records of such cooperatives for 
specified purposes; providing that such information that contains proprietary 
confidential business information retains its confidential or exempt status 
when held by the commission; authorizing rural electric cooperatives to 
engage in the provision of broadband, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Regulated Industries
Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Rules

04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/26/23
04/26/2023 SENATE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 1221; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 1221

Identical
HB 1221 (Tomkow) - 04/26/2023 HOUSE 
Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

HB 7057 Natural Emergencies Commerce 
Committee

Natural Emergencies: Prohibits counties & municipalities from prohibiting 
temporary shelters; requires DEM to post model contract, prioritize training & 
assistance & administer revolving loan fund for projects; providing liability 
protections for public utilities; authorizes local governments to create 
inspection teams & approve permitting procedures; prohibits local 
governments from taking actions related to comprehensive plans; authorizes 
certain actions related to derelict vessels; authorizes certain fire control 
districts to file on alternative schedules. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Appropriations Committee
04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 0250; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 0250

Similar
SB 0250 (Martin) - 04/26/2023 SENATE In 
returning messages



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 0950 Improvements to Real 
Property Rodriguez

 Improvements to Real Property; Authorizing a residential or commercial 
property owner to apply to a qualifying improvement program for funding to 
finance an improvement and to enter into a financing agreement with the 
local government; authorizing a local government to incur debt for the 
purpose of providing financing for qualifying improvements; specifying certain 
requirements for a local government or program administrator that offers a 
qualifying improvement program for residential properties; providing that a 
financing agreement may be executed for qualifying improvements in the 
construction of a commercial property before a certificate of occupancy or 
similar evidence of substantial completion of new construction or 
improvement is issued; requiring that, in communicating with residential 
property owners, the local government or program administrator comply with 
certain marketing and communications guidelines and prohibiting such 
entities from certain communication, etc. Effective Date: 1/1/2024

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable with CS by Fiscal Policy; 19 
Yeas, 0 Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23
04/28/2023 SENATE  Temporarily Postponed on Second 
Reading

Similar
HB 0669 (Fine) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed 
on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 0464 Interstate Safety Perry

Interstate Safety; Defining the term “furthermost left-hand lane”; prohibiting a 
driver from operating a motor vehicle in the furthermost left-hand lane of 
certain roadways, except under certain circumstances; providing a penalty, 
etc. Effective Date: 1/1/2024

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/25/2023 SENATE Favorable by Fiscal Policy; 18 Yeas, 0 
Nays
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/26/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23
04/28/2023 SENATE  Temporarily Postponed on Second 
Reading

Identical
HB 0421 (Persons-Mulicka) - 03/17/2023 
HOUSE Now in Infrastructure Strategies 
Committee

HB 0041 Land Development Initiative 
and Referendum Processes Garcia (A)

 Land Development Initiative and Referendum Processes: Prohibits an 
initiative or referendum process in regard to any land development 
regulation. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/28/23
04/28/2023 HOUSE  Temporarily Postponed on Second 
Reading

Compare
SB 0718 (Yarborough) - 04/26/2023 HOUSE 
In Messages
Similar
SB 0856 (Rodriguez) - 03/29/2023 SENATE 
Temporarily Postponed by Community 
Affairs

HB 0741 Enforcement of School Bus 
Passing Infractions Michael

Enforcement of School Bus Passing Infractions: Authorizes school districts to 
install & operate school bus infraction detection systems & to contract with 
private vendor or manufacturer; requires school districts to enter into 
interlocal agreements with law enforcement agencies to enforce violations; 
requires school district to provide certain public notice; provides notification 
requirements & procedures for vendors, manufacturers, & law enforcement 
agencies; requires person who receives notification of violation to pay civil 
penalty or request hearing within specified timeframe; provides for 
distribution & use of funds; specifies requirements of & prohibitions on use of 
video & images recorded by system; requires reports to DHSMV, Governor, 
& Legislature; requires SBE to establish system specifications; provides civil 
penalties for violations enforced by system. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House PreK-12 Appropriations 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(075663); Placed on Third Reading, 04/26/23
04/25/2023 HOUSE Engrossed Text (E1) Filed
04/26/2023 HOUSE  Temporarily Postponed on Third Reading
04/27/2023 HOUSE  Temporarily Postponed on Third Reading
04/28/2023 HOUSE  Temporarily Postponed on Third Reading

Similar
SB 0766 (Burgess) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/01/23

SB 1290 Operation of a Golf Cart Grall

Operation of a Golf Cart; Authorizing water control districts to designate 
certain roads for the operation of golf carts; requiring county approval to 
make such designation; prohibiting a person from operating a golf cart on 
certain roadways unless he or she possesses a valid learner’s driver license 
or valid driver license that is not suspended or revoked, etc. Effective Date: 
7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Rules

04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 SENATE  Temporarily Postponed on Second 
Reading
04/27/2023 SENATE Retained on Special Order Calendar

Compare
HB 0949 (Stevenson) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 1252 Department of Highway Safety 
and Motor Vehicles DiCeglie

Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles; Requiring the department 
or its authorized agent to issue certain licenses and fuel tax decals; providing 
that a certain affidavit constitutes proof of ownership and right of possession 
to a motor vehicle or mobile home the previous owner of which died testate; 
authorizing permanent registration of certain rental trucks; authorizing a 
uniform paper or electronic format of the registration certificate for a motor 
vehicle; requiring that certain information on the driver license or 
identification card of a sexual offender or sexual predator be printed in red; 
requiring the department to record in the driver’s record that he or she is 
disqualified from operating a commercial motor vehicle under certain 
circumstances, etc. Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly provided 
in this act, this act shall take effect July 1, 2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

04/24/2023 SENATE Committee Substitute Text (C2) Filed
04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
04/24/2023 SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
04/27/23
04/27/2023 SENATE  Temporarily Postponed on Second 
Reading
04/27/2023 SENATE Retained on Special Order Calendar

Compare
SB 0370 (Brodeur) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy
HB 0675 (Porras) - 02/14/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Transportation & Modals Subcommittee
SB 1074 (Thompson) - 03/28/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
HB 1075 (Gantt) - 02/28/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Transportation & Modals Subcommittee
SB 1224 (Burgess) - 03/06/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Agriculture, Environment, and 
General Government; Fiscal Policy
SB 1254 (Trumbull) - 03/28/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Similar
HB 1085 (Maney) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

HB 1181 Seagrass Restoration Robinson (W) 
Jr.

Seagrass Restoration: Establishes Seagrass Restoration Technology 
Development Initiative within DEP; requires creation of 10-year Florida 
Seagrass Restoration Plan; requires initiative to submit annual report by 
specified date to Governor, Legislature, Secretary of Environmental 
Protection, & executive director of FWCC; establishes Initiative Technology 
Advisory Council as part of initiative; provides for meetings, membership, 
terms of office, & compensation of advisory council; provides for expiration of 
initiative; provides appropriation. APPROPRIATION: $10,000,000 Effective 
Date: July 1, 2023

House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

04/25/2023 HOUSE  Temporarily Postponed on Second 
Reading
04/25/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

Similar
SB 0724 (Boyd) - 04/26/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

HB 0833 Vacation Rentals Duggan

 Vacation Rentals: Revises provisions relating to vacation rentals including 
taxes collected by advertising platforms; licensing; local registration; & 
information included on advertising platforms. Effective Date: upon becoming 
a law 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House Ways & Means Committee
House Commerce Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

Compare
SB 0092 (Garcia) - 01/04/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Regulated Industries; 
Community Affairs; Rules
HB 0105 (Basabe) - 01/10/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
Similar
SB 0714 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

HB 0713
Administrative Procedures 
and Permitting Process 
Review

McFarland

 Administrative Procedures and Permitting Process Review: Revises 
provisions relating to rule development, notices, public workshops, 
publication, timeframes, statements of estimated regulatory costs, public 
hearings, lower cost regulatory alternatives, incorporation by reference, 
emergency rules, Florida Administrative Code, Florida Administrative 
Register, & annual regulatory plans; requires agency review of rules & 
repromulgation of rules that do not require substantive changes; requires 
DEP & WMDs to conduct review of permitting processes & permit programs. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Constitutional Rights, Rule of Law & 
Government Operations Subcommittee
House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

04/24/2023 HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Similar
SB 0742 (Grall) - 03/28/2023 SENATE Now 
in Fiscal Policy



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 2500 Appropriations Appropriations

Appropriations; Providing moneys for the annual period beginning July 1, 
2023, and ending June 30, 2024, and supplemental appropriations for the 
period ending June 30, 2023, to pay salaries, and other expenses, capital 
outlay - buildings, and other improvements, and for other specified purposes 
of the various agencies of state government, etc. APPROPRIATION: 
$113,665,523,805 Effective Date: Except as otherwise provided herein, this 
act shall take effect July 1, 2023, or upon becoming law, whichever occurs 
later; however, if this act becomes law after July 1, 2023, then it shall operate 
retroactively to July 1, 2023

Senate Appropriations
04/24/2023 SENATE Bill placed in Conference (Conference 
Committee on Appropriations)
04/24/2023 SENATE Conference Committee appointed

Compare
HB 0239 (Busatta Cabrera) - 04/04/2023 
HOUSE  Read Third Time; Substituted for 
SB 7024; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 7024
HB 1219 (Smith) - 04/04/2023 HOUSE  
Read Third Time; Substituted for SB 7018; 
Laid on Table, Refer to SB 7018
HB 1285 (Giallombardo) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Bill placed in Conference 
(Conference Committee on Appropriations); 
Conference Committee appointed
SB 2502 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
SB 2504 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
SB 2506 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
SB 2508 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
SB 2510 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
HB 5003 (Appropriations Committee) - 
04/04/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; 
Substituted for SB 2502; Laid on Table, 
Refer to SB 2502
HB 5005 (Appropriations Committee) - 
04/04/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; 
Substituted for SB 2504; Laid on Table, 
Refer to SB 2504
HB 5101 (PreK-12 Appropriations 
Subcommittee) - 04/27/2023 SENATE Bill 
placed in Conference (Conference

SB 2502 Implementing the 2023-2024 
General Appropriations Act Appropriations

Implementing the 2023-2024 General Appropriations Act; Incorporating by 
reference certain calculations of the Florida Education Finance Program; 
revising the limitation on enrollment of full-time equivalent virtual students 
residing outside of school districts; authorizing school districts to adopt 
specified salary incentives and other strategies under certain circumstances; 
extending for 1 fiscal year the exemption of certain rules pertaining to the 
medical use of marijuana from certain rulemaking requirements; requiring 
certain sheriffs’ offices to transfer child protective investigation services to 
the Department of Children and Families, etc. Effective Date: Except as 
otherwise expressly provided in this act and except for this section, which 
shall take effect upon this act becoming a law, this act shall take effect July 
1, 2023, or, if this act fails to become a law until after that date, it shall take 
effect upon becoming a law and shall operate retroactively to July 1, 2023 

Senate Appropriations
04/24/2023 SENATE Bill placed in Conference (Conference 
Committee on Appropriations)
04/24/2023 SENATE Conference Committee appointed

Compare
HB 0037 (Roach) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 0774; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 0774
SB 0240 (Hutson) - 04/26/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages
HB 0715 (Mooney, Jr.) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
SB 0774 (Brodeur) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Enrolled Text (ER) Filed
SB 1488 (Garcia (I)) - 03/30/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
SB 2500 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
HB 5001 (Appropriations Committee) - 
04/04/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; 
Substituted for SB 2500; Laid on Table, 
Refer to SB 2500
HB 5003 (Appropriations Committee) - 
04/04/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; 
Substituted for SB 2502; Laid on Table, 
Refer to SB 2502
HB 7051 (Postsecondary Education & 
Workforce Subcommittee) - 04/24/2023 
HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

HB 0383 Public Construction Griffitts Jr.

Public Construction: Revises provisions relating to payments for purchases 
of construction services by local governmental entities & public entities; 
revises time periods within which certain proceedings must be commenced & 
concluded; provides dates by which undisputed portion of payment requests 
must be paid; prohibits political subdivision from requiring entity to dedicate 
funds to or make expenditures for art in public places in excess of certain 
amount except. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

Similar
SB 0346 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0439 Land Use and Development 
Regulations McClain

Land Use and Development Regulations: Provides types of relief that may be 
included in negotiated settlement; requires special magistrate to consider 
public interest served by comprehensive plan provisions that are inconsistent 
with proposed relief; provides procedures for deeming relief granted by 
special magistrate's recommendation; revises elements that must be 
included in comprehensive plan; revises frequency at which local 
government must evaluate its comprehensive plan; prohibits local 
government from adopting plan amendments to its comprehensive plan when 
it fails to meet certain requirements; provides for expansion of existing 
development of housing that contains affordable dwelling units if certain 
requirements are met; revises substation approval process to include 
applications for changes to existing electric substations. Effective Date: July 
1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee
House State Affairs Committee

Compare
SB 1604 (Ingoglia) - 04/26/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

SB 1532 Regional Transportation 
Planning Burgess

Regional Transportation Planning; Requiring the Department of 
Transportation, or its consultant, to conduct a study regarding the potential 
dissolution or transfer of the governance, staff, operations, funding, and 
facilities of the Hillsborough Area Regional Transit Authority; specifying 
requirements of the study; requiring the department to submit a report to the 
Governor and Legislature by a specified date, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Similar
HB 1397 (McClure) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy

HB 1123
Commercial Service Airport 
Transparency and 
Accountability

Gossett-
Seidman

Commercial Service Airport Transparency and Accountability: Revises 
information required to be posted on website of governing body; requires 
commercial service airport to use specified competitive solicitation processes 
for purchases of commodities or contractual services; revises type of 
contract governing body must approve, award, or ratify as separate line item 
on agenda; requires governing body to provide opportunity for public 
comment on contracts; prohibits contracts from being approved, awarded, or 
ratified as part of consent agenda. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Similar
SB 1646 (Davis) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23

HB 0645 Unmanned Aircraft Systems 
Act Brackett

Unmanned Aircraft Systems Act: Removes provision requiring certain 
persons & governmental entities to apply to FAA to restrict or limit operation 
of drones in close proximity to certain infrastructure or facilities; removes 
provision allowing drone operating in transit for commercial purposes to 
operate over critical infrastructure facility; provides for future sunset of 
definition of "critical infrastructure facility." Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Criminal Justice Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Compare
SB 0264 (Collins) - 04/12/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages
HB 1355 (Borrero) - 04/20/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Similar
SB 0908 (Rodriguez) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/01/23

SB 7048 Space Florida

Military and 
Veterans Affairs, 
Space, and 
Domestic 
Security

 Space Florida; Requiring the Secretary of Economic Opportunity to serve as 
the manager for the state with respect to contracts with Space Florida; 
requiring the Office of Economic and Demographic Research and the Office 
of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability to provide to the 
Governor and the Legislature an analysis of Space Florida; requiring the 
Department of Economic Opportunity to annually submit a proposed 
operating budget by a specified date; revising membership of the board of 
directors of Space Florida; providing that open meeting and public records 
laws apply to Space Florida and its board of directors, etc. Effective Date: 
7/1/2023

Senate Military and Veterans Affairs, 
Space, and Domestic Security
Senate Rules

Compare
HB 0005 (Esposito) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23
SB 1664 (Hooper) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Similar
HB 7041 (Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Rules

HB 0023 Water and Wastewater Facility 
Operators Bell

Water and Wastewater Facility Operators: Requires DEP to issue water 
treatment plant operator licenses, water distribution system operator 
licenses, & domestic wastewater treatment plant operator licenses by 
reciprocity to certain applicants; authorizes DEP to issue temporary operator 
licenses during declared state of emergency; requires DEP to waive 
application fee for temporary operator licenses. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Similar
SB 0162 (Collins) - 04/21/2023 SENATE 
Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

HB 0807 License or Permit to Operate 
Vehicle for Hire Borrero

License or Permit to Operate Vehicle for Hire: Provides that person who 
holds license or permit issued by county or municipality to operate vehicle for 
hire may operate vehicle for hire in any other county or municipality without 
being subject to certain requirements or fees. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Similar
SB 1700 (DiCeglie) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Community 
Affairs; Rules

SB 0698 Local Tax Referenda 
Requirements Ingoglia

Local Tax Referenda Requirements; Requiring that a referendum to reenact 
an expiring tourist development tax or tourist impact tax, respectively, be 
held at a general election; requiring that a referendum to approve a millage 
rate increase for a children’s services independent special district property 
tax be held at a general election; requiring that a referendum to reenact a 
local government discretionary sales surtax be held at a general election, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Fiscal Policy (Current Reference)

Compare
SB 7062 (Finance and Tax) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
Similar
HB 0731 (Temple) - 04/11/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 0540 Local Government 
Comprehensive Plans DiCeglie

 Local Government Comprehensive Plans; Providing that the prevailing party 
in a challenge to a plan or plan amendment is entitled to recover attorney 
fees and costs; providing that the prevailing party in a challenge to the 
compliance of a small scale development order is entitled to recover attorney 
fees and costs, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Judiciary
Senate Rules

Similar
HB 0359 (Duggan) - 03/27/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 0552 Public Records/Broadband 
Opportunity Program Hooper

Public Records/Broadband Opportunity Program; Providing an exemption 
from public records requirements for certain information relating to 
communications services locations, project proposals, and challenges 
submitted to the Department of Economic Opportunity under the Broadband 
Opportunity Program or pursuant to a federal broadband access grant 
program implemented by the department; providing for future legislative 
review and repeal of the exemption; providing a statement of public 
necessity, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Rules

Similar
HB 1437 (Esposito) - 04/11/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 1616 Public Records/Transportation 
and Protective Services Martin

Public Records/Transportation and Protective Services; Providing an 
exemption from public records requirements for records held by a law 
enforcement agency relating to certain security or transportation services; 
providing for retroactive application; providing for legislative review and 
repeal of the exemption; providing a statement of public necessity, etc. 
Effective Date: Upon becoming a law

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Rules

Identical
HB 1495 (Holcomb) - 04/13/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

HB 0111 Flooding and Sea Level Rise 
Vulnerability Studies Hunschofsky

Flooding and Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Studies: Revises purposes for 
which DEP may provide grants under Resilient Florida Grant Program to 
counties, municipalities, & water management districts; requires state-
financed constructors to take specified actions before commencing 
construction; requires DEP to develop specified sea level impact projection 
study standard; provides for civil actions, injunctive relief, recovery of certain 
funds, & enforcement; provides for future repeal of requirements for 
construction of certain structures in coastal building zone. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023 

House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Identical
SB 1170 (Calatayud) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/01/23

SB 0696 Local Officials Ingoglia

Local Officials; Prohibiting the governing body of a county from renewing or 
extending the employment contract of a county administrator during a 
specified timeframe; prohibiting the governing body of a municipality from 
renewing or extending the employment contract of a chief executive officer or 
municipal general counsel during a specified timeframe; prohibiting a district 
school board from renewing or extending the employment contract of a 
superintendent during a specified timeframe; prohibiting a district school 
board from renewing or extending the employment contract of a district 
school board general counsel during a specified timeframe, etc. Effective 
Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Rules (Current Reference)

Similar
HB 0729 (Holcomb) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE  
Now in Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee

HB 1293 Affordable Housing in Areas 
of Critical State Concern Mooney, Jr.

Affordable Housing in Areas of Critical State Concern: Excludes land 
designated as area of critical state concern from county & municipality 
affordable housing provisions; excludes land designated as area of critical 
state concern within specified time period from award requirements made to 
specified sponsors or persons for purpose of providing eligible housing as 
part of local housing assistance plan. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee (Current 
Reference)

Similar
SB 1212 (Rodriguez) - 03/02/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Fiscal Policy

SB 0198 Tampa Bay Area Regional 
Transit Authority DiCeglie

Tampa Bay Area Regional Transit Authority; Repealing provisions relating to 
the creation and operation of the authority; dissolving the authority and 
requiring the authority to discharge its liabilities, settle and close its activities 
and affairs, and provide for the distribution of the authority’s assets, etc. 
Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this act, this act 
shall take effect July 1, 2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Appropriations

Similar
HB 0155 (Holcomb) - 04/19/2023 HOUSE 
Enrolled Text (ER) Filed

SB 0302 Government and Corporate 
Activism Grall

Government and Corporate Activism; Requiring that investment decisions 
comply with a specified requirement related to the consideration of pecuniary 
factors; requiring the Department of Management Services to report certain 
noncompliance to the Attorney General; requiring that certain noncompliance 
be reported to the Attorney General, who is authorized to bring certain civil or 
administrative actions; prohibiting bond issuers from issuing environmental, 
social, and governance bonds and taking other related actions; prohibiting an 
awarding body from requesting certain documentation or giving preference to 
vendors based on their social, political, or ideological interests, etc. Effective 
Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Banking and Insurance
Senate Fiscal Policy

Identical
HB 0003 (Rommel) - 04/19/2023 HOUSE 
Enrolled Text (ER) Filed



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0745 Emergency Communications McFarland

Emergency Communications: Renames E911 Board as Emergency 
Communications Board; revises composition of board; requires board to 
administer fees; authorizes board to establish schedules for implementing 
certain wireless NG911 systems; provides for board's authority to implement 
changes to allocation percentages & adjust fees; revises provisions relating 
to public safety emergency communications systems fee; revises factors 
board considers when setting percentages or adjustments to fee; revises 
types of emergency communications equipment & services that are eligible 
for moneys derived from fee; renames Communications Number E911 
System Fund as Emergency Communications Trust Fund; revises percent 
distribution of fund used for payment of authorized expenditures; removes 
percent distribution to wireless providers. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee
House State Administration & Technology 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Similar
SB 1418 (Bradley) - 04/28/2023 SENATE 
Engrossed Text (E1) Filed

HB 1025 Government Vehicles Caruso

Government Vehicles: Revises selection criteria for purchasing or leasing 
vehicles for state agencies, state universities, community colleges, & local 
governments under state purchasing plan; provides condition under which 
state agencies must use & procure ethanol & biodiesel blended fuels & 
natural gas fuels; requires DMS, before specified date, to make 
recommendations to state agencies, state universities, community colleges, 
& local governments relating to procurement & integration of electric & 
natural gas fuel vehicles. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Similar
SB 0284 (Brodeur) - 04/12/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

SB 0880 Biosolids Brodeur

Biosolids; Establishing a biosolids grant program within the Department of 
Environmental Protection; authorizing the department, subject to 
appropriation, to provide biosolid grants for certain projects that convert 
wastewater residuals to Class AA biosolids; prohibiting the department from 
authorizing land application site permits for Class B biosolids unless a certain 
demonstration can be made; requiring land application site permits to meet 
certain requirements by specified dates, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Appropriations (Current Reference)

Similar
HB 1405 (Tuck) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

SB 1608 Retail Fresh Market Farm 
Stand Signage Rodriguez

Retail Fresh Market Farm Stand Signage; Defining the term “retail fresh 
market farm stand”; establishing the Fresh From Florida Retail Fresh Market 
Farm Stand Signage Program within the Department of Agriculture and 
Consumer Services to provide directional signage for certified retail fresh 
market farm stands; authorizing the Commissioner of Agriculture to 
designate certified retail fresh market farm stands as state tourist attractions; 
requiring owners and operators of certified retail fresh market farm stands to 
pay specified fees; establishing the Fresh From Florida Retail Fresh Market 
Farm Stand Advisory Council within the department, etc. Effective Date: 
7/1/2023

Senate Agriculture
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy (Current Reference)

Compare
HB 0811 (Chambliss) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
Identical
HB 0809 (Chambliss) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
Linked
SB 1610 (Rodriguez) - 04/13/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy

SB 1610
Fees/Fresh From Florida 
Retail Fresh Market Farm 
Stand Signage Program

Rodriguez

Fees/Fresh From Florida Retail Fresh Market Farm Stand Signage Program; 
Requiring the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services to include 
specified application, permit, placement, and removal fees in rules 
implementing the Fresh From Florida Retail Fresh Market Farm Stand 
Signage Program, etc. Effective Date: On the same date that SB 1608 or 
similar legislation takes effect, if such legislation is adopted in the same 
legislative session or an extension thereof and becomes a law

Senate Agriculture
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy (Current Reference)

Compare
HB 0809 (Chambliss) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
Identical
HB 0811 (Chambliss) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
Linked
SB 1608 (Rodriguez) - 04/13/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy

HB 1495
Pub. Rec./Security and 
Transportation Services 
Records

Holcomb

Pub. Rec./Security and Transportation Services Records: Provides 
exemption from public records requirements for records held by law 
enforcement agency relating to certain security or transportation services; 
provides for retroactive application; provides for legislative review & repeal of 
exemption; provides statement of public necessity; provides directive to DLR. 
Effective Date: upon becoming a law 

House Criminal Justice Subcommittee
House Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

Identical
SB 1616 (Martin) - 04/19/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

HB 0839 Spaceflight Entity Liability Sirois

Spaceflight Entity Liability: Revises provisions exempting spaceflight entity 
from liability for injury or death resulting from spaceflight activities; provides 
exceptions; revises provisions requiring signing of specified warning 
statement; revokes immunity privileges for noncompliant spaceflight entity. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

Identical
SB 1318 (Wright) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(188692); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 
39 Yeas / 0 Nays)



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 1184 Agricultural Lands Collins

Agricultural Lands; Prohibiting a county from levying special assessments on 
certain lands; authorizing construction or installation of housing for 
agricultural employees on certain lands; prohibiting local governments from 
adopting land use or zoning restrictions, conditions, or regulations that 
require termination or surrender of agricultural classifications for certain 
property, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Appropriations (Current Reference)

Compare
SB 7062 (Finance and Tax) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
Similar
HB 1343 (Tuck) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

HB 0235 Alternative Mobility Funding 
Systems

Robinson (W) 
Jr.

Alternative Mobility Funding Systems: Revises requirements relating to 
agreements to pay for or construct certain improvements; authorizes certain 
local governments to adopt alternative mobility planning & fee system or 
alternative system in certain circumstances; prohibits alternative system from 
imposing responsibility for funding existing transportation deficiency on new 
development; prohibits local governments that do not issue building permits 
from charging for transportation impacts; prohibits local governments from 
assessing multiple charges for same transportation impact; revises 
requirements for calculation of impact fees by certain local governments & 
special districts; requires local governments transitioning to alternative 
funding systems to provide holders of impact fee credits with full benefit of 
intensity & density of prepaid credit balances as of specified date. Effective 
Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Ways & Means Committee
House Commerce Committee (Current 
Reference)

Compare
SB 0350 (Brodeur) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; 
Transportation; Finance and Tax; Rules

HB 1151 Financing Improvements to 
Real Property Amesty

 Financing Improvements to Real Property: Authorizes residential or 
commercial property owner to apply to local government for funding to 
finance improvement & to enter into financing agreement with local 
government; provides that non-ad valorem assessment on certain 
commercial property is subject to certain fee; specifies requirements of 
financing agreement for government commercial property; specifies 
determinations local government must make before entering into such 
financing agreement; authorizes financing agreement to be executed for 
commercial property; restricts what improvements may be covered in certain 
agreements between local governments & commercial property owners; 
specifies requirements for local government before entering into financing 
agreement. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Ways & Means Committee
House Commerce Committee (Current 
Reference)

Similar
SB 0810 (Gruters) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; Judiciary; 
Fiscal Policy

SB 0108
Trees and Vegetation Within 
the Rights-of-way of Certain 
Roads and Rail Corridors

Rodriguez

Trees and Vegetation Within the Rights-of-way of Certain Roads and Rail 
Corridors; Providing that the prohibition against the removal, cutting, marring, 
defacing, or destruction of trees or other vegetation in certain rights-of-way 
does not apply if the Department of Transportation suspends such prohibition 
pursuant to a declared state of emergency; requiring the department to 
publish informational guidelines regarding the removal of debris from certain 
emergencies, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Community Affairs
Senate Rules

Similar
HB 0055 (Garcia (A)) - 01/10/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee 

SB 0192 Everglades Protection Area Avila

 Everglades Protection Area; Requiring that comprehensive plans and plan 
amendments that apply to certain lands within or near the Everglades 
Protection Area follow the state coordinated review process; requiring the 
Department of Environmental Protection, in consultation with specified 
entities, to make certain determinations for such plans and amendments, to 
provide written determinations to the local government and specified entities 
within a specified timeframe, and to coordinate with the local government and 
specified entities on certain planning strategies and mitigation measures; 
authorizing site-specific text changes for small-scale future land use map 
amendments; requiring local governments whose boundaries include any 
portion of the Everglades Protection Area to transmit copies of adopted small-
scale development amendments to the state land planning agency within a 
specified timeframe, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Rules

Similar
HB 0175 (Busatta Cabrera) - 03/27/2023 
HOUSE Now in Agriculture & Natural 
Resources Appropriations Subcommittee

SB 0284 Energy Brodeur

Energy; Revising the selection criteria for purchasing or leasing vehicles for 
state agencies, state universities, community colleges, and local 
governments under a state purchasing plan; specifying that, if available, a 
state agency must use certain fuels in vehicles with internal combustion 
engines; requiring the Department of Management Services, before a 
specified date, to make recommendations to state agencies, state 
universities, community colleges, and local governments relating to the 
procurement and integration of electric and natural gas fuel vehicles and 
other vehicles powered by renewable energy, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Fiscal Policy

Similar
HB 1025 (Caruso) - 04/14/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 0678 Disposal of Property Powell

Disposal of Property; Providing that the use of property as affordable housing 
qualifies as use for a public purpose in the context of the authorization of the 
Department of Transportation to convey property without consideration to a 
governmental entity, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Transportation
Senate Rules

Identical
HB 0763 (Edmonds) - 04/10/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0731 Local Tax Referenda 
Requirements Temple

Local Tax Referenda Requirements: Requires referendum to reenact expiring 
tourist development tax or tourist impact tax, respectively, to be held at 
general election; limits occurrence of such referendum; requires referendum 
to approve millage rate increase for children's services independent special 
district property tax to be held at general election; limits occurrence of such 
referendum; limits occurrence of referendum to approve county or municipal 
ad valorem tax millage increase, respectively; requires referendum to reenact 
local government discretionary sales surtax to be held at general election; 
limits occurrence of such referendum; requires referendum to adopt, amend, 
or reenact ninth-cent fuel tax or local option fuel taxes, respectively, to be 
held at general election; limits occurrence of such referendum; removes 
provisions that authorize school district millage elections to be held at any 
time & specify limit on such elections; limits occurrence of such referendum. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Ways & Means Committee
House State Affairs Committee

Compare
SB 7062 (Finance and Tax) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
Similar
SB 0698 (Ingoglia) - 04/19/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy

HB 0763 Disposal of Department of 
Transportation Property Edmonds

Disposal of Department of Transportation Property: Provides that use of 
property as affordable housing qualifies as use for public purpose in context 
of authorization of DOT to convey property without consideration to 
governmental entity. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Identical
SB 0678 (Powell) - 04/12/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

SB 1374 Child Restraint Requirements Perry
Child Restraint Requirements; Revising requirements for the use of a crash-
tested, federally approved child restraint device while transporting a child in a 
motor vehicle, etc. Effective Date: 10/1/2023

Senate Children, Families, and Elder 
Affairs
Senate Transportation
Senate Rules (Current Reference)

Identical
HB 1211 (Beltran) - 04/25/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 04/28/23

SB 0432 Driving Under the Influence Wright

Driving Under the Influence; Prohibiting a trial court from accepting specified 
pleas when a person is charged with the offense of driving under the 
influence unless specified conditions are met; requiring a person to be told 
that his or her first failure to submit to a lawful test of breath or urine is a 
second degree misdemeanor and his or her second or subsequent refusal is 
a first degree misdemeanor; reclassifying a person’s first failure to submit to 
a lawful test of breath or urine as a second degree misdemeanor; authorizing 
judicial circuits to create a Driving Under the Influence Diversion Program, 
etc. Effective Date: 10/1/2023

Senate Criminal Justice
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Criminal and Civil Justice (Current 
Reference)
Senate Fiscal Policy

Similar
HB 0781 (Killebrew) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Criminal Justice Subcommittee

SB 0296 Lawful Breath Test for Alcohol DiCeglie

Lawful Breath Test for Alcohol; Requiring that a person arrested for driving 
under the influence who refuses to submit to a lawful test of his or her breath 
be told that he or she is subject to mandatory placement, for a specified 
period of time and at his or her expense, of an ignition interlock device on 
vehicles he or she leases or owns and routinely operates; decreasing the 
timeframe during which a person whose license is suspended for failure to 
submit to a breath, urine, or blood test is not eligible to receive a license for 
business or employment purposes only; requiring a driver who refuses to 
take a lawful test of his or her breath to install an ignition interlock device, 
upon a reinstatement of certain licenses and for a specified time, on vehicles 
he or she leases or owns and routinely operates, etc. Effective Date: 
1/1/2024

Senate Transportation
Senate Criminal Justice
Senate Rules (Current Reference)

Similar
HB 0197 (Koster) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Rules

SB 1096 Monuments and Memorials Martin

 Monuments and Memorials; Citing this act as the "Historical Monuments and 
Memorials Protection Act"; defining the term "memorial"; providing that a 
person or an entity that damages, defaces, destroys, or removes a 
monument or memorial is liable for treble the costs to return, repair, or 
replace the monument or memorial; prohibiting the placement of specified 
objects on or near a memorial that existed before a specified date, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Community Affairs
Senate Rules (Current Reference)

Similar
HB 1607 (Black) - 03/29/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Judiciary Committee



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 5001 General Appropriations Act Appropriations 
Committee

General Appropriations Act: Provides moneys for annual period beginning 
July 1, 2023, & ending June 30, 2024, & supplemental appropriations for 
period ending June 30, 2023, to pay salaries & other expenses, capital 
outlay—buildings & other improvements, & for other specified purposes of 
various agencies of state government. APPROPRIATION: $112,968,304,311 
Effective Date: Except as otherwise provided herein, this act shall take effect 
July 1, 2023, or upon becoming law, whichever occurs later; however, if this 
act becomes law after July 1, 2023, then it shall operate retroactively to July 
1, 2023. 

No committees referenced

Compare
HB 0239 (Busatta Cabrera) - 04/04/2023 
HOUSE  Read Third Time; Substituted for 
SB 7024; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 7024
HB 1219 (Smith) - 04/04/2023 HOUSE  
Read Third Time; Substituted for SB 7018; 
Laid on Table, Refer to SB 7018
HB 1285 (Giallombardo) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Bill placed in Conference 
(Conference Committee on Appropriations); 
Conference Committee appointed
SB 2502 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
SB 2504 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
SB 2506 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
SB 2508 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
SB 2510 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
HB 5003 (Appropriations Committee) - 
04/04/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; 
Substituted for SB 2502; Laid on Table, 
Refer to SB 2502
HB 5005 (Appropriations Committee) - 
04/04/2023 HOUSE  Read Third Time; 
Substituted for SB 2504; Laid on Table, 
Refer to SB 2504
HB 5101 (PreK-12 Appropriations 
Subcommittee) - 04/27/2023 SENATE Bill 
placed in Conference (Conference

HB 0567
Lake Padgett Estates 
Independent Special District, 
Pasco County

Steele
Lake Padgett Estates Independent Special District, Pasco County: Revises 
terms of certain members elected to board of supervisors to provide for 
staggered terms. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

HB 0671 Residential Building Permits Esposito

Residential Building Permits: Revises provisions relating to building permits 
for residential units & dwellings; requires reduced permit fees; revises 
timeframes for approving or denying building permits; specifies when permit 
application is deemed complete & sufficient; requires local governments 
follow prescribed timeframes unless local ordinance is more stringent; 
requires local government to issue percentage of building permits for 
residential community if certain conditions are met; provides requirements & 
prohibitions relating to residential voluntary freeboard for new & improved 
residential construction. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House State Administration & Technology 
Appropriations Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Commerce Committee

Compare
HB 0765 (Roth) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE Now in 
Local Administration, Federal Affairs & 
Special Districts Subcommittee 
Similar
SB 0682 (DiCeglie) - 02/16/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; Regulated 
Industries; Rules

HB 7053 Tourism Development

Regulatory 
Reform & 
Economic 
Development 
Subcommittee

Tourism Development: Revises method of approval of levy & imposition of 
county taxes; requires DOR & counties to remit specified percentage of tax 
revenues to Florida Tourism Industry Marketing Corporation; provides for 
expiration of ordinance that levies & imposes certain taxes; prohibits 
corporation from receiving state funds except for certain county tax 
revenues; requires corporation to take actions & be dissolved upon accepting 
state funds or receiving less than certain amount of public contributions in 
fiscal year; terminates Tourism Promotional Trust Fund. Effective Date: July 
1, 2023 

House Ways & Means Committee (Current 
Reference)
House Appropriations Committee

HB 0413 Financial Assistance for Rural 
Communities Abbott

Financial Assistance for Rural Communities: Requires certain agency 
agreements to include provisions authorizing agencies to provide for 
payment of specified invoices. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee (Current 
Reference)

Compare
HB 1209 (Shoaf) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
SB 1482 (Simon) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23
SB 1628 (Simon) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Commerce and Tourism; Rules



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0321 Movable Tiny Homes Stevenson

Movable Tiny Homes: Provides that park trailer may be used as permanent 
living quarters & referred to as "movable tiny home"; establishes uniform 
standards for construction & inspection of movable tiny home. Effective Date: 
October 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee (Current 
Reference)

Compare
SB 1404 (Trumbull) - 03/15/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
03/17/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)
SB 1406 (Trumbull) - 03/15/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
03/17/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)
Linked
HB 0323 (Stevenson) - 03/15/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
03/17/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)

SB 1708 Cybersecurity DiCeglie

Cybersecurity; Citing this act as the “Florida Cyber Protection Act”; requiring 
the Florida Digital Service to ensure that independent project oversight is 
performed in a certain manner and to take certain actions relating to the 
procurement of project oversight as a service; requiring that the state data 
center be overseen by and accountable to the Department of Management 
Services in consultation with certain officers; requiring a state agency to 
report ransomware and cybersecurity incidents within a certain time period; 
requiring a local government to report ransomware and cybersecurity 
incidents within a certain time period, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations
Senate Rules

Compare
SB 2508 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
Identical
HB 1511 (Giallombardo) - 03/24/2023 
HOUSE Now in State Administration & 
Technology Appropriations Subcommittee

RRS2 Tourism Development

Regulatory 
Reform & 
Economic 
Development 
Subcommittee

 PCB RRS 23-02 – Tourism Development

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)

HB 1591 Electric Vehicle Regulation Maggard

Electric Vehicle Regulation: Requires PSC to adopt rules relating to electric 
vehicle charging; rules must be competitively neutral & apply to certain public 
utilities; requires PSC to adopt rules for orderly transition of existing 
investments in specified infrastructure used for such stations; prohibits public 
utility from certain actions relating to electric vehicle charging stations. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House State Administration & Technology 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Similar
SB 1176 (Simon) - 03/02/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Regulated Industries; 
Transportation; Rules

SB 0856 Amendments to Land 
Development Regulations Rodriguez

Amendments to Land Development Regulations; Prohibiting an initiative or 
referendum process on land development regulation amendments, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Judiciary
Senate Rules

Compare
SB 0718 (Yarborough) - 04/26/2023 HOUSE 
In Messages
Similar
HB 0041 (Garcia (A)) - 04/28/2023 HOUSE  
Temporarily Postponed on Second Reading

APC1 Appropriations Appropriations 
Committee

PCB APC 23-01 - GAA
House Appropriations Committee (Current 
Reference)

SB 0742 Administrative Procedures Grall

Administrative Procedures; Applying certain provisions applicable to all rules 
other than emergency rules to rules amended or repromulgated after a 
specified date; requiring that notice of a proposed rule be published in the 
Florida Administrative Register within a specified timeframe after the most 
recent notice of rule development; requiring that certain rule repeals be 
considered presumptively correct in a proceeding before the Division of 
Administrative Hearings or a court of competent jurisdiction; requiring that 
emergency rules be published in the Florida Administrative Code; authorizing 
agencies to supersede an emergency rule through adoption of another 
emergency rule; requiring agency review of rules and repromulgation of rules 
that do not require substantive changes within a specified timeframe; 
requiring the Department of Environmental Protection and water 
management districts to conduct a holistic review of certain permitting 
processes and programs, etc.  Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Fiscal Policy (Current Reference)

Compare
SB 1632 (Brodeur) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23
Similar
HB 0713 (McFarland) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0175 Everglades Protection Area Busatta Cabrera

Everglades Protection Area: Requires comprehensive plans & plan 
amendments that apply to certain lands within or near Everglades Protection 
Area to follow state coordinated review process; requires DEP to make 
determinations, consult, & coordinate with specified entities regarding such 
plans & amendments; provides additional limitation for compliance 
determination of such plans & plan amendments; prohibits & provides 
requirements for adoption of certain development amendments within 
Everglades Protection Area. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Similar
SB 0192 (Avila) - 04/12/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

SB 1018 Flood Damage Prevention Trumbull

Flood Damage Prevention; Citing this act as the "Flood Damage Prevention 
Act of 2023"; providing voluntary freeboard requirements for all new 
construction and substantial improvements to existing construction; 
prohibiting voluntary freeboard from being used in the calculation of the 
maximum allowable height for certain construction in applicable zoning 
districts; authorizing local governments to adopt by ordinance a minimum 
freeboard requirement or a maximum voluntary freeboard that exceeds the 
minimum requirements in the Florida Building Code or established in the act, 
etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Rules (Current Reference)

Identical
HB 0859 (Basabe) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee

HB 0359 Local Government 
Comprehensive Plans Duggan

Local Government Comprehensive Plans: Revises review process for 
adoption of comprehensive plan amendments; provides that prevailing party 
in challenge to plan or plan amendment & to compliance of small scale 
development order is entitled to recover attorney fees & costs. Effective 
Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

Similar
SB 0540 (DiCeglie) - 04/19/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

HB 1511 Cybersecurity Giallombardo

Cybersecurity: Exempts certain personnel from career service; requires 
Florida Digital Service to take actions & establish operations committee; 
requires state CIO to designate state chief technology officer; requires 
Florida Digital Service to be provided with access to state data center; 
requires state agency & local government to report ransomware & 
cybersecurity incidents; requires Florida Digital Service to notify Governor & 
Legislature of certain incidents; provides that county, municipality, or 
commercial entity that complies with certain requirements is not liable in 
connection with cybersecurity incident. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee
House State Administration & Technology 
Appropriations Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Commerce Committee

Compare
SB 2508 (Appropriations) - 04/24/2023 
SENATE Conference Committee appointed
Identical
SB 1708 (DiCeglie) - 03/30/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government

SB 0034 Florida Statutes Mayfield

Florida Statutes; Deleting provisions which have become inoperative by 
noncurrent repeal or expiration and, pursuant to s. 11.242(5)(b) and (i), F.S., 
may be omitted from the 2023 Florida Statutes only through a reviser’s bill 
duly enacted by the Legislature, etc. Effective Date: On the 60th day after 
adjournment sine die of the session of the Legislature in which enacted

Senate Rules

Identical
HB 7013 (Rules Committee) - 03/16/2023 
HOUSE  Substituted for SB 0034; Laid on 
Table, Refer to SB 0034

SB 0032 Florida Statutes Mayfield

Florida Statutes; Deleting provisions that have expired, have become 
obsolete, have had their effect, have served their purpose, or have been 
impliedly repealed or superseded; replacing incorrect cross-references and 
citations; correcting grammatical, typographical, and like errors; removing 
inconsistencies, redundancies, and unnecessary repetition in the statutes; 
and improving the clarity of the statutes and facilitating their correct 
interpretation, etc. Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly provided in 
this act and except for this section, which shall take effect July 1, 2023, this 
act shall take effect on the 60th day after adjournment sine die of the session 
of the Legislature in which enacted

Senate Rules

Identical
HB 7011 (Rules Committee) - 03/16/2023 
HOUSE  Substituted for SB 0032; Laid on 
Table, Refer to SB 0032

HB 0627 Housing Busatta Cabrera

 Housing: Removes authority of local governments to adopt or maintain laws, 
ordinances, rules, or other measures that would have effect of imposing 
controls on rents; specifies requirements & restrictions on counties in 
approving housing developments; authorizes local governments to adopt 
ordinances to provide ad valorem tax exemption for portions of property used 
to provide affordable housing; revises total amount of community contribution 
tax credits which may be granted for projects; provides sales tax exemption 
for building materials used in construction of affordable housing units; 
authorizes department to make information available to corporation to 
administer Live Local Program; prohibits deduction of General Revenue 
Fund service charge on documentary stamp tax proceeds; provides 
appropriations. APPROPRIATION: $711,000,000 Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House State Affairs Committee
House Ways & Means Committee

Compare
SB 0220 (Rodriguez) - 01/18/2023 SENATE 
Withdrawn prior to introduction
HB 0229 (Cross) - 01/25/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Ways & Means Committee 
HB 0771 (Nixon) - 03/01/2023 HOUSE 
Withdrawn prior to introduction
SB 0772 (Davis) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Appropriations
HB 1407 (Eskamani) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in State Affairs Committee 
SB 1658 (Torres, Jr.) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Governmental 
Oversight and Accountability; Fiscal Policy
Identical
SB 0102 (Calatayud) - 03/29/2023  
Approved by Governor; Chapter No. 2023-
17



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 1515 Local Ordinances Brackett

Local Ordinances: Authorizes courts to assess & award reasonable attorney 
fees & costs & damages in certain civil actions filed against local 
governments; specifies limitation on awards & restriction on fees & costs of 
certain litigation; provides certain procedures for continued meetings on 
proposed ordinances; provides duties of board of county commissioners & 
governing body of municipalities. Effective Date: October 1, 2023

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

Similar
SB 0170 (Trumbull) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

SB 1666
Marine Encroachment on 
Spaceflight and Military 
Operations

Wright

Marine Encroachment on Spaceflight and Military Operations; Encouraging 
the sharing of information about certain community grants through specified 
federal programs to facilitate the compatibility and resiliency of community 
planning and the activities and mission of a military installation or range; 
requiring the head of a law enforcement agency or entity to report the 
establishment of a temporary protection zone to the appropriate port 
authority; requiring the port authority to direct a licensed state pilot or 
certificated deputy pilot to hand deliver written notice of such establishment 
and related penalties to operators of certain vessels, etc. Effective Date: 
7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Military and Veterans Affairs, 
Space, and Domestic Security (Current 
Reference)
Senate Rules

Identical
HB 1491 (Altman) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE  
Now in Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee

HB 1641
Use of Information Obtained 
by Automated License Plate 
Recognition System

Snyder

Use of Information Obtained by Automated License Plate Recognition 
System: Requires law enforcement agency that uses automated license plate 
recognition system to adopt policy for use of information obtained by such 
system according to certain rules, regulations, & standards. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023

House Criminal Justice Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

SB 0322 Natural Gas Fuel Taxes Gruters
Natural Gas Fuel Taxes; Delaying the effective date of taxes on natural gas 
fuel, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Appropriations (Current Reference)

Compare
SB 7062 (Finance and Tax) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
HB 7063 (Ways & Means Committee) - 
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to 
Appropriations
Identical
HB 0529 (Mooney, Jr.) - 03/08/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Ways & Means Committee

SB 1390 Universal Regulatory Sandbox Martin

Universal Regulatory Sandbox; Creating the Office of Regulatory Relief within 
the Department of Economic Opportunity; creating the General Regulatory 
Sandbox Program; providing requirements for applications; requiring the 
office to consult with specified entities before admitting an applicant into the 
regulatory sandbox; specifying limits to such exemption; authorizing the office 
to terminate participation in the regulatory sandbox, etc. Effective Date: July 
1, 2023, only if SB 1392 or similar legislation is adopted in the same 
legislative session or an extension of thereof and becomes a law

Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development (Current Reference)
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 1289 (Giallombardo) - 03/06/2023 
HOUSE Now in Regulatory Reform & 
Economic Development Subcommittee
Similar
HB 1287 (Giallombardo) - 03/06/2023 
HOUSE Now in Regulatory Reform & 
Economic Development Subcommittee 
Linked
SB 1392 (Martin) - 03/21/2023 SENATE Now 
in Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development

SB 1392
Public Records and 
Meetings/Universal 
Regulatory Sandbox

Martin

Public Records and Meetings/Universal Regulatory Sandbox; Providing an 
exemption from public records requirements for information in universal 
regulatory sandbox applications determined by the Office of Regulatory 
Relief to be economically harmful to the applicant if released; providing for 
future legislative review and repeal of the exemptions; providing a statement 
of public necessity, etc. Effective Date: On the same date that SB 1390 or 
similar legislation takes effect, if such legislation is adopted in the same 
legislative session or an extension thereof and becomes a law

Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development (Current Reference)
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 1287 (Giallombardo) - 03/06/2023 
HOUSE Now in Regulatory Reform & 
Economic Development Subcommittee 
Identical
HB 1289 (Giallombardo) - 03/06/2023 
HOUSE Now in Regulatory Reform & 
Economic Development Subcommittee
Linked
SB 1390 (Martin) - 03/21/2023 SENATE Now 
in Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development

RRS1 Space Florida

Regulatory 
Reform & 
Economic 
Development 
Subcommittee

PCB RRS 23-01 – Space Florida

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)

HB 0421 Driving in the Furthermost 
Left-hand Lane of a Roadway Persons-Mulicka

Driving in the Furthermost Left-hand Lane of a Roadway: Prohibits driver 
from continuously operating motor vehicle in furthermost left-hand lane of 
certain roadways; provides penalty. Effective Date: January 1, 2024 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee 
(Current Reference)

Identical
SB 0464 (Perry) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Temporarily Postponed on Second Reading



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 7011 Florida Statutes Rules 
Committee

Florida Statutes: Deletes provisions that have expired, have become 
obsolete, have had their effect, have served their purpose, or have been 
impliedly repealed or superseded; replaces incorrect cross-references & 
citations; corrects grammatical, typographical, & like errors; removes 
inconsistencies, redundancies, & unnecessary repetition in statutes; & 
improves clarity of statutes & facilitates their correct interpretation. Effective 
Date: on the 60th day after adjournment sine die of the session of the 
Legislature in which enacted 

No committees referenced

Identical
SB 0032 (Mayfield) - 03/24/2023  Approved 
by Governor; Chapter No. 2023-8

SB 0288
Florida Main Street Program 
and Historic Preservation Tax 
Credits

DiCeglie

Florida Main Street Program and Historic Preservation Tax Credits; Citing 
this act as the "Main Street Historic Tourism and Revitalization Act"; 
providing a credit against the state corporate income tax and the insurance 
premium tax for qualified expenses in rehabilitating certain historic structures; 
specifying eligibility requirements for the tax credit; specifying requirements 
for the Division of Historical Resources of the Department of State for 
evaluating and certifying applications for tax credits; specifying the order in 
which the credit is applied against the corporate income tax or franchise tax, 
etc. Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this act and 
except for this section, which shall take effect upon this act becoming a law, 
this act shall take effect January 1, 2024

Senate Commerce and Tourism
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Appropriations (Current Reference)

Compare
SB 7062 (Finance and Tax) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
Similar
HB 0499 (Stark) - 02/01/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
02/03/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)

HB 0323 Fees/Movable Tiny Homes Stevenson

Fees/Movable Tiny Homes: Imposes annual license tax to be collected upon 
registration or renewal of registration of movable tiny home; provides for 
payment & disposition of fees relating to licensure as movable tiny home 
dealer. Effective Date: on the same date that HB 321 or similar legislation 
takes effect 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Ways & Means Committee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Compare
SB 1404 (Trumbull) - 03/15/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
03/17/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)
Identical
SB 1406 (Trumbull) - 03/15/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
03/17/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)
Linked
HB 0321 (Stevenson) - 03/31/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Commerce Committee

SB 1050 Sales Tax on Aircraft Sales 
and Leases Wright

Sales Tax on Aircraft Sales and Leases; Limiting the sales tax imposed on 
the sale or use of an aircraft; revising the applicability of the sales tax 
exemption on sales or leases of aircraft, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Commerce and Tourism (Current 
Reference)
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Appropriations

SB 1404 Movable Tiny Homes Trumbull

Movable Tiny Homes; Providing for taxation of a movable tiny home 
according to its classification; including movable tiny homes in provisions 
relating to expiration and renewal of registration; including movable tiny home 
dealers and manufacturers in provisions relating to license taxes for dealer 
and manufacturer license plates; defining the terms “dealer” and “movable 
tiny home broker”; providing conditions under which a licensed dealer may 
transact business in movable tiny homes; establishing uniform standards for 
manufacturing, inspection, and certification of movable tiny homes, etc. 
Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this act, this act 
shall take effect July 1, 2023, but only if SB 1406 or similar legislation takes 
effect, if such legislation is adopted in the same legislative session or an 
extension thereof and becomes a law

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Regulated Industries
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 0321 (Stevenson) - 03/31/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Commerce Committee
HB 0323 (Stevenson) - 03/15/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
03/17/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)
Linked
SB 1406 (Trumbull) - 03/15/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
03/17/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)

SB 1406 Fees/Movable Tiny Homes Trumbull

Fees/Movable Tiny Homes; Imposing an annual license tax to be collected 
upon registration or renewal of registration of a movable tiny home; providing 
for payment and disposition of fees relating to licensure as a movable tiny 
home dealer, etc. Effective Date: On the same date that SB 1404 or similar 
legislation takes effect, if such legislation is adopted in the same legislative 
session or an extension thereof and becomes a law

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Regulated Industries
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 0321 (Stevenson) - 03/31/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Commerce Committee
Identical
HB 0323 (Stevenson) - 03/15/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
03/17/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)
Linked
SB 1404 (Trumbull) - 03/15/2023  Bill to be 
Discussed During the Office of EDR's 
Revenue Estimating Impact Conference, 
03/17/23, 9:00 am, 117 K (No Votes Will Be 
Taken)



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0401 Sovereign Immunity Beltran

Sovereign Immunity: Revises statutory limits on liability for tort claims against 
state & its agencies & subdivisions; revises requirements for government 
entity to settle claim or judgment; revises timeframe within which appropriate 
agency must make final disposition of claim after it is filed to prevent claim 
from being deemed denied; revises exceptions relating to instituting actions 
on claims against state or one of its agencies or subdivisions & to statute of 
limitations for such claims. Effective Date: October 1, 2024

House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House Appropriations Committee (Current 
Reference)
House Judiciary Committee

Compare
SB 0604 (Gruters) - 02/16/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Governmental 
Oversight and Accountability; Appropriations

SB 7010 OGSR/United States Census 
Bureau

Governmental 
Oversight and 
Accountability

OGSR/United States Census Bureau; Repealing a provision which provides 
an exemption from public records requirements for United States Census 
Bureau address information held by an agency pursuant to the Local Update 
of Census Addresses Program, etc. Effective Date: Upon becoming a law

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Rules

HB 0937 Temporary Airports Trabulsy

Temporary Airports: Requires documentation to be submitted to DOT for 
temporary airport site approval & registration; requires temporary airport to 
obtain registration before operation of aircraft; requires DOT to publish notice 
of receipt of registration application; requires DOT to issue registration 
concurrent with site approval; provides certain registrations are considered 
approved; removes condition for licensure or registration; revises exemption 
for airport used for aerial application or spraying of crops. Effective Date: July 
1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee 
(Current Reference)

Compare
HB 1305 (Abbott) - 04/28/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
SB 1554 (DiCeglie) - 03/03/2023 SENATE 
Withdrawn prior to introduction
Similar
SB 1672 (DiCeglie) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(391390); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 
39 Yeas / 0 Nays)

SB 0910 Management and Storage of 
Surface Waters Burton

Management and Storage of Surface Waters; Providing an exemption from 
surface water management and storage regulations for the implementation of 
certain measures and practices for environmental habitat creation, 
restoration, and enhancement activities and water quality improvements on 
specified agricultural lands and government-owned lands; removing 
requirements for adverse impacts on water resources, certain notification by 
the department and water management districts, and commencement of 
activities, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Rules

Compare
HB 0371 (Killebrew) - 02/01/2023 HOUSE  
Now in Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee 

SB 0796 Seaports Wright

Seaports; Increasing the minimum amount of funds to be made available for 
the Florida Seaport Transportation and Economic Development Program 
from the State Transportation Trust Fund beginning in a specified fiscal year; 
increasing the amount the Department of Transportation is required to 
include in its annual legislative budget request for the program; increasing 
the amount of funds to be made available from the State Transportation 
Trust Fund to fund the Strategic Port Investment Initiative beginning in a 
specified fiscal year, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Appropriations

SB 0310 Federal Law Enforcement 
Agency Records Collins

Federal Law Enforcement Agency Records; Revising the general state policy 
on public records to include certain federal law enforcement agency records; 
revising definitions; requiring certain federal law enforcement agencies to 
comply with the public records requirements of this state, etc. Effective Date: 
7/1/2023

Senate Criminal Justice (Current 
Reference)
Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Rules

Identical
HB 0279 (Jacques) - 02/01/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee

HB 0915 Florida Shared-Use 
Nonmotorized Trail Network Botana

Florida Shared-Use Nonmotorized Trail Network: Authorizes DEP to establish 
program to recognize specified local communities as trail towns; revises 
composition of board of directors of Florida Tourism Industry Marketing 
Corporation; extends Florida Shared-Use Nonmotorized Trail Network to 
lands of Florida wildlife corridor; increases amount DOT is required to 
allocate for purposes of funding & maintaining projects within Florida Shared-
Use Nonmotorized Trail Network, etc. APPROPRIATION: $200,000,000 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Infrastructure Strategies Committee
House Appropriations Committee (Current 
Reference)

Identical
SB 0106 (Brodeur) - 04/11/2023  Approved 
by Governor; Chapter No. 2023-20

Yes

HB 1639 Driver Licenses and 
Identification Cards Chambliss

Driver Licenses and Identification Cards: Requires proof of specified 
identification number for driver license applicants; removes provision 
authorizing DHSMV to require applicants to produce documents from U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security; authorizes additional documents issued 
by foreign governments to satisfy proof-of-identity requirements; provides 
validity period for driver license or temporary permit issued based on such 
documents; prohibits DHSMV from disclosing information to agency that 
enforces immigration law; requires DHSMV to notify individual about whom 
such information was requested; prohibits discrimination against individual 
with driver license that does not comply with REAL ID Act. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Compare
SB 0866 (Torres, Jr.) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 1529 Agricultural Property Roth

Agricultural Property: Authorizes certain facilities be permitted specified land 
use categories & zoning districts; provides that certain businesses & facilities 
are traditionally rural; authorizes an affirmative defense; authorizes property 
to be classified as agricultural at time of purchase if certain conditions are 
met; requires such property obtain certain classification within specified time 
period; authorizes retroactive reclassification; authorizes property appraiser 
to extend time period; requires local government to make certain notifications 
to purchasers; revises the definition of "agricultural purposes". Effective 
Date: July 1, 2023

House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Ways & Means Committee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Compare
SB 1678 (Calatayud) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; Finance and 
Tax; Appropriations

HB 1499 Affordable Housing Skidmore

Affordable Housing: Authorizes municipalities to create community land bank 
programs to sell eligible real property by private sale for purposes of 
affordable housing & provides requirements for such programs; authorizes 
Florida Housing Finance Corporation to allocate tax credit to certain projects; 
authorizes tax credit to be transferred by recipient; authorizes corporation to 
establish procedures, exercise powers, & prepare annual plan; requires plan 
to be approved by Governor; provides FHFC with certain powers & 
responsibilities relating to Affordable Housing Construction Loan Program; 
provides requirements for program. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Ways & Means Committee
House State Affairs Committee

HB 1491
Marine Encroachment on 
Spaceflight and Military 
Operations

Altman

Marine Encroachment on Spaceflight and Military Operations: Encourages 
sharing of information about community grants through federal programs to 
facilitate compatibility & resiliency of community planning & activities & 
mission of military installation or range; requires law enforcement agency or 
entity to report establishment of temporary protection zone to appropriate 
port authority; requires port authority to direct licensed state pilot or 
certificated deputy pilot to hand deliver written notice of such establishment & 
related penalties to operators of certain vessels; requires such operators to 
sign & return such notice to state pilot or deputy pilot. Effective Date: July 1, 
2023

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee
House State Affairs Committee

Identical
SB 1666 (Wright) - 03/22/2023 SENATE 
Now in Military and Veterans Affairs, Space, 
and Domestic Security

HB 1473 Vacating Premises After 
Rental Agreement Termination Gantt

Vacating Premises After Rental Agreement Termination: Requires landlords 
to provide certain tenants specified amount of time to vacate premises after 
delivery of notice to terminate rental agreement before bring specified action. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Civil Justice Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

Compare
HB 1407 (Eskamani) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in State Affairs Committee 
SB 1658 (Torres, Jr.) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Governmental 
Oversight and Accountability; Fiscal Policy

HB 1455 Governmental Agency Drone 
Use Altman

Governmental Agency Drone Use: Requires governmental agencies that use 
drones not produced by approved manufacturers to submit by specified date 
to DMS comprehensive plan for discontinuing use of such drones by 
specified date; requires that agencies not timely submitting required plan 
must discontinue use of such drones by specified date. Effective Date: upon 
becoming a law 

House Constitutional Rights, Rule of Law & 
Government Operations Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House State Affairs Committee

Identical
SB 1514 (Wright) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability; Community Affairs; Rules

HB 1407 Housing Eskamani

Housing: Creates Department of Housing & Tenant Rights; provides for 
secretary be appointed by Governor & confirmed by Senate; provides 
purpose of department; requires department submit a specified report; 
revises provisions relating to residential tenancies, landlords, & tenants, 
including requirements for rental agreements, security deposits, notices, 
evictions, rights to purchase, rent control, impact fees, & documentary stamp 
taxes. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House State Affairs Committee (Current 
Reference)
House Appropriations Committee
House Judiciary Committee

Compare
SB 0102 (Calatayud) - 03/29/2023  
Approved by Governor; Chapter No. 2023-
17
HB 0627 (Busatta Cabrera) - 03/23/2023 
HOUSE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 0102; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 0102
HB 1473 (Gantt) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Civil Justice Subcommittee
Identical
SB 1658 (Torres, Jr.) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Governmental 
Oversight and Accountability; Fiscal Policy

HB 1371 Side-by-side Vehicles McClain

Side-by-side Vehicles: Authorizes operation of side-by-side vehicles; requires 
side-by-side vehicles to have certain equipment; prohibits persons under 
certain age from operating side-by-side vehicle on public road or street; 
authorizes local governmental entities to enact certain ordinances pertaining 
to side-by-side vehicles; authorizes operation of side-by-side vehicles in 
retirement community; authorizes local governmental entities to enact certain 
ordinances pertaining to side-by-side vehicles; authorizes operation of side-
by-side vehicles; authorizes law enforcement agencies to operate side-by-
side vehicles; defines "side-by-side vehicle" & "UTV"; exempts person from 
obtaining driver's license when operating side-by-side vehicle. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Identical
SB 0578 (Grall) - 02/16/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Community 
Affairs; Fiscal Policy



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 1546 Human Trafficking Stewart

Human Trafficking; Prohibiting an operator of a public lodging establishment 
from offering an hourly rate or a fraction of an hourly rate, or any combination 
thereof, for less than 3 hours for an accommodation; requiring the employer 
at an athletic venue, an entertainment venue, or a convention center with a 
certain capacity to display a human trafficking public awareness sign in a 
conspicuous location that is clearly visible to the public and employees; 
increasing the number of training hours in identifying and investigating 
human trafficking which each certified law enforcement officer must 
successfully complete within 1 year after beginning employment; creating the 
Statewide Data Repository for Anonymous Human Trafficking Data at the 
University of South Florida, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Criminal Justice (Current 
Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Criminal and Civil Justice
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 7045 (Judiciary Committee) - 04/20/2023 
HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
SB 7064 (Fiscal Policy) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Placed on Special Order Calendar, 
05/01/23

SB 1562 Federal Infrastructure Bank Torres, Jr.
Federal Infrastructure Bank; Urging Congress to pass H.R. 490, which 
creates a Federal Infrastructure Bank to finance urgently needed 
infrastructure projects, etc. 

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Rules

SB 1516 Accessibility of Governmental 
Records Pizzo

Accessibility of Governmental Records; Requiring governmental entities to 
make requested records available to members of the Legislature, the 
Attorney General, the Chief Financial Officer, or the Commissioner of 
Agriculture, respectively, within a specified timeframe upon the request of 
such person; prohibiting members of the Legislature, the Chief Financial 
Officer, and the Commissioner of Agriculture from receiving certain records 
during a specified period of time; requiring that members of the Legislature 
and such officers submit their requests to governmental entities in a specified 
format, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability (Current Reference)
Senate Rules

Identical
HB 1527 (Joseph) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee

SB 1514 Drones Wright

Drones; Requiring governmental agencies that use drones not produced by 
approved manufacturers to submit by a specified date to the Department of 
Management Services a comprehensive plan for discontinuing the use of 
such drones by a specified date; deleting an obsolete provision; requiring all 
governmental agencies that do not timely submit the required comprehensive 
plan to discontinue usage of such drones by a specified date, etc. Effective 
Date: Upon becoming a law

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability (Current Reference)
Senate Community Affairs
Senate Rules

Identical
HB 1455 (Altman) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Constitutional Rights, Rule of Law & 
Government Operations Subcommittee

SB 1640 Installation of Waterway 
Markers Gruters

Installation of Waterway Markers; Revising the application requirements for 
marking certain waters of this state; requiring all waterway markers to be 
affixed to certain structures or buoys beginning on a specified date; requiring 
state and local governmental entities to conform to such requirements by a 
specified date, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

SB 1628 Financial Assistance for Rural 
Areas of Opportunity Simon

Financial Assistance for Rural Areas of Opportunity; Prohibiting certain 
agency agreements from requiring the expenditure of funds before 
reimbursement; authorizing agencies to undertake certain actions, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Commerce and Tourism (Current 
Reference)
Senate Rules

Compare
HB 0413 (Abbott) - 03/31/2023 HOUSE Now 
in State Affairs Committee
HB 1209 (Shoaf) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
SB 1482 (Simon) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23

SB 1678 Agricultural Property 
Classification Calatayud

Agricultural Property Classification; Authorizing property to be classified as 
agricultural at the time of purchase if certain conditions are met; requiring 
that such property obtain certain classification within a specified time period; 
authorizing retroactive reclassification in certain circumstances, etc. Effective 
Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Appropriations

Compare
HB 1529 (Roth) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE Now in 
Agriculture, Conservation & Resiliency 
Subcommittee

SB 1658 Housing Torres, Jr.

Housing; Citing this act as the "Keep Floridians Housed Act"; creating the 
Department of Housing and Tenant Rights as a new department of state 
government; removing the option for a landlord to deposit certain money into 
a non-interest-bearing account; prohibiting a landlord from engaging in 
certain conduct; prohibiting a landlord from evicting a tenant or terminating a 
rental agreement because the tenant or the tenant’s minor child is a victim of 
actual or threatened domestic violence, dating violence, sexual violence, or 
stalking; authorizing local governments and special districts to adopt a 
specified impact fee, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Judiciary (Current Reference)
Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
SB 0102 (Calatayud) - 03/29/2023  
Approved by Governor; Chapter No. 2023-
17
HB 0627 (Busatta Cabrera) - 03/23/2023 
HOUSE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 0102; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 0102
HB 1473 (Gantt) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Civil Justice Subcommittee
Identical
HB 1407 (Eskamani) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in State Affairs Committee 



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 1484 Office of the Blue Economy Pizzo

Office of the Blue Economy; Establishing the Office of the Blue Economy 
within the Department of Economic Opportunity; defining the term “blue 
economy”; requiring the Office of Economic and Demographic Research to 
conduct a biennial evaluation of the blue economy for inclusion in a certain 
assessment, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Commerce and Tourism (Current 
Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Identical
HB 0527 (Skidmore) - 02/07/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee

SB 1704 Commercial Motor Vehicle 
Insurance DiCeglie

Commercial Motor Vehicle Insurance; Requiring specified combined bodily 
and property damage liability insurance coverage for commercial motor 
vehicles used to furnish equipment, supplies, materials, or services to certain 
projects for a governmental entity, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Banking and Insurance (Current 
Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

SB 1700 Vehicle For-hire Licenses DiCeglie

Vehicle For-hire Licenses; Authorizing persons who hold vehicle for-hire 
licenses issued by any county or municipality in this state to perform work in 
any county or municipality in this state, regardless of additional licensing 
requirements, under certain circumstances; authorizing persons who hold 
vehicle for-hire airport permits to perform work at any airport regardless of 
additional airport permit requirements, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Community Affairs
Senate Rules

Similar
HB 0807 (Borrero) - 04/20/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

SB 0370 Electronic Motor Vehicle 
Registration Certificates Brodeur

Electronic Motor Vehicle Registration Certificates; Authorizing a uniform 
paper or electronic format of the registration certificate for a motor vehicle; 
prohibiting an officer or agent from accessing certain information upon 
presentation of an electronic registration certificate on an electronic device, 
etc. Effective Date: 1/1/2024

Senate Transportation
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy (Current Reference)

Compare
HB 1085 (Maney) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
SB 1252 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Retained on Special Order Calendar

SB 0170 Local Ordinances Trumbull

Local Ordinances; Authorizing courts to assess and award reasonable 
attorney fees and costs and damages in certain civil actions filed against 
local governments; providing certain procedures for continued meetings on 
proposed ordinances and resolutions for counties; requiring a county to 
suspend enforcement of an ordinance that is the subject of a certain legal 
action if certain conditions are met; providing certain procedures for 
continued meetings on proposed ordinances for municipalities, etc. Effective 
Date: Except as otherwise expressly provided in this act and except for this 
section, which shall take effect upon becoming a law, this act shall take effect 
October 1, 2023

Senate Community Affairs
Senate Rules

Similar
HB 1515 (Brackett) - 03/23/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading

HB 0529 Natural Gas Fuel Taxes Mooney, Jr.
Natural Gas Fuel Taxes: Extends expiration date for levying penalties on 
natural gas retailers that do not have licenses; delaying effective date of 
certain taxes on natural gas fuel. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee
House Ways & Means Committee (Current 
Reference)
House Commerce Committee

Compare
SB 7062 (Finance and Tax) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
HB 7063 (Ways & Means Committee) - 
04/27/2023 SENATE Received; Referred to 
Appropriations
Identical
SB 0322 (Gruters) - 03/21/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations

HB 1289 Pub. Rec. and 
Meetings/Regulatory Sandbox Giallombardo

Pub. Rec. and Meetings/Regulatory Sandbox: Provides exemption from 
public records requirements for information in regulatory sandbox 
applications determined by Office of Regulatory Relief to be economically 
harmful to applicant if released; provides exemption from public meetings 
requirements for all or portions of meetings of General Regulatory Sandbox 
Program Advisory Committee; provides exemption from public records 
requirements for recordings, minutes, & records generated during closed 
portions of such meetings; provides for future legislative review & repeal of 
exemptions; provides statement of public necessity. Effective Date: on the 
same date that HB 1287 or similar legislation takes effect 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Compare
SB 1390 (Martin) - 03/21/2023 SENATE Now 
in Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Identical
SB 1392 (Martin) - 03/21/2023 SENATE Now 
in Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Linked
HB 1287 (Giallombardo) - 03/06/2023 
HOUSE Now in Regulatory Reform & 
Economic Development Subcommittee 



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 1287 Universal Regulatory Sandbox Giallombardo

Universal Regulatory Sandbox: Creates Office of Regulatory Relief within 
DEO; specifies duties of office; creates General Regulatory Sandbox 
Program Advisory Committee; creates General Regulatory Sandbox 
Program; requires office to consult with specified entities before admitting 
applicant into regulatory sandbox; provides criteria for review of applications; 
exempts denial of application from certain review or specified laws; exempts 
sandbox participants from enforcement by certain laws or regulations for 
specified period; provides certain immunity to office & its employees; 
provides for consumer protections; provides recordkeeping & reporting 
requirements. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House State Administration & Technology 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Compare
SB 1392 (Martin) - 03/21/2023 SENATE Now 
in Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Similar
SB 1390 (Martin) - 03/21/2023 SENATE Now 
in Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Linked
HB 1289 (Giallombardo) - 03/06/2023 
HOUSE Now in Regulatory Reform & 
Economic Development Subcommittee

HB 1197 Land and Water Management Maggard

Land and Water Management: Prohibits counties & municipalities from 
adopting laws, regulations, rules, or policies relating to water quality or 
quantity, pollution control, discharge prevention or removal, or wetlands & 
preempts such regulation to the state; requires DEP to notify CFO of certain 
violations; requires CFO to withhold certain funds; repeals provisions relating 
to land management review teams. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Identical
SB 1240 (Burgess) - 03/06/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Environment and Natural 
Resources; Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government; Fiscal Policy

HB 1147 Resilience Districts Buchanan

Resilience Districts: Authorizes establishment of infrastructure resilience 
districts & condominium resilience districts; provides requirements related to 
establishment of such districts, including petitions, public hearings, 
resolutions, size, boards, & budgets; requires resilience districts to replace 
certain other special taxing districts; specifies acceptable uses of resilience 
districts for infrastructure & condominiums; authorizes payment of fees for 
project management of infrastructure resilience district. Effective Date: July 
1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Ways & Means Committee
House State Affairs Committee

Similar
SB 1200 (Grall) - 03/02/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; Finance and 
Tax; Fiscal Policy

SB 0602 Land Acquisition Trust Fund Burton

Land Acquisition Trust Fund; Providing an annual appropriation to the 
Department of Environmental Protection to implement the Heartland 
Headwaters Protection and Sustainability Act; requiring the funds to be used 
and distributed for specified purposes, etc. APPROPRIATION: Indeterminate 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations

Similar
HB 0557 (Bell) - 02/07/2023 HOUSE Now in 
Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee

SB 1298 Endangered and Threatened 
Species Jones

Endangered and Threatened Species; Revising the legislative intent of the 
Florida Endangered and Threatened Species Act; directing the Fish and 
Wildlife Conservation Commission to protect certain endangered or 
threatened species, regardless of the status of their federal classification; 
revising criteria for placement of species on the Regulated Plant Index by the 
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services; directing the department, 
in consultation with the Endangered Plant Advisory Council, to protect certain 
endangered or threatened species, regardless of the status of their federal 
classification, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources (Current Reference)
Senate Agriculture
Senate Rules

Identical
HB 1229 (Campbell) - 03/06/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee

SB 1240 Land and Water Management Burgess

Land and Water Management; Prohibiting counties and municipalities from 
adopting laws, regulations, rules, or policies relating to water quality or 
quantity, pollution control, pollutant discharge prevention or removal, and 
wetlands; preempting such regulation to the state; repealing a provision 
relating to land management review teams, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

Identical
HB 1197 (Maggard) - 03/06/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee

SB 1326 Motor Vehicle License Tags Grall

Motor Vehicle License Tags; Repealing provisions relating to the installation 
and use of traffic infraction detectors to enforce specified provisions, the 
authorization for the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, a 
county, or a municipality to use a traffic enforcement officer for a specified 
purpose, and the distribution of penalties collected for specified violations, 
respectively; Repealing provisions relating to transitional implementation of 
traffic infraction detectors, placement and installation of traffic infraction 
detectors, and failure to comply with civil penalty or to appear, and 
authorization to use traffic infraction detectors, respectively, etc. Effective 
Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

SB 1554 Temporary Airports DiCeglie
Temporary Airports; Providing procedures for the issuance of a temporary 
airport license or registration by the Department of Transportation, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

No committees referenced

Compare
HB 0937 (Trabulsy) - 03/14/2023 HOUSE  
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee 
SB 1672 (DiCeglie) - 04/28/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Amendment Adopted 
(391390); Read Third Time; Passed (Vote: 
39 Yeas / 0 Nays)



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 1212 Affordable Housing Rodriguez

Affordable Housing; Providing that a provision authorizing the board of 
county commissioners to approve certain development projects does not 
apply in a specified area of critical state concern; providing that a provision 
authorizing a municipality to approve certain development projects does not 
apply in a specified area of critical state concern; providing that certain 
provisions governing awards made pursuant to local housing assistance 
plans do not apply to counties and municipalities within areas of critical state 
concern meeting certain criteria, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Similar
HB 1293 (Mooney, Jr.) - 04/19/2023 HOUSE 
Temporarily Postponed by State Affairs 
Committee

SB 1200 Resilience Districts Grall

Resilience Districts; Creating the "Resilience District Act of 2023"; authorizing 
the establishment of infrastructure resilience districts through a petition by 
certain persons; prohibiting a local government from initiating an 
infrastructure resilience district without such petition; authorizing the 
establishment of condominium resilience districts through a petition by 
certain persons; authorizing the payment of certain fees for project 
management of infrastructure resilience districts; specifying the powers the 
district may exercise, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Fiscal Policy

Similar
HB 1147 (Buchanan) - 03/06/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee

SB 1196
Transportation Facility 
Designations/Michael Scott 
Williams Parkway

Simon

Transportation Facility Designations/Michael Scott Williams Parkway; 
Providing an honorary designation of a certain transportation facility in a 
specified county; directing the Department of Transportation to erect suitable 
markers, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 0021 (Sirois) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
returning messages
SB 0096 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0021; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0021
HB 0893 (Brannan III) - 03/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee

SB 1178

Transportation Facility 
Designations/Senior Inspector 
Rita Jane Hall Memorial 
Highway

Simon

Transportation Facility Designations/Senior Inspector Rita Jane Hall 
Memorial Highway; Providing an honorary designation of a certain 
transportation facility in a specified county; directing the Department of 
Transportation to erect suitable markers, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 0021 (Sirois) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
returning messages
SB 0096 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0021; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0021
HB 0893 (Brannan III) - 03/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee

SB 1176 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Simon

Electric Vehicle Infrastructure; Requiring the Public Service Commission to 
adopt rules for electric vehicle charging stations which meet certain 
requirements; providing a timeline for the proposal and adoption of such 
rules; prohibiting a public utility from using rate base investment for certain 
purposes, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Regulated Industries (Current 
Reference)
Senate Transportation
Senate Rules

Similar
HB 1591 (Maggard) - 03/29/2023 HOUSE 
Temporarily Postponed by Energy, 
Communications & Cybersecurity 
Subcommittee

SB 1122 Vertiports Harrell

Vertiports; Providing legislative intent; requiring the Department of 
Transportation to take certain actions regarding vertiports; providing 
limitations regarding the exercise of a political subdivision’s zoning and land 
use authority in regulating vertiports, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Similar
HB 0349 (Bankson) - 02/01/2023 HOUSE  
Now in Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee

HB 0695 Determinations for Tax 
Exemptions Hawkins

Determinations for Tax Exemptions: Revises circumstances under which 
certain aircraft operations are deemed to serve governmental, municipal, or 
public purpose or function; provides that certain leasehold interests in 
governmental property that have been determined to be exempt from ad 
valorem taxation remain so for duration of lease. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Ways & Means Committee (Current 
Reference)
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

Compare
SB 1706 (DiCeglie) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; Finance and 
Tax; Appropriations

HB 0969 Economic and Vocational 
Development Steele

Economic and Vocational Development: Extends repeal dates for Florida 
Development Finance Corporation and Florida Endowment for Vocational 
Rehabilitation. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Postsecondary Education & 
Workforce Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Compare
HB 7051 (Postsecondary Education & 
Workforce Subcommittee) - 04/24/2023 
HOUSE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Identical
SB 0936 (DiCeglie) - 03/22/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0957 State Renewable Energy 
Goals Eskamani

State Renewable Energy Goals: Prohibits drilling or exploration for, or 
production of, oil, gas, or other petroleum products & permitting & 
construction of certain related structures; requires statewide renewable 
energy electricity & carbon emission reductions by specified dates; directs 
Office of Energy within DACS to develop unified statewide plan; requires 
office to submit plan & updates to Governor & Legislature; creates 
Renewable Energy Advisory Committee; directs Commissioner of Agriculture 
to submit specified annual report to Legislature. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Identical
SB 0970 (Berman) - 02/28/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Environment and Natural 
Resources; Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government; Fiscal Policy

HB 1079 Saltwater Intrusion 
Vulnerability Assessments Cross

Saltwater Intrusion Vulnerability Assessments: Authorizes DEP to provide 
grants to coastal counties for saltwater intrusion vulnerability assessments; 
requires DEP to update comprehensive statewide flood vulnerability & sea 
level rise data, post certain assessment information on website, & provide 
cost-share funding for grants; exempts certain counties from cost-share 
funding. Effective Date: upon becoming a law 

House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Identical
SB 0734 (Polsky) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages

HB 0885 Authorized Use of 
Discretionary Sales Surtaxes Plasencia

Authorized Use of Discretionary Sales Surtaxes: Authorizes certain tax 
proceeds be used towards specified purposes. Effective Date: upon 
becoming a law 

House Ways & Means Committee (Current 
Reference)
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

Identical
SB 0882 (Brodeur) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; Finance and 
Tax; Appropriations

SB 0982
Transportation Facility 
Designations/Rush Limbaugh 
Way

Ingoglia

Transportation Facility Designations/Rush Limbaugh Way; Providing an 
honorary designation of a certain transportation facility in a specified county; 
directing the Department of Transportation to erect suitable markers, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 0021 (Sirois) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
returning messages
SB 0096 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0021; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0021

SB 0970 State Renewable Energy 
Goals Berman

State Renewable Energy Goals; Prohibiting the drilling or exploration for, or 
production of, oil, gas, or other petroleum products; prohibiting permitting and 
construction of certain structures intended to drill or explore for, or produce or 
transport, oil, gas, or other petroleum products; requiring that all electricity 
used in the state be generated by renewable energy by a specified date; 
requiring statewide net zero carbon emissions by a specified date; creating 
the Renewable Energy Workforce Development Advisory Committee in the 
Office of Energy within the Department of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services, etc. 

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

Identical
HB 0957 (Eskamani) - 02/28/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee 

SB 0928 Land Acquisition Funding Stewart

Land Acquisition Funding; Extending the retirement date of bonds issued to 
fund the Florida Forever Act; revising the distribution of proceeds from the 
Florida Forever Trust Fund for land acquisition and capital project 
expenditures under the Florida Forever Act; requiring a specified annual 
appropriation to the Florida Forever Trust Fund; prohibiting the use of 
moneys from the Land Acquisition Trust Fund for specified costs, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Appropriations

Compare
HB 1379 (Steele) - 04/26/2023 SENATE 
Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
SB 1632 (Brodeur) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23
HB 7047 (Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
Similar
HB 0559 (Roth) - 02/07/2023 HOUSE Now in 
Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee

HB 0241
Ethics for Public Officers and 
Employees of Special Tax 
Districts

Daley

Ethics for Public Officers and Employees of Special Tax Districts: Removes 
exemption for public officers & employees of special tax districts relating to 
conflicting employment or contractual relationships in Code of Ethics for 
Public Officers & Employees; requires ethics training for elected local officers 
of independent special districts; specifies requirements for such training. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

Compare
HB 0199 (Hunschofsky) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Rules
SB 0620 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0145 Transportation Facility 
Designations Daniels

Transportation Facility Designations: Designates Coach Gwendolyn Maxwell 
Bridge to Ribault in Duval County; directs DOT to erect suitable markers. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee 
(Current Reference)

Compare
HB 0021 (Sirois) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
returning messages
SB 0096 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0021; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0021
Identical
SB 0608 (Yarborough) - 02/16/2023 
SENATE Referred to Transportation; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Fiscal Policy

SB 0810 Financing Improvements to 
Real Property Gruters

Financing Improvements to Real Property; Authorizing a residential or 
commercial property owner to apply to a local government for funding to 
finance an improvement and to enter into a financing agreement with the 
local government; providing that a non-ad valorem assessment on certain 
commercial property is subject to a certain fee; specifying the determinations 
a local government must make before entering into a financing agreement for 
commercial and residential properties; restricting what improvements may be 
covered in certain agreements between local governments and residential 
property owners, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Judiciary
Senate Fiscal Policy

Similar
HB 1151 (Amesty) - 04/12/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Commerce Committee 

SB 0816 Challenges to Development 
Orders Polsky

Challenges to Development Orders; Requiring a prevailing party to show that 
the challenge to a development order was frivolous before the prevailing 
party is entitled to recover reasonable attorney fees and costs; prohibiting a 
prevailing party in a challenge to a comprehensive plan from an award of 
reasonable attorney fees and costs; providing that intervenors are not 
entitled to recover reasonable attorney fees and costs and may not recover 
certain attorney fees and costs, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Judiciary
Senate Rules

Similar
HB 0843 (Cross) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Local Administration, Federal Affairs & 
Special Districts Subcommittee

SB 0866 Driver Licenses and 
Identification Cards Torres, Jr.

Driver Licenses and Identification Cards; Requiring proof of a specified 
identification number for certain applicants for a driver license; authorizing 
additional specified documents issued by foreign governments to satisfy 
proof-of-identity requirements; prohibiting the department from waiving 
certain tests for applicants who provide proof of identity using specified 
foreign documents; prohibiting the department from disclosing or making 
accessible certain photographs and related information to any agency that 
primarily enforces immigration law or to any employee or agent of such 
agency, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 1639 (Chambliss) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee 

SB 0882 Local Government 
Infrastructure Surtax Brodeur

Local Government Infrastructure Surtax; Providing that proceeds of the 
surtax may be used to maintain infrastructure; providing that surtax proceeds 
and any interest may be used for the operational expenses of infrastructure; 
revising the definition of the term “infrastructure”, etc. Effective Date: Upon 
becoming a law

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Appropriations

Identical
HB 0885 (Plasencia) - 02/28/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Ways & Means Committee

SB 0886 Preemption of Tree Pruning, 
Trimming, and Removal Stewart

Preemption of Tree Pruning, Trimming, and Removal; Repealing a provision 
relating to tree pruning, trimming, or removal on residential property, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Judiciary
Senate Rules

RUC2 Florida Statutes Rules 
Committee

 PCB RUC 23-02 – Florida Statutes 
House Rules Committee (Current 
Reference)

HB 0803 National Infrastructure Bank 
Act Hinson

National Infrastructure Bank Act: Requests Congress to pass National 
Infrastructure Bank Act, creating a National Infrastructure Bank to finance 
urgently needed infrastructure projects. Effective Date: Not Specified 

House Insurance & Banking Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Commerce Committee

HB 0809 Retail Fresh Market Farm 
Stand Signage Chambliss

Retail Fresh Market Farm Stand Signage: Establishes Fresh From Florida 
Retail Fresh Market Signage Program & adjunct advisory council within 
DACS to provide uniform directional signage for certified retail fresh markets; 
authorizes Commissioner of Agriculture to make certain designations; 
provides program requirements & fees; requires DOT, upon request, to place 
signage at specified locations. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Compare
SB 1610 (Rodriguez) - 04/13/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy
Identical
SB 1608 (Rodriguez) - 04/13/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy
Linked
HB 0811 (Chambliss) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0811 Fees/Retail Fresh Market Farm 
Stand Signage Chambliss

Fees/Retail Fresh Market Farm Stand Signage: Requires DACS to include 
specified application, permit, placement, & removal fees in rules 
implementing Fresh From Florida Retail Fresh Market Signage Program. 
Effective Date: on the same date that HB 809 or similar legislation takes 
effect

House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Compare
SB 1608 (Rodriguez) - 04/13/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy
Identical
SB 1610 (Rodriguez) - 04/13/2023 SENATE 
Now in Fiscal Policy
Linked
HB 0809 (Chambliss) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee

HB 0781 Driving Under the Influence Killebrew

Driving Under the Influence: Prohibits trial court from accepting specified 
pleas when person is charged with DUI offense unless specified conditions 
are met; revises provisions & penalties regarding first, second, & subsequent 
refusal to submit to lawful test of breath or urine; authorizes judicial circuits to 
create Driving Under the Influence Diversion Program; provides program 
requirements; provides duties of judicial circuits & DHSMV; requires that 
person's new DUI offense after successful program completion be charged 
as though person had prior DUI conviction; prohibits court from suspending, 
deferring, or withholding adjudication of guilt or imposition of sentence for 
specified violation. Effective Date: October 1, 2023

House Criminal Justice Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Justice Appropriations 
Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

Similar
SB 0432 (Wright) - 04/05/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations Committee on 
Criminal and Civil Justice

HB 0765 Building Permit Applications 
to Local Governments Roth

Building Permit Applications to Local Governments: Requires local 
government to post & update information on its website; requires electronic 
submission of application; authorizes local government to provide notice of 
expiration within specified timeframe; prohibits local government from issuing 
permit unless specified information is included with permit & provided to 
applicant; revises application process; prohibits local government from 
requesting additional information from & imposing additional requirements on 
applicant other than those posted on its website; revises amount by which 
permit fee must be reduced in certain instances; provides limitation on 
specified fee. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

Compare
HB 0671 (Esposito) - 03/31/2023 HOUSE 
Now in State Administration & Technology 
Appropriations Subcommittee
SB 0682 (DiCeglie) - 02/16/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; Regulated 
Industries; Rules

HB 0759 Flood Disclosures for Real 
Property Sales Baker

Flood Disclosures for Real Property Sales: Requires seller of real property to 
disclose in writing certain flood information to prospective purchaser before 
executing contract for sale of property. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Compare
HB 0325 (Valdes) - 02/01/2023 HOUSE  
Now in Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee 
SB 1720 (Rouson) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Banking and 
Insurance; Rules
Identical
SB 0484 (Bradley) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Banking and 
Insurance; Rules

HB 0843 Challenges to Development 
Orders Cross

Challenges to Development Orders: Requires prevailing party to show 
challenge to development order was frivolous before prevailing party is 
entitled to recover reasonable attorney fees & costs; provides intervenors are 
not entitled to recover reasonable attorney fees & costs. Effective Date: July 
1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

Similar
SB 0816 (Polsky) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; Judiciary; 
Rules

HB 0729 Local Officials' Employment 
Contracts Holcomb

Local Officials' Employment Contracts: Provides employment contracts for 
county administrator & county attorney; chief executive officer of municipality 
& municipal attorney; and district school superintendent & attorney are not to 
be renewed, extended, or renegotiated during specified timeframe. Effective 
Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House State Affairs Committee

Similar
SB 0696 (Ingoglia) - 04/19/2023 SENATE 
Temporarily Postponed by Rules

HB 0727 Food Insecure Areas Rayner-Goolsby

Food Insecure Areas: Authorizes local government to enact land 
development regulations to permit land use for small-footprint grocery store 
located in food insecure area; authorizes local government to include in its 
comprehensive plan provision permitting land use for small-footprint grocery 
store located in food insecure area; authorizes local government to require 
mandatory reporting of information from small-footprint grocery store. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House State Affairs Committee

Identical
SB 0778 (Rouson) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Community Affairs; Agriculture; 
Rules



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0859 Flood Damage Prevention Basabe

Flood Damage Prevention: Provides specified maximum voluntary freeboard 
requirements for new construction & substantial improvements to existing 
construction; prohibits voluntary freeboard from being used in calculation of 
maximum allowable height for certain construction; authorizes local 
governments to adopt by ordinance minimum freeboard requirement or 
maximum voluntary freeboard that exceeds minimum requirements; requires 
Florida Building Commission to adopt by rule minimum freeboard 
requirements & to incorporate such requirements into next edition of FBC; 
requires commission to review freeboard requirements every 5 years. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House State Administration & Technology 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Identical
SB 1018 (Trumbull) - 03/27/2023 SENATE 
Now in Rules

SB 0320 Land Acquisition Trust Fund Harrell

Land Acquisition Trust Fund; Providing an annual appropriation for certain 
projects related to the Indian River Lagoon Comprehensive Conservation 
and Management Plan; authorizing the Department of Environmental 
Protection to make grants for such projects; requiring the department to 
coordinate such grants with certain water management districts, etc. 
APPROPRIATION: Indeterminate. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations

Similar
HB 0547 (Sirois) - 02/07/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee

HB 0597 Operation of Electric Bicycles 
and Motorized Scooters Lopez (V)

Operation of Electric Bicycles and Motorized Scooters: Authorizes violation 
relating to operation of certain electric bicycles or motorized scooters to be 
punishable as provided in local government ordinance; limits amount of fine 
authorized for such violation; authorizes local government to adopt ordinance 
relating to operation of certain electric bicycles or motorized scooters in order 
to protect public; requires local government to provide certain notice of 
adoption & enforcement of such ordinance. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

SB 0604 Sovereign Immunity Gruters

Sovereign Immunity; Increasing the statutory limits on liability for tort claims 
against the state and its agencies and subdivisions; prohibiting an insurance 
policy from conditioning payment of benefits on the enactment of a claim bill; 
specifying that the limitations in effect on the date a final judgment is entered 
apply to that claim; requiring the Department of Financial Services to adjust 
the limitations on tort liability every year after a specified date, etc. Effective 
Date: 10/1/2023

Senate Judiciary (Current Reference)
Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability
Senate Appropriations

Compare
HB 0401 (Beltran) - 03/15/2023 HOUSE 
Temporarily Postponed by Appropriations 
Committee 

SB 0586 Motor Vehicle Insurance Grall

Motor Vehicle Insurance; Repealing provisions which comprise the Florida 
Motor Vehicle No-Fault Law; revising the motor vehicle insurance coverages 
that an applicant must show to register certain vehicles with the Department 
of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles; revising minimum liability coverage 
requirements for motor vehicle owners or operators; revising requirements 
for a certificate of deposit that is required if a person elects a certain method 
of proving financial responsibility; providing an exception to the 
circumstances under which a person who is damaged may bring a civil action 
against an insurer, etc. Effective Date: Except as otherwise expressly 
provided in this act and except for this section, which shall take effect upon 
this act becoming a law, this act shall take effect July 1, 2024

Senate Banking and Insurance (Current 
Reference)
Senate Judiciary
Senate Fiscal Policy

Identical
HB 0429 (Alvarez) - 02/01/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Insurance & Banking Subcommittee

SB 0578 Side-by-side Vehicles Grall

Side-by-side Vehicles; Authorizing the operation of side-by-side vehicles 
under certain circumstances; prohibiting persons under a certain age from 
operating a side-by-side vehicle on a public road or street; authorizing local 
governmental entities to enact certain ordinances pertaining to side-by-side 
vehicles; defining the terms “side-by-side vehicle” and “UTV”, etc. Effective 
Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Community Affairs
Senate Fiscal Policy

Identical
HB 1371 (McClain) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee 

SB 0544 Aggressive Careless Driving Pizzo

Aggressive Careless Driving; Designating "Anthony Reznik Act"; revising the 
definition of the term “aggressive careless driving”; providing a civil penalty 
for aggressive careless driving and aggressive careless driving resulting in 
damage to the property or person of another or serious bodily injury to 
another person; requiring persons convicted of such offense to attend a 
specified driver improvement course to maintain their driver license; 
authorizing a court to order such persons to pay restitution, etc. Effective 
Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Criminal Justice
Senate Rules

SB 0640 Tourist Development Taxes Simon

Tourist Development Taxes; Authorizing certain fiscally constrained counties 
to use a designated percentage of tourist development tax revenues 
received to reimburse expenses incurred for certain purposes; providing 
specifications for the use of such tax revenues, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Commerce and Tourism (Current 
Reference)
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Appropriations

Similar
HB 0309 (Shoaf) - 02/01/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Ways & Means Committee

SB 0680 Energy Transition Task Force Davis

Energy Transition Task Force; Creating the task force adjunct to the 
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services for a specified purpose; 
providing for the membership and duties of the task force; requiring the 
department to provide staffing and administrative support to the task force; 
requiring the task force to submit a report to certain officials by a specified 
date; providing for expiration of the task force, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Regulated Industries (Current 
Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

Similar
HB 0293 (Hinson) - 02/01/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Energy, Communications & Cybersecurity 
Subcommittee



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 0682 Residential Building Permits DiCeglie

Residential Building Permits; Deleting provisions relating to issuing building 
permits for certain residential dwellings; revising the timeframes for 
approving or denying certain building permits; revising the actions a local 
government must take after receiving specified information; requiring local 
governments to offer certain applicants the opportunity to meet in person or 
electronically; reducing permit fees by a certain percentage if certain 
timeframes are not met, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Regulated Industries
Senate Rules

Compare
HB 0765 (Roth) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE Now in 
Local Administration, Federal Affairs & 
Special Districts Subcommittee 
Similar
HB 0671 (Esposito) - 03/31/2023 HOUSE 
Now in State Administration & Technology 
Appropriations Subcommittee

HB 0651 Human Trafficking Robinson (F)

 Human Trafficking: Revises criminal penalties to include fines of certain 
amounts; requires prosecution of specified offenses under Florida RICO; 
requires DOE & DOH, in conjunction with Statewide Council on Human 
Trafficking, to establish an awareness training program; requires each state 
attorney to ensure prosecutors receive certain mandatory training; requires 
each state attorney to adopt pro-prosecution policy for human trafficking 
offenses. Effective Date: October 1, 2023 

House Criminal Justice Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Justice Appropriations 
Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

Compare
HB 0059 (Skidmore) - 01/10/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Criminal Justice Subcommittee
SB 0166 (Berman) - 01/19/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Criminal Justice; Appropriations 
Committee on Criminal and Civil Justice; 
Fiscal Policy
Identical
SB 0326 (Osgood) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Criminal Justice; Appropriations 
Committee on Health and Human Services; 
Fiscal Policy

HB 0665 Workforce Housing 
Communities Roth

Workforce Housing Communities: Authorizes governmental entities to create 
workforce housing communities by creating HOAs & entering into contracts 
with infrastructure services companies; provides requirements for governing 
documents, monthly assessments, certain logs & disclosures & residents; 
provides for procurement, installation, & maintenance of major components 
of workforce housing units; requires remaining construction costs be paid for 
with resident provided capital; requires that certain major components be 
excluded from purchase transaction; authorizes certain costs to be deducted 
from gross proceeds of sale. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Commerce Committee
House State Affairs Committee

SB 0436 911 Public Safety 
Telecommunicators Rodriguez

911 Public Safety Telecommunicators; Revising the definition of the term 
“first responder” to include 911 public safety telecommunicators, for purposes 
of applying special provisions relating to employment-related accidents and 
injuries to 911 public safety telecommunicators; revising the definition of the 
term “public safety telecommunication training program,” to increase the 
number of hours of required training and specify the nature of the additional 
training; specifying circumstances under which 911 public safety 
telecommunicators are considered to be acting within the scope of their 
employment so as to qualify for workers’ compensation benefits, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 0291 (Holcomb) - 02/01/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Constitutional Rights, Rule of Law & 
Government Operations Subcommittee

SB 0448 Operating Vehicles and 
Vessels Under the Influence Berman

Operating Vehicles and Vessels Under the Influence; Revising conditions 
under which a person commits the offense of driving under the influence or 
boating under the influence, respectively; revising a condition that must be 
met before a person arrested for driving under the influence or boating under 
the influence, respectively, may be released from custody; defining the term 
“impairing substance”; adding specified grounds for issuance of a search 
warrant, etc. Effective Date: 10/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Criminal Justice
Senate Fiscal Policy

Identical
HB 0549 (Casello) - 02/07/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Criminal Justice Subcommittee

SB 0456
Possession or use of a 
Firearm in a Sensitive 
Location

Berman
Possession or use of a Firearm in a Sensitive Location; Prohibiting the 
possession or use of a firearm in a sensitive location; providing criminal 
penalties, etc. Effective Date: 10/1/2023

Senate Criminal Justice (Current 
Reference)
Senate Judiciary
Senate Rules

Identical
HB 0215 (Rayner-Goolsby) - 01/25/2023 
HOUSE Now in Criminal Justice 
Subcommittee 

SB 0362
Issuance and Renewal of 
Permanent Disabled Parking 
Permits

Harrell

Issuance and Renewal of Permanent Disabled Parking Permits; Requiring 
the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to issue a permanent 
disabled parking permit to a person who has a long-term mobility impairment; 
removing provisions that require such a person to renew a disabled parking 
permit and that require such permit to bear a validation sticker; revising 
provisions relating to the appearance of disabled parking permits, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Identical
HB 0149 (Williams) - 01/17/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 0484 Flood Disclosures for Real 
Property Sales Bradley

Flood Disclosures for Real Property Sales; Requiring a seller of real property 
to disclose in writing certain flood information to a prospective purchaser 
before executing a contract for the sale of the property; defining the term 
“flooding”, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Judiciary (Current Reference)
Senate Banking and Insurance
Senate Rules

Compare
HB 0325 (Valdes) - 02/01/2023 HOUSE  
Now in Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee 
SB 1720 (Rouson) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Banking and 
Insurance; Rules
Identical
HB 0759 (Baker) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee 

SB 0350 Alternative Mobility Funding 
Systems Brodeur

Alternative Mobility Funding Systems; Authorizing certain local governments 
to adopt an alternative mobility planning and fee system or, in certain 
circumstances, an alternative system; specifying requirements for the 
application of an adopted alternative system; revising requirements for the 
calculation of impact fees by certain local governments and special districts; 
requiring certain mobility fees to be updated within a specified timeframe; 
specifying criteria to be used by a local government in calculating a mobility 
plan and mobility fee for transportation mitigation improvements; providing 
that mobility fee credits must comply with the Florida Impact Fee Act in any 
mode that creates equivalent capacity that is designated in a local 
government capital improvements list, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Community Affairs (Current 
Reference)
Senate Transportation
Senate Finance and Tax
Senate Rules

Compare
HB 0235 (Robinson (W) Jr.) - 04/13/2023 
HOUSE Now in Commerce Committee

SB 0326 Human Trafficking Osgood

Human Trafficking; Revising definitions and defining terms; revising criminal 
penalties to include fines of certain amounts for violations of specified 
offenses; requiring the Department of Education and Department of Health, 
in conjunction with the Statewide Council on Human Trafficking, to establish 
an awareness training program and community partnership on human 
trafficking, sex trafficking, labor trafficking, and child trafficking; requiring 
each state attorney to ensure prosecutors receive certain mandatory 
semiannual educational training, etc. Effective Date: 10/1/2023

Senate Criminal Justice (Current 
Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Health and Human Services
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 0059 (Skidmore) - 01/10/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Criminal Justice Subcommittee
SB 0166 (Berman) - 01/19/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Criminal Justice; Appropriations 
Committee on Criminal and Civil Justice; 
Fiscal Policy
Identical
HB 0651 (Robinson (F)) - 02/14/2023 
HOUSE Now in Criminal Justice 
Subcommittee

HB 0063 Transportation Facility 
Designations Chaney

Transportation Facility Designations: Designates Deputy Sheriff Michael 
Hartwick Memorial Highway in Pinellas County; directs DOT to erect suitable 
markers. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee 
(Current Reference)

Compare
HB 0021 (Sirois) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
returning messages
SB 0096 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0021; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0021

HB 0549 Operating Vehicles and 
Vessels Under the Influence Casello

Operating Vehicles and Vessels Under the Influence: Revises conditions 
under which person commits offense of driving under influence or boating 
under influence; provides affirmative defense; revises condition that must be 
met before person arrested for driving under influence or boating under 
influence, respectively, may be released from custody; specified grounds for 
issuance of search warrant. Effective Date: October 1, 2023 

House Criminal Justice Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Justice Appropriations 
Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

Identical
SB 0448 (Berman) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Criminal Justice; 
Fiscal Policy

HB 0559 Land Acquisition Funding Roth

Land Acquisition Funding: Extends retirement date of bonds issues to fund 
Florida Forever Act; revises distribution of proceeds from Florida Forever 
Trust Fund for land acquisition & capital project expenditures under Florida 
Forever Act; requires specified annual appropriation to Florida Forever Trust 
Fund; prohibits use of moneys from Land Acquisition Trust Fund for specified 
costs. APPROPRIATION: Indeterminate Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee
House Appropriations Committee

Compare
SB 1632 (Brodeur) - 04/27/2023 SENATE 
Placed on Special Order Calendar, 05/02/23
HB 7047 (Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
Similar
SB 0928 (Stewart) - 02/28/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Environment and Natural 
Resources; Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government; Appropriations



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0557 Land Acquisition Trust Fund Bell

Land Acquisition Trust Fund: Provides annual appropriation to DEP to 
implement Heartland Headwaters Protection & Sustainability Act; requires 
funds to be used & distributed for specified purposes. APPROPRIATION: 
Indeterminate Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee
House Appropriations Committee

Compare
HB 7047 (Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
Similar
SB 0602 (Burton) - 03/06/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government

HB 0547 Land Acquisition Trust Fund Sirois

Land Acquisition Trust Fund: Provides appropriation for certain projects 
related to Indian River Lagoon Comprehensive Conservation & Management 
Plan; authorizes DEP to make grants for such projects; directs department to 
submit annual report to Governor & Legislature. APPROPRIATION: 
Indeterminate Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee
House Appropriations Committee

Compare
HB 7047 (Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
Similar
SB 0320 (Harrell) - 02/21/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government

HB 0527 Office of the Blue Economy Skidmore

Office of the Blue Economy: Establishes Office of the Blue Economy within 
DEO; provides duties of office; requires EDR to conduct biennial evaluation 
of blue economy for inclusion in certain assessment. Effective Date: July 1, 
2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Identical
SB 1484 (Pizzo) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Commerce and Tourism; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Fiscal Policy

HB 0499
Florida Main Street Program 
and Historic Preservation Tax 
Credits

Stark

Florida Main Street Program and Historic Preservation Tax Credits: Specifies 
eligibility requirements for receiving specified tax credits for taxpayers that 
rehabilitate certified historic structures; specifies requirements for taxpayers 
claiming or transferring specified tax credits; specifies requirements for 
Division of Historical Resources of DOS for evaluating & certifying 
applications for specified tax credits; specifies amount of tax credits; 
authorizes carryforward, sale, & transfer of tax credits; revises order in which 
tax credits against corporate income tax credit or franchise tax are applied; 
revises order in which credits & deductions against insurance premium tax 
are applied. Effective Date: January 1, 2024 

House Ways & Means Committee (Current 
Reference)
House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Compare
SB 7062 (Finance and Tax) - 04/27/2023 
SENATE Placed on Calendar, on 2nd 
reading
Similar
SB 0288 (DiCeglie) - 03/15/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations

HB 0429 Motor Vehicle Insurance Alvarez

Motor Vehicle Insurance: Repeals Florida Motor Vehicle No-Fault Law; 
revises motor vehicle insurance coverages; revises garage liability insurance 
requirements; provides that driver license or motor vehicle registration 
suspensions for failure to maintain required security remain in full force & 
effect; revises amount of certificate of deposit required to elect certain 
method of proof of financial responsibility; revises minimum net worth 
requirements to qualify certain persons as self-insurers; revises grounds for 
discipline for certain health professions; specifies coverage options that 
insurer is required & authorized to offer; prohibits insurer providing medical 
payments coverage benefits from seeking lien on certain recovery & bringing 
certain cause of action; authorizes insurers to include policy provisions 
allowing for subrogation, for medical payments benefits paid; prohibits 
insurers from including policy provisions allowing for subrogation for death 
benefits paid; revises legal liability of uninsured motorist coverage insurer; 
requires motor vehicle insurance policies to provide death benefits. 
APPROPRIATION: $83,651 Effective Date: July 1, 2024 

House Insurance & Banking Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Identical
SB 0586 (Grall) - 02/16/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Banking and Insurance; 
Judiciary; Fiscal Policy

HB 0397 Public Meetings Tuck

Public Meetings: Provides specified entities may meet in private with their 
attorneys to discuss claims concerning private property rights; specifies what 
may be discussed during such meetings; requires such meetings be 
transcribed; provides transcripts become public records at specified times. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Ethics, Elections & Open 
Government Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

HB 0461
Apprenticeship and 
Preapprenticeship Direct 
Funding Grant Program

Giallombardo

Apprenticeship and Preapprenticeship Direct Funding Grant Program: 
Creates Apprenticeship and Preapprenticeship Direct Funding Grant 
Program for specified purposes; requires DOE to administer program; 
provides requirements for such program. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Higher Education Appropriations 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Education & Employment 
Committee
House Appropriations Committee

Identical
SB 1060 (Ingoglia) - 03/22/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations Committee on 
Education



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0371 Management and Storage of 
Surface Waters Killebrew

Management and Storage of Surface Waters: Provides exemption from 
surface water management & storage regulations for implementation of 
certain measures & practices for environmental habitat creation, restoration, 
& enhancement activities & water quality improvements on specified 
agricultural lands & government-owned lands; provides condition & 
requirements for measures & practices; removes requirements for adverse 
impacts on water resources, certain notification by DEP & water 
management districts, & commencement of activities. Effective Date: July 1, 
2023 

House Water Quality, Supply & Treatment 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Compare
SB 0910 (Burton) - 03/14/2023 SENATE 
Now in Community Affairs

HB 0473 Agreement for Best Practices 
in Economic Development Eskamani

Agreement for Best Practices in Economic Development: Creates Agreement 
for Best Practices in Economic Development; establishes National Board for 
Best Practices in Economic Development; requires board to publish specified 
material regarding best practices in economic development & suggest annual 
revisions; requires board to accept testimony related to economic 
development improvements; prohibits member states from offering or 
providing company-specific tax incentives or company-specific grants for 
specified purposes; provides procedures for withdrawing from agreement. 
Effective Date: upon the adoption of the agreement by two or more states 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Ways & Means Committee
House Commerce Committee

HB 0349 Vertiports Bankson

Vertiports: Provides legislative intent; requires DOT to take certain actions 
regarding vertiports; provides design and layout plan requirements for 
vertiport owners; provides limitations regarding exercise of political 
subdivision's zoning & land use authority in regulating vertiports. Effective 
Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Similar
SB 1122 (Harrell) - 03/02/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy

HB 0347 Actions Against Public-use 
Airports Bankson

Actions Against Public-use Airports: Provides exemption from civil liability & 
criminal prosecution for owner, operator, or user of public-use airport with 
respect to noise pollution; provides exemption from nuisance action for such 
owner, operator, or user; prohibits court from enjoining use or operation of 
public-use airport on basis of noise or noise pollution; prohibits owner of 
certain property from maintaining nuisance action against owner or operator 
of public-use airport; exempts public-use airport from specified rules. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

HB 0325
Flood Disclosures for 
Residential and Commercial 
Property Sales

Valdes

Flood Disclosures for Residential and Commercial Property Sales: Requires 
seller of residential & commercial property to disclose certain flood 
information to prospective purchaser before executing contract for sale of 
property. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Civil Justice Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Compare
SB 0484 (Bradley) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Banking and 
Insurance; Rules
HB 0759 (Baker) - 02/21/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee 
Similar
SB 1720 (Rouson) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Judiciary; Banking and 
Insurance; Rules

HB 0315 Civil Remedies for Unlawful 
Employment Practices Andrade

Provides limits on judgment for punitive & compensatory damages for certain 
claims; authorizes aggrieved party to bring civil action for certain claims 
within specified timeframe regardless of determination made by Commission 
on Human Relations. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Civil Justice Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Judiciary Committee

Identical
SB 0738 (Brodeur) - 02/23/2023 SENATE  
Referred to Judiciary; Governmental 
Oversight and Accountability; Rules

HB 0309 Tourist Development Taxes Shoaf

Authorizes certain fiscally constrained counties to use designated percentage 
of tourist development tax revenues received to reimburse for expenses 
incurred for certain purposes; provides specifications for use of those tax 
revenues. Effective Date: July 1, 2023

House Ways & Means Committee (Current 
Reference)
House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Similar
SB 0640 (Simon) - 02/16/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Commerce and Tourism; 
Finance and Tax; Appropriations

HB 0293 Energy Transition Task Force Hinson

Energy Transition Task Force: Creates task force adjunct to DACS for 
specified purpose; provides for membership, duties, & expiration of task 
force; requires DACS to provide task force staff & administrative support; 
requires task force to submit report to specified officials by certain date. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Energy, Communications & 
Cybersecurity Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Similar
SB 0680 (Davis) - 02/16/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Regulated Industries; 
Appropriations Committee on Agriculture, 
Environment, and General Government; 
Fiscal Policy

HB 0291 911 Public Safety 
Telecommunicators Holcomb

911 Public Safety Telecommunicators: Revises definition of term "first 
responder" to include 911 public safety telecommunicators; revises criteria & 
number of hours of training required for 911 public safety telecommunicator 
certification. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Constitutional Rights, Rule of Law & 
Government Operations Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Appropriations Committee
House State Affairs Committee

Compare
SB 0436 (Rodriguez) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability; Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government; Fiscal Policy



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 0186 Construction Materials Mining 
Activities Avila

Construction Materials Mining Activities; Specifying a ground vibration limit 
for construction materials mining activities within 1 mile of certain areas; 
authorizing the State Fire Marshal to modify the standards, limits, and 
regulations for the use of explosives in connection with such construction 
materials mining activities, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Banking and Insurance (Current 
Reference)
Senate Community Affairs
Senate Rules

Similar
HB 0077 (Fabricio) - 01/10/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee 

HB 0229 Taxation of Affordable 
Housing Cross

Authorizes counties & municipalities to adopt ordinances to grant partial ad 
valorem tax exemptions to property owners whose properties are used to 
provide affordable housing; specifies duties of boards of county 
commissioners & municipal governing bodies adopting ordinances granting 
such exemptions; requires owners of property that is improperly granted such 
exemptions to pay owed taxes, penalties, & interest. Effective Date: July 1, 
2023

House Ways & Means Committee (Current 
Reference)
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House State Affairs Committee

Compare
SB 0102 (Calatayud) - 03/29/2023  
Approved by Governor; Chapter No. 2023-
17
HB 0627 (Busatta Cabrera) - 03/23/2023 
HOUSE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 0102; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 0102
Identical
SB 0220 (Rodriguez) - 01/18/2023 SENATE 
Withdrawn prior to introduction

HB 0215
Possession or Use of a 
Firearm in a Sensitive 
Location

Rayner-Goolsby
Possession or Use of a Firearm in a Sensitive Location: Defines "sensitive 
location"; prohibits possession or use of firearm in sensitive location; 
provides exceptions. Effective Date: October 1, 2023 

House Criminal Justice Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Justice Appropriations 
Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

Identical
SB 0456 (Berman) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Criminal Justice; Judiciary; 
Rules

SB 0054 Land Acquisition Trust Fund Rodriguez

Land Acquisition Trust Fund; Requiring an annual appropriation from the 
Land Acquisition Trust Fund to the Department of Environmental Protection 
to implement the Florida Keys Stewardship Act or to acquire land within the 
Florida Keys Area of Critical State Concern for specified purposes; requiring 
the distribution to be reduced by a specified amount, etc. APPROPRIATION: 
Indeterminate Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Environment and Natural 
Resources
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations

Similar
HB 0135 (Mooney, Jr.) - 01/17/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee

SB 0166 Human Trafficking Berman

Human Trafficking; Prohibiting facilitating or enabling the receiving of 
persons into any place, structure, building, or conveyance for the purpose of 
prostitution, lewdness, or assignation; prohibiting knowingly engaging in 
specified activities for the purpose of prostitution and thereby benefitting 
financially or receiving anything of value; providing increased criminal 
penalties for specified prohibited acts relating to lewdness, assignation, or 
prostitution, etc. Effective Date: 10/1/2023

Senate Criminal Justice (Current 
Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Criminal and Civil Justice
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
SB 0326 (Osgood) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Criminal Justice; Appropriations 
Committee on Health and Human Services; 
Fiscal Policy
HB 0651 (Robinson (F)) - 02/14/2023 
HOUSE Now in Criminal Justice 
Subcommittee
Similar
HB 0059 (Skidmore) - 01/10/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Criminal Justice Subcommittee

SB 0220 Taxation of Affordable 
Housing Rodriguez

Taxation of Affordable Housing; Authorizing counties and municipalities to 
adopt ordinances to grant ad valorem tax exemptions to property owners 
whose properties are used to provide affordable housing; specifying limits on 
the amount of such exemptions; specifying requirements for ordinances 
granting such exemptions; specifying duties of boards of county 
commissioners and municipal governing bodies adopting ordinances granting 
such exemptions or repealing such ordinances, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

No committees referenced

Compare
SB 0102 (Calatayud) - 03/29/2023  
Approved by Governor; Chapter No. 2023-
17
HB 0627 (Busatta Cabrera) - 03/23/2023 
HOUSE  Read Second Time; Substituted for 
SB 0102; Laid on Table, Refer to SB 0102
Identical
HB 0229 (Cross) - 01/25/2023 HOUSE Now 
in Ways & Means Committee 

HB 0181 Cost-of-Living Adjustment of 
Retirement Benefits Lopez (J)

Cost-of-Living Adjustment of Retirement Benefits: Specifies minimum 
amount of factor used to calculate the cost-of-living adjustment of benefits for 
certain retirees and beneficiaries of FRS. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Constitutional Rights, Rule of Law & 
Government Operations Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Appropriations Committee
House State Affairs Committee

Identical
SB 1354 (Stewart) - 03/06/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Governmental Oversight and 
Accountability; Community Affairs; 
Appropriations

HB 0163
Driver License and 
Identification Card Gender 
Designation

Arrington
Driver License and Identification Card Gender Designation: Requires 
application for driver license or ID card to provide for male, female, or 
nonbinary gender designation. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Similar
SB 0874 (Torres, Jr.) - 02/23/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

HB 0149
Issuance and Renewal of 
Permanent Disabled Parking 
Permits

Williams

Issuance and Renewal of Permanent Disabled Parking Permits: Requires 
DHSMV to issue permanent disabled parking permit to person who has long-
term mobility impairment; removes provisions that require such person to 
renew permit & require such permit to bear validation sticker; revises 
provisions relating to appearance of disabled parking permits. Effective Date: 
July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Infrastructure & Tourism 
Appropriations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Identical
SB 0362 (Harrell) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Transportation; Appropriations 
Committee on Transportation, Tourism, and 
Economic Development; Fiscal Policy

HB 0137 Department of Labor Nixon

Department of Labor: Creates Department of Labor; provides structure & 
purpose of department; designates department as state Agency for 
Workforce Innovation for purposes of implementing s. 24, Art. X of State 
Constitution; revises provisions relating to state minimum wage including, 
protected rights, rebuttable presumption & burden of proof, prohibition on 
certain contracts, process for filing complaint for violation of protected rights, 
review of actions issued by department, statute of limitations during 
investigation, liability, & recordkeeping; creates the DOL Community 
Advisory Board; requires annual report. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Constitutional Rights, Rule of Law & 
Government Operations Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Commerce Committee
House Appropriations Committee
House State Affairs Committee

Identical
SB 1598 (Torres, Jr.) - 03/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Commerce and Tourism; 
Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development; Fiscal Policy

HB 0135 Land Acquisition Trust Fund Mooney, Jr.

Land Acquisition Trust Fund: Requires annual appropriation to DEP to 
implement Florida Keys Stewardship Act or acquire land for specified 
purposes; prohibits use of such funds to implement certain projects & 
programs. APPROPRIATION: Indeterminate Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Agriculture & Natural Resources 
Appropriations Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee
House Appropriations Committee

Compare
HB 7047 (Agriculture, Conservation & 
Resiliency Subcommittee) - 04/26/2023 
SENATE Received; Referred to Fiscal Policy
Similar
SB 0054 (Rodriguez) - 01/19/2023 SENATE 
Now in Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government

HB 0105 Preemption of the Regulation 
of Vacation Rentals Basabe

Preemption of the Regulation of Vacation Rentals: Provides local laws, 
ordinances, or regulations requiring vacation rental owners or operators to 
provide local government with certain contact information are not prohibited 
or preempted to state. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Local Administration, Federal Affairs 
& Special Districts Subcommittee
House Commerce Committee

Compare
SB 0714 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages
HB 0833 (Duggan) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 
Placed on Calendar, on 2nd reading
Identical
SB 0092 (Garcia) - 01/04/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Regulated Industries; 
Community Affairs; Rules

HB 0077 Construction Materials Mining 
Activities Fabricio

Construction Materials Mining Activities: Specifies ground vibration limit for 
construction materials mining activities within 1 mile of certain areas; 
authorizes CFO to direct State Fire Marshal to modify standards, limits, & 
regulations for use of explosives in connection with such construction 
materials mining activities. Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Regulatory Reform & Economic 
Development Subcommittee (Current 
Reference)
House Commerce Committee

Similar
SB 0186 (Avila) - 01/26/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Banking and Insurance; 
Community Affairs; Rules

HB 0059 Human Trafficking and 
Prostitution Skidmore

Human Trafficking and Prostitution: Revises definition of term "coercion"; 
prohibits facilitating or enabling receiving of persons into any place, structure, 
building, or conveyance for purpose of prostitution, lewdness, or assignation 
or facilitating or enabling any person to remain in such place; prohibits 
knowingly engaging in specified activities for purpose of prostitution; provides 
increased criminal penalties for specified prohibited acts. Effective Date: 
October 1, 2023 

House Criminal Justice Subcommittee 
(Current Reference)
House Justice Appropriations 
Subcommittee
House Judiciary Committee

Compare
SB 0326 (Osgood) - 02/09/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Criminal Justice; Appropriations 
Committee on Health and Human Services; 
Fiscal Policy
HB 0651 (Robinson (F)) - 02/14/2023 
HOUSE Now in Criminal Justice 
Subcommittee
Similar
SB 0166 (Berman) - 01/19/2023 SENATE 
Referred to Criminal Justice; Appropriations 
Committee on Criminal and Civil Justice; 
Fiscal Policy

HB 0055 Trees and Other Vegetation 
within Rights-of-way Garcia (A)

Trees and Other Vegetation within Rights-of-way: Authorizes DOT to 
suspend prohibition against removal or cutting of trees or other vegetation in 
response to state of emergency declared by Governor; requires DOT to 
adopt guidelines relating to removal or cutting of trees or other vegetation for 
purpose of clearing debris generated during declared state of emergency. 
Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

House Transportation & Modals 
Subcommittee (Current Reference)
House Constitutional Rights, Rule of Law & 
Government Operations Subcommittee
House Infrastructure Strategies Committee

Similar
SB 0108 (Rodriguez) - 04/12/2023 HOUSE 
In Messages

SB 0086
Transportation Facility 
Designations/Gustavo 
Barreiro Way

Rodriguez

Transportation Facility Designations/Gustavo Barreiro Way; Providing an 
honorary designation of a certain transportation facility in a specified county; 
directing the Department of Transportation to erect suitable markers, etc. 
Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy



 2023 Legislative Session Bill Tracker

SB 0072
Transportation Facility 
Designations/SPC Zachary L. 
Shannon Memorial Highway

Hooper

Transportation Facility Designations/SPC Zachary L. Shannon Memorial 
Highway; Providing an honorary designation of a certain transportation facility 
in a specified county; directing the Department of Transportation to erect 
suitable markers, etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Transportation (Current Reference)
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Transportation, Tourism, and Economic 
Development
Senate Fiscal Policy

Compare
HB 0021 (Sirois) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
returning messages
SB 0096 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 SENATE  
Read Second Time; Substituted for 
HB 0021; Laid on Table, Refer to HB 0021
Similar
HB 0285 (Anderson) - 03/09/2023 HOUSE 
Now in Infrastructure Strategies Committee

SB 0092 Vacation Rentals Garcia

Vacation Rentals; Providing that local laws, ordinances, or regulations 
requiring vacation rental owners or operators to provide the local government 
with certain contact information are not prohibited or preempted to the state, 
etc. Effective Date: 7/1/2023

Senate Regulated Industries (Current 
Reference)
Senate Community Affairs
Senate Rules

Compare
SB 0714 (DiCeglie) - 04/27/2023 HOUSE In 
Messages
HB 0833 (Duggan) - 04/24/2023 HOUSE 

SB 0014

Relief of Douglas and Gail 
Quinn by the Department of 
Business and Professional 
Regulation

Gruters

Relief of Douglas and Gail Quinn by the Department of Business and 
Professional Regulation; Providing for an appropriation to compensate Mr. 
and Mrs. Quinn for injuries and damages they sustained by a contractor 
licensed by the Department of Business and Professional Regulation and by 
the Construction Industry Licensing Board’s actions in administering the 
Florida Homeowners’ Construction Recovery Fund; providing a limitation on 
the payment of compensation and attorney fees, etc. CLAIM WITH 
APPROPRIATION: $50,000 Effective Date: Upon becoming a law

Senate Special Master on Claim Bills 
(Current Reference)
Senate Judiciary
Senate Appropriations Committee on 
Agriculture, Environment, and General 
Government
Senate Appropriations



 

March 13, 2023 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
On behalf of the Hillsborough TPO, I am pleased to support Port Tampa Bay’s 
Southbay Road and Utilities project in Hillsborough County, Florida, as a Community 
Funding project (under the PIDP or Port Infrastructure Development category).  
 
The Southbay project is an expansion of Port Redwing, Port Tampa Bay’s newest 
terminal, the area around which is building out quickly. Southbay is the second phase, 
the upland area, suitable for large footprint manufacturing, DCs and transload 
operations, and other ancillary industries. Port Tampa Bay intends to construct, on its 
property, a 3,300-linear-foot two-lane roadway and utilities including water, storm and 
sanitary, lighting, power, fencing.  
 
The current market for port-adjacent warehousing is strong, and this $6 million project 
will leverage private investment. When Southbay is fully built out, it is expected to 
generate in excess of 876 permanent well-paying jobs, with total earnings of more than 
$55 million. About 293 will be jobs directly related to port businesses. The project is in 
and will support a census tract that is an area of persistent poverty. Each year, 
business services revenue will exceed $58 million, $32.8 million of local purchases will 
be made, and almost $5.5 million in local and state taxes are forecast to be paid.  
 
Port Tampa Bay is Florida’s largest port in tonnage and area, and its location right next 
to one of the fastest growing populations in the US, Tampa Bay, makes its expansion 
doubly important. Using a port as close as possible to the cargo origin or destination 
helps reduce truck miles on Florida’s overburdened highways, versus using a more 
distant port. As a result, this project contributes to a better environment. Fewer truck 
miles travelled will cut emissions, enhance roadway safety, and enhance 
economic benefits. This benefits the Tampa Bay region, the state and the nation. 
 
Further, Port Tampa Bay is an economic engine of this region, and is an anchor of the 
Central Florida Mega-region’s cluster of logistics-led businesses along the I-4 corridor-
-  comprising 200 square miles of such businesses.  Our TPO’s Hillsborough + Polk 
Freight Logistics Zone Strategic Plan documents the significance of this 
business cluster to the state’s economy as well as to our residents’ access to 
living-wage jobs. Thus, strategic investments in transportation facilities supporting 
Port Tampa Bay will have broad and far-reaching benefits for prosperity.   
 
Thank you for your favorable consideration of Port Tampa Bay’s Southbay project. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Beth Alden, Executive Director 
 

Commissioner Gwen Myers 
Hillsborough County 

TPO Chair 
 

Mayor Andrew Ross 
City of Temple Terrace 

TPO Vice Chair 
 

Paul Anderson 
Port Tampa Bay 

 
Commissioner Harry Cohen  

Hillsborough County 
 

Councilman Joseph Citro 
City of Tampa 

 
Councilmember Lynn Hurtak 

City of Tampa 
 

Commissioner Pat Kemp 
Hillsborough County 

 
Mayor Nate Kilton 

City of Plant City 
 

Adelee Marie Le Grand, AICP 

HART 

 
Joe Lopano 

Hillsborough County 
Aviation Authority 

 

Councilman Guido Maniscalco 
City of Tampa 

 

Commissioner 

Michael Owen 
Hillsborough County 

 
Hemant Saria 

Planning Commission 
 

Greg Slater 
Expressway Authority 

 

Commissioner 
Joshua Wostal 

Hillsborough County 
 

Jessica Vaughn 
Hillsborough County 

School Board 
 
 

Beth Alden, AICP 

Executive Director 

 

Plan Hillsborough 

planhillsborough.org 
planner@plancom.org 

813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th Floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

 

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


 

April 12, 2023 
 
 
 
Mr. Mike Neidhart  
Metropolitan Planning Administrator 
Florida Department of Transportation 
Office of Policy Planning 
605 Suwannee Street, MS 28 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450 
 
RE: Performance Targets for Pavement & Bridge Condition and System Performance 
Measures  
 
Dear Mike,  
 
On April 12, 2023, the Hillsborough Transportation Planning Organization established 
performance targets for the Pavement & Bridge Condition and System Performance 
Rules to comply with the requirements of the MAP-21 and FAST Act.  
 
The Hillsborough TPO agreed to support FDOT’s statewide pavement & bridge 
condition targets, while electing to set its own system performance targets for travel 
time reliability, as indicated below: 
 
• ≥65.6% Interstate Travel Time Reliability 
• ≥90.1% Non-interstate NHS Travel Time Reliability 
• ≤1.94Truck Travel Time Reliability Index 

 
With this action, the TPO is agreeing to plan and program projects in the 
Transportation Improvement Program that will, once implemented, make progress 
toward achieving the adopted targets.  
 
We support the efforts of FDOT to implement performance-based planning and 
programming. We believe that these measures provide a uniform calculus by which to 
identify both strengths and weaknesses of the national transportation system, to 
increase accountability and transparency of the Federal-Aid Highway Program, and to 
improve decision-making through performance-based planning and programming.  
 
In recognition of the exemplary efforts made by FDOT District 7 to maintain NHS 
pavements & bridges in a condition which exceeds the statewide target, we write to 
request that our District 7 partners continue to maintain these vital assets in a good 
state of repair. We also request that funding be made available in the FDOT Work 
Program to support operational and other improvements which may alleviate 
bottlenecks and improve travel time reliability on the National Highway System. A 
number of projects which could make a difference, and which are ready for funding 

Commissioner Gwen Myers 
Hillsborough County 

TPO Chair 
 

Mayor Andrew Ross 
City of Temple Terrace 

TPO Vice Chair 
 

Paul Anderson 
Port Tampa Bay 

 
Commissioner Harry Cohen  

Hillsborough County 
 

Councilman Joseph Citro 
City of Tampa 

 
Councilmember Lynn Hurtak 

City of Tampa 
 

Commissioner Pat Kemp 
Hillsborough County 

 
Mayor Nate Kilton 

City of Plant City 
 

Adelee Marie Le Grand, AICP 
HART 

 
Joe Lopano 

Hillsborough County 
Aviation Authority 

 
Councilman Guido Maniscalco 

City of Tampa 
 

Commissioner 
Michael Owen 

Hillsborough County 
 

Hemant Saria 
Planning Commission 

 
Greg Slater 

Expressway Authority 
 

Commissioner 
Joshua Wostal 

Hillsborough County 
 

Jessica Vaughn 
Hillsborough County 

School Board 
 
 

Beth Alden, AICP 
Executive Director 

 
Plan Hillsborough 

planhillsborough.org 
planner@plancom.org 

813 - 272 - 5940 
601 E Kennedy Blvd 

18th Floor 
Tampa, FL, 33602 

 



and implementation, are identified on the Hillsborough TPO’s Transportation 
Improvement Program priority list, which is attached for reference.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Beth Alden, AICP 
TPO Executive Director  
 
Cc: David Gwynn, FDOT District 7 Secretary 
Suzanne Monk, FDOT District 7 
 
Attachments:  1. Federal Performance Measures and Targets 
       2. TIP Priority List  







2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

1
Metropolitan 
Transportation
Planning

Metropolitan Transportation Planning Corridor & Systems Planning
Ongoing planning need: $600k per year for LRTP 
development, Planning Studies,
FY28

439336 3
439336 4
439336 5

SU $600,000 added in FY26

Goals by 2045
* Resurface all roads every 17 years
* Replace buses every 10‐12 years

* Replace deficient bridges
* Protect low‐lying major roads from flooding, cutting recovery time in half

2 Bus Replacements
$2M added in FY26; $33M requested by HART; $5M 

recommended for FY28
414963 2 SU, FTA 41% NOT in a SGR

3
Bus Maintenance Mid‐Life
Overhaul

$4.5M requested; Application Needed SU, FTA 41% NOT in a SGR

4
Bus Stop Capital Repairs at
Various Locations

$5M requested by HART; $1M added in FY26; 
Application Needed

443852 1
Federal Special
Appropriations

0% NOT in a SGR

5 Good Repair Transit SGR Vanpool Operations $200k requested for CST; $200k recommended for FY28 430175 1
SU, FTA, Carbon
Reduction FF

0% NOT in a SGR

6 Good Repair Road & Bridge SGR
Bayshore Blvd Seawall
Reconstruction

$6M requested for CST; $5M recommended; SU 
Application Needed 

SU, PROTECT
High Vulnerability/High
Criticality

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

Hillsborough TPO List of Priority Projects 

2022/2023‐ 2026/2027 Transportation Improvement Program 

It's TIME 2045 Plan Funding Level ($m)
Federal Metro Funds

• Road Resurfacings
• Bridge Repairs & Replacements

• Transit Vehicle Replacements & Facility Repairs
State of Good Repair and Resilience 

Good Repair Transit SGR & Asset Maintenance

TABLE 2: LIST OF CANDIDATES FOR FUNDING (PRIORITY LIST)

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 17 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

Goals by 2045
* 500 miles of streetlights

*1,400 miles of filled sidewalk gaps
*350 miles of Complete Streets
 *35% reduction in crashes

7 Vision Zero
Safety Enhancements; City of Tampa 

requests FDOT funding these
improvements

Boy Scout Blvd @ Manhattan Ave Traffic signal requested. Additional Coordination Needed 449852 1 SU, State funds CST; 8/mi; 50% EJ

8 Vision Zero Sidewalk & Bike Lane Improvements
Sidewalk around Marshall Middle 
School

$255k requested for CST; TA application incomplete; 
Application & Project Sponsor Needed

SU, TA CST; 6/mi; 100% EJ

9 Vision Zero
Sidewalk Improvements and Enhancing 

turn radii

Hillsborough Ave at Sawyer Rd
& Town N Country Blvd (grouped 
together)

$1.27M requested for CST; $1.27M recommended; SU 
Application Needed

SU, SS4A CST; 6/mi; 57% EJ

10 Vision Zero Safety Enhancements
Lois Ave from Cleveland St to
Boy Scout Blvd

$3.7M requested for CST; Application Submitted; $3.7M 

recommended 
SU CST; 6/mi; 18% EJ

11 Vision Zero Sidewalk & Bike Lane Improvements
Sidewalk around Tomlin Middle 
School

$255k requested for CST; TA application incomplete; 
Application & Project Sponsor Needed

SU, TA CST; 7/mi; 0% EJ

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Vision Zero
•Construction Readiness

• Sum of Fatal & Serious Injury Crashes per Centerline Mile = 3+/mi
• Edge Miles Located within an EJ area, if projects are within 1.5inj/mi

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Page 18 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

12 Vision Zero Safety Enhancements US301 at Palm River Rd
$1.61M requested for CST; SU Application Needed; CIGP 
Application Submitted

CST;  4/mi; 0% EJ

13 Vision Zero
Safety Enhancements/Complete Streets 

project; Temple Terrace requests 
County funding these improvements

Bullard Pkwy (Glen Arven Ave to 78th 
St)

$750k requested for Design & CST; HC evaluating ped 
crossing & speed limit reduction; lane narrowing 
unfunded (pending sales tax); SU Application and 
Additional Coordination Needed

County, SU Design & CST; 5.43/mi; 0% EJ

14 Vision Zero
Intersection safety
improvements

US301 at Harney Rd, Stacy Rd, and 
McIntosh Rd

$500k for Design & $2.6M for CST 450693 1
SU, State funds, 

SS4A
Design & CST; 5/mi; % EJ

15 Vision Zero
Safety Enhancements; Temple Terrace 

requests County funding these 
improvements

Davis Rd (Morris Bridge Rd to Temple 
Terrace Hwy)

Requesting $700k for Design & Construction; Additional 
Coordination Needed

County Design & CST; 3.73/mi; % EJ

16 Vision Zero

Signal heads, visibility
enhancements, median, reducing turn 
radii and lane width, access mgmt 

treatments

CR 579/Mango Road from MLK Jr. 
Boulevard to US 92

Feasibility Study Completed; $789k for Design & CST; 
Application Needed

SU, SS4A Design & CST; 3.57/mi; 0% EJ

17 Vision Zero
Speed mgmt treatments, lighting, 

crosswalks, sidewalk, concept for red 
light running cameras

Lynn Turner Rd from Ehrlich Rd to 
Gunn Highway

Feasibility Study Completed; $2‐3.7M for Design & CST; 
Application and Additional Coordination Needed

SU, SS4A Design & CST; 3.27/mi; 0% EJ

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration     

SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 19 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

18 Vision Zero
Resurfacing bike lanes, sidewalks & mid‐

block
crossings

78th St from Causeway Blvd to Palm 

River Rd
$2.21M CST estimate; $500k requested for PE; 
Application submitted; $332k recommended

SU, SS4A PE; 20.63/mi; 62% EJ

19 Vision Zero
Sidewalks, bike lane reconstruct, 
drainage, mobilization, MOT, PE &

CEI, contingency

N 15th St from Fowler Ave to 
Fletcher Ave

$2.23M CST estimate; $500k requested for PE; 
Application submitted; $335k recommended

SU, SS4A PE; 13.86/mi; 25% EJ

20 Vision Zero Safety Enhancements  SR582/Fowler Ave (56th St to I‐75)
$10M est for CST; Walk/Bike Feasibility Study funded in 
FY23; $5M recommended for PE

449644 1 SU, HSIP, SS4A CST; 13.24/mi; 3% EJ

21 Vision Zero Safety Enhancements
56th/50th (SR60 to Fletcher
Ave)

Safety Study programmed in FY21 ‐$1M; PE not funded 445651 1 HSIP, SU, SS4A PE; 11.93/mi; 40% EJ

22 Vision Zero Safety Enhancements 
N Florida Ave (MLK Blvd to Waters 
Ave)

Heights Mobility PD&E Completed; $34M est for CST; 
Segment 1: MLK to Comanche $5M recommended for 
PE; Segment 2: Comanche to Waters Ave

SU, SS4A PE; 11/mi; 13% EJ

23 Vision Zero

Safety enhancements.
Estimates include mobilization, MOT, 
contingency, CST; Design and CEI not 

included in estimate

Fletcher Ave from Armenia Ave to 
Nebraska Ave

$1.3‐1.5M CST estimate; $795k requested for PE; 
Application submitted; $225k recommended

SU, SS4A PE; 11/mi; 13% EJ

24 Vision Zero
Need Additional

Information to Proceed
Symmes Rd @ US301 $400k requested for PD&E study; Application needed SU, SS4A PD&E; 7/mi; 0% EJ

25 Vision Zero Safety Enhancements S CR39 at Lithia Pinecrest Rd $400k requested for PD&E study; Application Needed SU PD&E; 4/mi; 0% EJ

26 Vision Zero

Concept plan to evaluate lane 
repurposing, enhanced bike & ped 
facilities, midblock crossings, speed 

mgmt treatements, signal retimings & 
warrants

Habana Ave from MLK Blvd to 
Hillsborough Ave

$500k requested for Planning Study; Application 
submitted; $200k recommended

SU Planning; 10.37/mi; 72%

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Page 20 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

27 Vision Zero
Safety

Enhancements/Complete Streets 
project

Azeele St from Dale Mabry to 
Armenia Ave

$500k requested for Planning Study; Application 
Submitted

SU Planning; 3.17/mi; 21% EJ

28 Vision Zero
Need Additional

Information to Proceed
Bird St from Florida Ave to
Nebraska Ave

Application needed SU N/A; 19.23 inj/mi; 100% EJ

29 Vision Zero
Safety Enhancements; goes‐with 

resurfacing project to be scheduled
MLK Urban Corridor Improvements 
(Dale Mabry Hwy to Armenia Ave)

MLK Blvd from Dale Mabry to Armenia Ave: Resurfacing 
& Complete Street Dale Mabry to Armenia $700K 
unfunded

436419 2 SU, TA, SS$A N/A; 9.63/mi; 74% EJ

30 Vision Zero
City of Tampa requests County funding 

these
improvements.

West Shore Blvd Complete Street 
(Kennedy Blvd to Boy
Scout Blvd)

PD&E completed; Additional Coordination Needed County N/A; 10.68/mi; 65% EJ

31 Vision Zero
Need Additional

Information to Proceed
15th St from Lake Ave to Palm
Ave

Application needed SU N/A; 11.11/mi; 31% EJ

32 Vision Zero
Raised medians, bike lane connections, 

closing sidewalk gaps, and ADA 
improvements, Innovative intersections

SR 574 from US 301 to Turkey Creek 
Rd

Study funded in FY23 and funding request will follow. 448507 1 SU, TA, SS4A N/A; 8.40/mi; 18% EJ

33 Vision Zero
City of Tampa requests County funding 

these
improvements.

Manhattan Ave from Gandy Blvd to 
Euclid

Additional Coordination Needed County, SU N/A; 6.54/mi; 3% EJ

34 Vision Zero

Hi‐Viz Crossings, walk & bike 
enhancements, lighting, LPI, access 

mgmt
treatments

Sheldon Rd from W Hillsborough Ave 
to W Waters Ave

Feasibility Study Completed; Design & CST estimate of 
$2.9M; Application and Additional Coordination Needed

SU, SS4A N/A; 3.86/mi; 66% EJ

35 Vision Zero
Need Additional

Information to Proceed
MacDill Ave from Bay to Bay to
Kennedy Blvd

Application Needed N/A; 3.41/mi; 14% EJ

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 21 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

36 Vision Zero

Intersection Safety Improvements; City 
of Tampa requests County funding 

these
improvements.

West Shore Blvd (Fair Oaks Ave to 
Neptune Way)

Additional Coordination Needed County N/A; 3.17/mi; 7% EJ

Goals by 2045
* Reduce delay by 40%

* Improve travel time relilability by 30%

37 Smart Cities
ATMS

Upgrade/Replacement
HART Scheduling Software

$500k requested to replace scheduling software; 
Application needed

FTA, ATTIMD
Smart Cities Plan top priority
(13); 75.32% On‐Time
Performance

38 Smart Cities ATMS Replacement
Downtown Signal Replacements & 
Bridge Control

$5M requested for CST; Application needed SU, ATTIMD
Smart Cities Plan T‐2nd priority 
(10)

39 Smart Cities Intersection Improvements  US301 & Balm Rd $400k requested for PD&E study; Application submitted  SU
• Travel time index: 1.88
• Delay: 1.20min

40 Smart Cities
Integrated Corridor Management 

Systems
US 41/Nebraska Ave (Kennedy Blvd 
to Bearss Ave)

$1M CST estimate; Costs to be updated by FDOT 443444 3
SU, State Funds,
Carbon Reduction 

FF

• Travel time index: 1.87
• Delay: 12.56min

41 Smart Cities
Widening, bike/ped improvements, 

intersection operational
considerations

SR 583/50th/56th St from US 
41/Melbourne Ave to Sligh Ave

PD&E Estimate needed
SU, State Funds, 
Carbon Reduction 

FF

• Travel time index: 1.22
• Delay: 1.26min

42 Smart Cities
Dual left turn lanes, widening CSX rail 

crossing
Alexander St/Jim Johnson Rd

Added $516,219 for design in FY22, $2M requested for 
CST; SU Application Submitted with request for FDOT to 
implement; PE moved to FY25

440736 `  SU, CRISI
• Travel time index: 1.18
• Delay on 1/4mi approach: 
0.13min

Smart Cities 
•Top 3 Scoring Smart Cities projects 

• AM & PM Peak Period Travel Time Index 
• Travel Delay in Mins

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System           

CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration     

SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Page 22 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

43 Smart Cities Intersection Improvements  South Park Rd at Coronet Rd
Added $551,809 for design in FY22; $2M requested for 
CST; SU Application Needed w request for FDOT to 
implement

SU 
• Travel time index: 1.09
• Delay on 1/4mi approach: 
0.18min

44 Smart Cities Intersection Improvements 
SR 60 from East of Dover Rd to Polk 
County Line

Intersection improvements and safety upgrades, PD&E 
estimate needed

SU, State Funds 
• Travel time index: 1.06
• Delay: 0.60min

45 Smart Cities
Signal Replacements and/or upgrades; 
City of Tampa requests County funding 

these improvements

Cypress at Armenia & Howard; 
Henderson at San Rafael/Lois Ave; 
Habana Ave at Columbus Dr; Himes 
Ave at Gandy Blvd; Manhattan Ave at 
El Prado; Manhattan at Bay to Bay; 
Church at Bay to Bay

Additional Coordination Needed
SU, County, CIGP, 

ATTIMD
• Travel time index: 1.06
• Delay: 0.60min

Goals by 2045
* Wide paved trails & sidepaths within walking distance of 1/4 of residents

* Frequent bus service within walking distance of nearly half of people & jobs
* Outside of bus service area, Sunshine Line services grow with senior population

growth              

46 Real Choices Network Connection
109th Ave from Nebraska Ave
to 30th St

$450k requested for Design; $2.25M EST total cost; 
Application Needed

SU, Carbon 
Reduction FF

Pop Density: High

47 Real Choices
Multimodal Enhancements & Network

Connection
Ashley Dr (Tyler St to Laurel St)

Need more info; Application Needed; DOT will fund 50% 
of the costs, CoT asking TPO to cover the other half

SU, Carbon 
Reduction FF

Pop Density: High

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

Real Choices •Population Density within walking distance of trail/sidepath
•2015 Population & Job Density within 1/4 Mile of Frequent Bus Service

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 23 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

48 Real Choices

Multimodal Enhancements & Network 
Connection: Intersection 
reconstruction, ADA

compliant sidewalks, ped  upgrades, 
modify turn lanes

Dale Mabry at Spruce
$750k requested for Design; CST estimate pending; 
Application Needed

445648 1
HSIP, SU, Carbon 
Reduction FF

Pop Density: High

49 Real Choices
Multimodal Enhancements & Network

Connection
Hanna Ave from Nebraska Ave to 
40th St

Need more info
Carbon Reduction 

FF
Pop Density: High to Medium‐ 

High

50 Real Choices Multi‐Use Trail
Adamo Dr Greenway Gap (22nd St to 
34th St)

City of Tampa requests prioritization to receive SUNTrail 
funding; Revised & completed application needed

447133 1
SUNTrail; Other 
Arterials, ATII

Pop Density: High to Medium‐ 

High

51 Real Choices
Multimodal Enhancements & Network 

Connection
14th Street (N of Columbus to S of I‐
4)

Complete Streets project on one‐way road parallel to 
Green Spine Cycle Track: Completing project cost 
estimate; Application Needed

449098 1
SU, Carbon 
Reduction FF

Pop Density: High to Medium‐ 

High

52 Real Choices
Multimodal Enhancements & Network

Connection
Main St from Armenia Ave to North 
Blvd

Need more info
Carbon Reduction 

FF
Pop Density: High to Medium‐ 

High

53 Real Choices Bike Blvd & Multimodal Enhacements 
Gray St (West Shore Blvd to Willow 
Ave)

$1M requested for CST; Applications Needed
SU, TA, Carbon 
Reduction FF

Pop Density: High to Medium‐

High

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration     

SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 24 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

54 Real Choices Multi‐Use Trail Fowler Ave Underpass PD&E
Temple Terrace requests $500k for PD&E; Application 
Needed

SU, ATII Pop Density: High to Medium

55 Real Choices Light vehicle/Footbridge Whiteway Drive Request for $2.2M for Design & CST; Application Needed ATII Pop Density: High to Medium

56 Real Choices Intersection & Network Improvements Armenia Ave at Barclay Rd Request for $1.8M for CST; Application Needed
SU, Carbon 
Reduction FF

Pop Density: Medium‐High to 
Medium‐Low

57 Real Choices Multi‐Use Trail  Green ARTery Segment E Request for $875k for CST; Application Needed SU, TA, ATII
Pop Density: Medium‐High to 
Medium‐Low

58 Real Choices Multi‐Use Trail  Green ARTery Segment D Request for $255k for CST; Application Needed SU, TA, ATII
Pop Density: Medium‐High to 
Low

59 Real Choices
Multi‐Use Trail; Temple Terrace 
requests County funding these 

improvements

Tampa Bypass Canal Trail (34th St to 
Bruce B. Downs)

Temple Terrace's top priority. Added $751k for PD&E in 
FY18 and $379k for design moved to FY25 by 
Hillsborough County. Temple Terrace requestes $683k 
for construction of Fowler to Harney segment upon 
completion of PD&E. TA Application Submitted

439482 1
439482 2

TA, SU, SUNTrail, 
County, ATII

Pop Density: Medium

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 25 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

60 Real Choices
Multimodal

Enhancements & Network Connection
Waters Ave at Florida Mining Blvd

$1.5M requested for CST; Total projects cost EST 
$3.08M; SU Application Needed

SU, CIGP Pop Density: Medium

61 Real Choices
Multimodal Enhancements & Network

Connection
Brush St (Whiting St to Kennedy Blvd)

Supports Water St development; CIGP Application 
Submitted; TRIP Application Needed

TRIP, CIGP Pop Density: Low

62 Real Choices
Multimodal Enhancements, Intersection 

& Network Improvements
CR579/Mango Rd at Old Hillsborough 
Ave

Request for $3.3M for CST; CIGP Application submitted; 
SU Application Needed

SU, CIGP
Pop Density: Medium to 
Medium‐Low

63 Real Choices Multi‐Use Trail
South Tampa Greenway (Picnic Island 
Park to Manhattan Ave)

Need more info
TA, SUNTrail, ATII, 
Recreation Sites

Pop Density: Medium to 
Medium‐Low

64 Real Choices Multi‐Use Trail
South Coast Greenway (Phases I and 
III‐VI)

• Phase III (Big Bend Rd to Symmes Rd), request $3.6M 

for Construction/CEI, TA application submitted
Phase IV (Manatee Co. Line to SR 674), request $371k for
PD&E, TA Application Provided
• Phases V, VI, & VII (Symmes Rd to SR 60), request 
$770k for PD&E, TA Application Needed
• $500k Earmark Funded for design of segment along
19th Ave

439481 1 TA, SUNTrail, ATII
Pop Density: Medium‐Low to 
Low

65 Real Choices Filling Sidewalk Gaps Various Segments on State Roads
Assuming no ROW acquisition, avg. cost is $250k/mile; 
Additional Coordination Needed

SU, TA Pop Density: N/A

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System CIGP‐ 
County Incentive Grant Program           

FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration     

SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

Page 26 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

Goals by 2045
*Targeted Investments for Good Transportation Infrastructure

* *Promote Economic Growth by Connecting People to Key Economic Spaces

66 Major Projects Transit Asset SGR
Repair/Replacement of Heavy
Maintenance Facility

$65M estimate; need to phase this project into segments
SU, FTA, Bus & Bus 

Facility
N/A; N/A; N/A

67 Major Projects Transit Asset SGR New Satellite Maintenance Facility
$60M for new Satellite Maintenance Facility; HART 
requests this funding concurrent with Priority #95 Heavy 
Maintenance Facility

FTA, RAISE, Bus & 
Bus Facility

N/A; N/A; N/A

68
Major Projects,

Pgs. 52‐53
Transit HART CSX Study $3.5M requested; Top priority of TPO Board

SU, FTA, FRA 
Corridor 

Identification & 
Development 
Program

Connection to all Major Job
Clusters; N/A; N/A

69
Major Projects, 

Pgs. 57‐58
Noise Walls & Multimodal Safety 
Enhancements at Cross Streets

I‐275 from Hillsborough Ave to N of 
Bearss Ave

Funding requested from N of Hillsborough Avenue to N 
of Bearss Ave to construct noise walls. Design and CST 
phases needed.

SIS, Reconnecting 
Communities Pilot 

Program

Connection to Major Job 
Clusters; 1.14 VCR; N/A

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

Major Investments for Economic Growth 
• 2045 Employment Density (Major/Minor/No Job Cluster)

• 2045 Traffic Volume/Capacity (V/C) ratio
• 2045 Delay Reduction per Centerline Mile

• CST estimate >$5M

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 27 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

70
Major Projects, 
Pgs. 54, 57‐58

Capacity, Operational & Safety 
Enhancements

Westshore Interchange I‐ 275/SR93 
from S of SR60 to N of Hillsborough 
River; SR60 from S of I‐275 to SR589

Early Works and Phases 1 and 2 Already Funded for CST; 
Phase 3 to be funded in FY28. Additional funding needed 
to reconstruct Tampa's Westshore Interchange (I‐
275/SR60) with general purpose and express lanes, 
including new express lanes along I‐275 from the 
Howard Frankland Bridge to west of Lois Ave and along 
SR 60 from I‐275 to Memorial Highway and Tampa 
International Airport (Section 4). Add express lanes on I‐
275 from West of Lois Avenue to North of the 
Hillsborough River (Section 5) with connections at Himes 
Ave and Downtown Tampa. Addition of new trail 
connections and reconnecting local streets. Construction 
Estimate: Section 4 ‐ $939M (2021 LRE) and Section 5 ‐ 
$253M (2021 LRE)

412531 1
412531 2

SIS
Connection to Major Job 
Clusters; 0.91 & 0.66 VCRs; N/A

(Chief Recepient)              

(Project Sponsor)

72
Major Projects, 
Pgs. 22, 24

Transit
N/S MetroRapid Construction ‐ 
Tampa Arterial BRT

The Tampa Arterial Bus Rapid Transit planning study was 
completed and a preferred BRT alignment was selected. 
HART board approved moving the project to the PD&E 
phase. Short‐term improvements can still be identified, 
which may help facilitate a longer‐term capital project 
when funding is made available. $30M requested

FTA
Connection to Major Job 
Clusters; N/A; N/A

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

FTA Small Starts, 
FDOT New Starts

Connection to Major Job 
Clusters; N/A; N/A

71
Major Projects, 
Pgs. 22, 24, 52

Transit Connection

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System CIGP‐ 
County Incentive Grant Program           

FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration     

SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

City of Tampa Downtown Streetcar 
Extension and Modernization

The Invision Tampa Streetcar extension project has been 
accepted into the Project Development phase of the 
Federal Transit Administration’s Small Starts program. 
Total Estimate of $234M with $100M from FTA; $67M 

State New Starts; $67M local funding

437608‐2‐98‐
01

Page 28 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

73
Major Projects,

Pg. 52
Transit Capital Modern Streetcars $50M requested

FTA, Rail Vehicle 
Replacement 

Grants

Connection to all Major Job
Clusters; N/A; N/A

74 Major Projects

(tent.)

Multi‐Use Trail

I‐275 Greenway Extension from 

Westshore Blvd to  Hillsborough 
River (Dale Mabry Pedestrian 
Overpass)

Dale Mabry Overpass & Neighborhood Greenway 
connections on remaining sections. TPO feasibility study 
of pedestrian overpass complete. Dale Mabry Overpass 
CST $8.2M requested for construction; will be 
constructed in last phase of westshore iterchange, ~2030

SUNTrail; SIS
Major Job Cluster; 1.28 VCR; 
N/A

75 Major Projects Bridge SGR
Brorein St Bridge Phase 1: Structural 
Rehabilitation

Brorein Ph1: $12M requested for CST; Total cost of 
project EST $16M; Not recommended this year

SU
Major Job Cluster; 0.71 VCR; 
N/A

76 Major Projects Bridge SGR Cass St Bridge Repair
Cass St: $8M requested for CST; Not recommended this 
year

SU
Major Job Cluster; 0.68 VCR;
N/A

77
Major Projects, 

Pgs. 52‐53
Transit Cross Bay Ferry Service

This project will implement regular ferry service 
connecting Downtown Tampa to St Petersburg and 
Apollo Beach to MacDill AFB; HART awarded $5M FTA 
grant for ferry procurement. FTA Application Needed

FTA, County Major Job Cluster; N/A; N/A

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

Page 29 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

78
Major Projects, 

Pg. 64
New 4 Lane roadway

Sam Allen Rd (Park Rd to Polk 
County)

TPO Alignment Study completed; $2.15M request for 
PD&E;  Application Needed

SU
Minor Job Cluster; 1.43 VCR; 
N/A

79 Major Projects

Multimodal Enhancements & Network 
Connection; Need additional 

information to
proceed

SR 39/Alexander St from W of SR 39 
to I‐4

Walk/Bike Improvements, PE funded $2M, ROW 

estimate $1.5M unfunded, Construction estimate $7.1M 

unfunded
440338 2 TA Minor Job Clusters; 0.82 VCR

Mango Rd from S of US92 to N of I‐4: Widenining

US92 from W of Mango Rd to E of Kingsway: Widen from 

2 to 4 lanes; PD&E Completed; $3.7M Needed for 
Design; $35M CST est

McIntosh Rd from S of US92 to N of I‐4

US92 from W of McIntosh to E of McIntosh: Widen from 

2 to 4 lanes

Branch Forbes Rd from S of US92 to N of I‐4

US92 from W of Forbes Rd to E of Forbes Rd: Widen 
from 2 to 4 lanes

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

80 Major Projects
Widening and Multimodal 

Enhancements
US92 (I‐4 to Polk County Line)

State Funds for 
Arterials, 

Congestion Relief 
Program

Minor Job Cluster; 1.06 VCR; 
N/A

438997 1

Page 30 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

81
Major Projects, 

Pg. 64, 75
Widen from 4 lanes to 6 lanes Gibsonton Dr (Fern Hill Rd to US301)

Widen from 4 lanes to 6 lanes to accommodate traffic. 
PD&E funded in FY22. SU application submitted

450438 1 SU Minor Job Cluster; 1.00 VCR; N

82
Major Projects, 
Pgs. 11, 60

Interchange Enhancements Gibsonton Dr at I‐75
Funding need for ultimate interchange modification.  PE 
$4.5M unfunded, CST $32.4M unfunded

437650 2 SU, SIS
Minor Job Cluster; 0.95 VCR;
1.27 VHD Reduction

83
Major Projects,

Pg. 62
Operational

Enhancements
Causeway Blvd (US 41 to US
301)

More information needed Freight
Minor Job Cluster; 0.89 VCR;
N/A

84
Major Projects, 

Pg. 67
Widen from 4 lanes to 6 lanes

Big Bend Rd (US41 to Covington 
Garden Dr and Simmon Loop Rd to 
US301)

Widen Big Bend Rd from 4 lanes to 6 lanes to 
accommodate traffic. This segment is funded as part of 
the I‐75 interchange project. $14M requested for 
construction. Total Estimated CST cost $27.7M; TRIP 
application submitted

448985 1 TRIP
Minor Job Cluster; 0.88 East & 
0.54 West VCRs; N/A

85 Major Projects Safety Enhancements
30th St from E Yukon St to E
Fowler Ave

$6.19M requested for CST; SU Application Submitted  SU
Minor Job Cluster; 0.82 VCR; 
N/A

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 31 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

86
Major Projects, 

Pg. 62

Widen from 2 lanes to 4 lanes; Plant 
City requesting FDOT funding these 

enhancements

US 92 from Maryland Ave to Polk 
County

PD&E completed, $3.7M for PE needed, CST$42M 

unfunded; Additional Coordination Needed
438998 1

State Funds, Other 
Arterials

 Minor Job Cluster; 0.88 VCR; 
N/A

87 Major Projects
Port Authority requests FDOT funding 

these improvements
US41 (Pendola Point/Madison Ave to 
S of Causeway)

$1.6M Design added in FY22; $5M ROW estimate 
unfunded; $20M CST estimate unfunded; Additional 
Coordination Needed

430056 2 SIS
Minor Job Cluster; 0.77 VCR; 
N/A

88
Major Projects, 

Pg. 60
Grade Sep. Intersection/ Overpass

US 41 at 50th St CSX Grade 
Separated Interchange/Rail Overpass 
South of Causeway Blvd and at 
Causeway Blvd

Port Tampa Bay request. Added $2.7M for PD&E FY18, 
$5.4M for design FY19 & 20, $15M for ROW FY22; CST 
funding needed

440749 1
Freight, 

Intermodal, SIS, 
INFRA, MEGA

Minor Job Cluster; 0.77 VCR; 
N/A

89
Need beyond 

2045
New 2LU Rd Rice Rd (Coronet Rd to Polk County)

TPO Alignment Study completed; $2.5M requested for 
PD&E; Application needed

SU Minor Job Cluster; N/A; N/A

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 32 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

90 Major Projects
Multimodal Enhancements & Network

Connection
Interbay Blvd (West Shore Blvd to 
Bayshore Blvd)

$9.56M Requested for design & CST; Project needs to be 
phased into smaller segments

446877 1 CIGP
Minor Job Cluster; 0.34 VCR; 
N/A

91 Major Projects
New rail line to Port

Redwing
Port Redwing Development

Rail Spur and South Bay Rd; Cost estimate $5M; $2.5M 

requested
Federal Earmark
Request $2.5M

Minor Job
Cluster; N/A; N/A

92
Major Projects, 
Pgs. 64, 75

Road Widening 19th Ave NE from US 41 to US 301
$70M, Widen 19th Ave from 2 to 4 lanes,  PD&E funded 
by County; update w status

SU No Job Cluster; 0.94 VCR; N/A

93 Major Projects Multi‐Use Trail
Upper Tampa Bay Trail from 

Peterson Rd Park to Van Dyke
Rd

$7M requested for CST; TA Application Submitted SU, TA No Job Cluster; 0.91 VCR; N/A

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Page 33 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



2022 Priority
2045 LRTP
Reference

Project Sponsor Project Type Project Description Project Status / Request FPN
Suggested Funding 
Type

Prioritization Criteria

94
Major Projects, 

Pg. 64
Widen from 2 to 4 lanes

Balm Rd (US301 to Clement Pride Rd) 
aka US301 @ Balm Rd

Widen from 2 to 4 lanes: turn lanes, receiving lane, 
add/drop lane; Total Estimated CST cost $15million; 
$400k requested for 90% PE; Application submitted

449051 1 SU No Job Cluster; 0.77 VCR; N/A

95 Major Projects Transit SGR
Electric Bus & Electric Bus 
Infrastructure

$25M requested; HART has already received $5.48M via 
a matching federal grant; $4M recommended

FTA Low‐No 
Emissions Bus

Program, Carbon 
Reduction FF

N/A; N/A; N/A

96 Major Projects Transit Asset SGR Real Estate Acquisition $20M requested;  Property on 21st is at max capacity FTA N/A; N/A; N/A

SIS‐ Strategic Intermodal System
CIGP‐ County Incentive Grant Program
FTA‐ Federal Transit Administration
SU‐ Surface Transportation Funds 

Carbon Reduction Federal Fund
PROTECT‐ Promoting Operations for Transformative Efficient & Cost‐
Savings Transportation
SS4A‐ Safe Streets 4 All
ATTIMD‐ Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility 

CRISI‐ Condolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvements
MEGA‐ National Infrastructure Project Assistance
ATII‐ Active Transportation Infrastructure Investment Program
FRA Corridor Identification & Development Program‐ Federal Rail 
Administration

TA‐ Transportation Alternatives
HSIP‐ Highway Safety Implementation Program           

TRIP‐ Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

*Shaded Blue Denotes New or Updated Priority  *

Page 34 of 404Table 2: List of Candidates for Funding 



April 21, 2023 

Dear APA Selection Committee: 

The Hillsborough TPO, which led the preparation of the Safe Access to Parks study, 
has reviewed the application materials and is in agreement with all the information 
contained within the application.   

The TPO is now working with both the City of Tampa and Hillsborough County to 
implement study-identified recommendations around the parks. We are pleased to 
announce that the results of the study were instrumental in securing successful Safe 
Streets for All FHWA grant awards, for both the Hillsborough County and the City of 
Tampa.  

The Hillsborough TPO is committed to improving coordinated, collaborative and 
comprehensive transportation in the region, and promoting equity by providing 
improved and safer transportation choices for all residents. The TPO is excited to 
highlight this as another study implementing our commitment to Vision Zero.  

Sincerely, 

Beth Alden  
TPO Executive Director 

Commissioner Gwen Myers 
Hillsborough County 

TPO Chair 

Mayor Andrew Ross 
City of Temple Terrace 

TPO Vice Chair 

Paul Anderson 
Port Tampa Bay 

Commissioner Harry Cohen 
Hillsborough County 

Councilman Joseph Citro 
City of Tampa 

Councilmember Lynn Hurtak 
City of Tampa 

Commissioner Pat Kemp 
Hillsborough County 

Mayor Nate Kilton
City of Plant City 

Adelee Marie Le Grand, AICP 
HART 

Joe Lopano 
Hillsborough County 

Aviation Authority

Councilman Guido Maniscalco 
City of Tampa 

Commissioner 
Michael Owen 

Hillsborough County 

Hemant Saria 
Planning Commission 

Greg Slater 
Expressway Authority 

Commissioner 
Joshua Wostal 

Hillsborough County 

Jessica Vaughn 
Hillsborough County 

School Board 

Beth Alden, AICP 
Executive Director

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th Floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


April 21, 2023 

Sean Sullivan, Executive Director 
Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council 
4000 Gateway Centre Blvd., STE 100 
Pinellas Park, Florida 33782 

Re: Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council Notice of Intent to Participate (NOIP) in 
EPA  Climate Pollution Reduction Program  

Dear Mr. Sullivan: 

The Hillsborough Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) supports the Tampa 
Bay Regional Planning Council’s (TBRPCs’) grant application to be submitted to the 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for the Climate Pollution Reduction 
Grant (CPRG) Program.  Our understanding is that TBRPC will submit a Notice of 
Intent to Participate for the CPRG program to serve as the lead agency with oversight 
and responsibility for managing grant funds and coordinating activities and 
deliverables for the program. 

The Hillsborough TPO is a member of the Sun Coast Transportation Planning Alliance 
which includes the Tampa – St. Peterburg – Clearwater Metropolitan Statistical Area. 
The SCTPA works as a region to prepare plans, studies, and priorities for regionally 
significant projects, review the impact of significant land-use decisions, share current 
travel data and trends, and adopt regional transportation plans and priorities for 
highway, public transportation, and multi-use trail improvements. These efforts can be 
useful to the development of the Comprehensive Climate Action Plan as part of the 
CPRG program.  

Further, the Hillsborough TPO currently has two projects identified in our Unified 
Planning Work Program that can inform the development of plans to help reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions and identify areas potentially affected by air pollution in 
Hillsborough County. The TPO’s Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Plan (EVIP), currently 
in development, will identify locations where EV infrastructure can be deployed, 
provide a framework for prioritizing charging stations, and provide policy guidance on 
implementing compatible land use codes.  The TPO’s Low-Cost Air Quality Monitoring 
Pilot Study, also currently ongoing, establishes a network of  Community Air Monitoring 
sites to measure air pollution in communities disproportionately impacted by 
transportation related air pollution. This latter project is being expanded with support 
from an EPA Enhanced Air Quality Monitoring for Communities grant awarded to the 
Hillsborough TPO this year. 

We are excited to work with the TBRPC in a regionally coordinated effort to improve 
air quality and reduce pollution for the residents of Hillsborough County and Tampa 

Commissioner Gwen Myers 
Hillsborough County 

TPO Chair 

Mayor Andrew Ross 
City of Temple Terrace 

TPO Vice Chair 

Paul Anderson 
Port Tampa Bay 

Commissioner Harry Cohen 
Hillsborough County 

Councilman Joseph Citro 
City of Tampa 

Councilmember Lynn Hurtak 
City of Tampa 

Commissioner Pat Kemp 
Hillsborough County 

Mayor Nate Kilton
City of Plant City 

Adelee Marie Le Grand, AICP 
HART 

Joe Lopano 
Hillsborough County 

Aviation Authority

Councilman Guido Maniscalco 
City of Tampa 

Commissioner 
Michael Owen 

Hillsborough County 

Hemant Saria 
Planning Commission 

Greg Slater 
Expressway Authority 

Commissioner 
Joshua Wostal 

Hillsborough County 

Jessica Vaughn 
Hillsborough County 

School Board 

Beth Alden, AICP 
Executive Director

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th Floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


Bay. Please feel free to contact me (aldenb@plancom.org)  or Allison Yeh (yeha@plancom.org) 
of my staff if additional information is needed.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Beth Alden, AICP  
TPO Executive Director 
 

 

  

 


	ADPAB7E.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item
	Committee Appointments

	ADP3959.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADPB570.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADPE8CD.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADP8866.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADPF751.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADP228.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item

	ADP594E.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADP225.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	Addendum - Logo Design Contest for Florida Gulf Coast Trail.pdf
	Slide 1: Logo Design Contest: Florida Gulf Coast Trail

	ADPB06.tmp
	April 21, 2023
	Dear APA Selection Committee:

	ADP61F2.tmp
	April 21, 2023
	Sean Sullivan, Executive Director

	ADP9E80.tmp
	Meeting of the TPO Board
	All voting members are asked to attend in person, in compliance with Florida’s Government in the Sunshine Law.  Please RSVP for this meeting. Presenters, audience, and members in exceptional circumstances may participate remotely.

	ADPDC6B.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item
	Committee Appointments




